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CAMERON COUNTY PURCHASING
1100 East Monroe St,
Brownsville, Texas 78520
(956) 544-0871 Fax: (956) 550-7219

ADDENDUM # 4 - PAGE 1 of 209
DATE OUT: 08/22/2025

RFP TITLE: INSURANCE: INTERNATIONAL BRIDGE PROPERTY
AND BUSINESS INCOME COVERAGE

RFP NUMBER # 1469

DEADLINE: PHASE Il SEPTEMBER 24, 2025 at 3:00p.m.

(IN ORDER TO AVOID DISQUALIFICATION - ALL ADDENDUMS MUST BE SIGNED AND RETURNED BY DEADLINE AND INCLUDED
IN THE SEALED BID PACKAGE SUBMITTED)

1.- PLEASE FIND ANSWERS TO QUESTIONS AND CLARIFICATIONS FROM PARTICIPANTS.:.

See attached

Note:

This addendum is issued for the purpose of answering request for clarifications submitted by participants. This addendum shall become
part of the RFP and all RESPONDERS/PARTICIPANTS shall be bound by its content. All aspects of the scope of work/services not
covered herein shall remain the same.

Company Name Phone #

Vendor Signature Date

Must include and return with RFP package
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QUESTIONS FOR RFP #1469
INSURANCE: TINTERNATITIONAL BRIIDGE PROPERTY AND BUSIINESS IINCOME
COVERAGE

| see that there are 3 bridges in the Cameron County International Bridge System (Veterans, Gateway, and Free
Trade), which one(s) is the county looking to purchase insurance for?

a. We insure the US side of all three bridges
Is there any type of Engineering Report you can provide or drawings of any kind?

a. Veterans NB1.pdf

b. Veterans SB.pdf

c. Gateway NB.pdf

d. Gateway SB.pdf

e. TXDOT - Los Indios.pdf
Do we have a value breakdown of what the(se) bridge(s) is to be insured for?

a. Cameron County Bridges SOV 2025-26.xls
Was there a loss at any of these locations that we need to warn carriers about? (Please provide loss history if
available)

a. Zurich —Loss Runs —2016-25 — as of 8.19.25.pdf
What are the current terms that are in place?

a. International Bridge Summary 7-1-2025.pdf
What carrier was this written with previously?

a. Zurich
Please provide current loss runs and a current SOV (Statement of Values) for the structures that you would like
us to insure.

a. Cameron County Bridges SOV 2025-26.xls

b. Zurich — Loss Runs —2016-25 — as of 8.19.25.pdf
Are our carriers responsible for the entire span of the bridge, or just the demarcation line (only the part of the
bridge(s) located within the U.S. border) and inward?

a. USOnly
Can you please confirm the valuations, $3,376,200(Structure) and $7,446,000(BI/EE) for Gateway International
are correct?

a. Correct.

b. Cameron County Texas Bridge Desktop Insurance Appraisal Report.pdf

c. Cameron County Bridge System FY24.pdf
Who is the current incumbent carrier or carriers on the program?

a. Zurich
What is the process if multiple brokers request the same markets?
a. N/A

When is the market selection deadline? The RFP states Aug 13th, but that is the same date as the RFP proposal
deadline. When will markets be assigned?

a. N/A
Confirm Current carriers & pricing

a. International Bridge Summary 7-1-2025.pdf
Provide Bridge/Engineering Reports

a. Veterans NB1.pdf

b. Veterans SB.pdf

c. Gateway NB.pdf

d. Gateway SB.pdf

e. TXDOT - Los Indios.pdf
Provide 5-year Loss History/Carrier Loss Runs

a. Zurich —Loss Runs —2016-25 — as of 8.19.25.pdf
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QUESTIONS FOR RFP #1469
INSURANCE: TIINTERNATITIONAL BRIIDGE PROPERTY AND BUSIINESS IINCOME
COVERAGE

Provide Business Income Worksheets or Schedule of Toll Revenues
a. Cameron County Bridge System FY24.pdf
b. 2024 BRIDGE SYSTEM FINANCIALS.pdf
Does the reported loss of income include revenue/tolls from both the U.S. and Mexico sides. Or US side only?
a. USOnly
Do the reported Structure Values reflect 100% of the Replacement Cost? Or are the Values 50% (US side only)?
a. USSide Only
Does the current program provide coverage for the full structure including past the Mexico international line or
is there additional insurance for the Mexico side of bridge?
a. USOnly
It is imperative that markets interested in quoting this exposure have details on the status of the various
bridges, including their age, repair schedule, cost, and construction types. Will the County be able to provide
bridge schematics to determine this information?
a. Veterans NB1.pdf
Veterans SB.pdf
Gateway NB.pdf
Gateway SB.pdf
TXDOT — Los Indios.pdf
f. Bridge Schematics not available
Carriers will also need to provide a loss summary report which will give them a history of any losses allowing
them to better understand the risk. Typically, loss runs must be currently valued for the previous five years, as
well as the premiums paid for those years.
a. Zurich — Loss Runs —2016-25 — as of 8.19.25.pdf
Please provide information on any joint partnership agreements with any other U.S. or Mexican entities relating
to insurance responsibilities or revenue sharing for the bridges.
a. Veterans International Bridge — revenue share with the City of Brownsville (50/50)
b. Gateway International Bridge — no revenue share
c. Free Trade International Bridge at Los Indios — revenue share with the City of Harlingen and the City of
San Benito (50/25/25)
Who owns the Mexico portion of each bridge? Will a local Mexico placement be required?
a. Mexico. They are responsible for any insurance or self-insurance for their portion.
Please provide the most recent structural engineering studies/reports with conclusions and recommendations
for improvement (if any) for each of the three bridges.
a. Cameron County Texas Bridge Desktop Insurance Appraisal Report.pdf
b. Veterans NB1.pdf
c. Veterans SB.pdf
d. Gateway NB.pdf
e. Gateway SB.pdf
f. TXDOT - Los Indios.pdf
Please provide the most recent appraisal reports for each of the three bridges.
a. Cameron County Texas Bridge Desktop Insurance Appraisal Report.pdf
Please provide a statement of values for each bridge that also includes, at a minimum, the following COPE data -
year of construction, year of any major renovations, description of any renovations, type of bridge, type of
construction, bridge length, bridge width, maximum bridge structure height (NAVD88), maximum top of road
height (NAVDS88), number of piers, and number of piers in water.
a. Cameron County Texas Bridge Desktop Insurance Appraisal Report.pdf
b. Cameron County Bridges SOV 2025-26.xls
Please provide a narrative on how the value of the bridges was determined.
a. Cameron County Texas Bridge Desktop Insurance Appraisal Report.pdf

P oogo
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QUESTIONS FOR RFP #1469
INSURANCE: TIINTERNATITIONAL BRIIDGE PROPERTY AND BUSIINESS IINCOME
COVERAGE

Please provide a barge-strike analysis for each bridge that is over water.
a. Not available.

Please provide as-built construction documents for each of the three bridges, including (at a minimum),
architectural, structural, civil and MEP drawings.
a. Not available
Please provide current 10 year Loss Runs and a detailed description of any open or paid claims.
a. Zurich —Loss Runs —2016-25 — as of 8.19.25.pdf
b. No known losses dating back 10 years.
Is the County open to considering various retention structures?
a. Yes
Will a proposal be rejected if the proposed quote(s) reflect an improvement terms and conditions that what is
requested in the RFP?
a. RFP terms and conditions are a combination of current terms and conditions and possible
improvements. All proposals will be considered.
When will we be receiving the Full SOV in excel format with all listing values?
a. Cameron County Bridges SOV 2025-26.xls
When will we be receiving 3-to-5-year loss runs ?
a. Zurich —Loss Runs —2016-25 — as of 8.19.25.pdf
What is the target premium?
a. Not Applicable
Who is your current carrier?
a. Zurich
Loss Runs or a no loss letter?
a. Zurich — Loss Runs — 2016-25 — as of 8.19.25.pdf
Any inspection reports for the bridge
a. Veterans NB1.pdf
b. Veterans SB.pdf
c. Gateway NB.pdf
d. Gateway SB.pdf
e. TXDOT - Los Indios.pdf
Are we covering the half that’s in Mexico, or just the United States?
a. USside only
The markets may need the rate for the entire value of the bridge, then we buy a loss limit of half.
a. Understood

This addendum is issued for the purpose of answering request for clarifications submitted by participants. This addendum shall become
part of the RFP and all RESPONDERS/PARTICIPANTS shall be bound by its content. All aspects of the scope of work/services not
covered herein shall remain the same.

Company Name Phone #

Vendor Signature Date

Must include and return with RFP package




2024/2025 Values Effective 7.1.25

Bridge Name Address Structure Value
Gateway 510 E. 14 StreetBrownsville, TX 78520 3,376,200
Free Trade (Los Indios) 100 Los Indios Blvd. Brownsville TX 78567 5,395,800
Veterans Bridge (Los Tomates) |3310 South Expressway 77 Brownsville, TX 78521 51,009,180
Total: 59,781,180

Loss of Use

Gateway 510 E. 14 StreetBrownsville, TX 78520 7,446,000
Free Trade (Los Indios) 100 Los Indios Blvd. Brownsville TX 78567 2,754,000
Veterans Bridge (Los Tomates) |3310 South Expressway 77 Brownsville, TX 78521 13,260,000
23,460,000
Total Insurable Value 83,241,180
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COUNTY AUDITOR

CAMERON COUNTY, TEXAS
1100 E. MONROE ST.
P.O. BOX 3846
BROWNSVILLE, TEXAS 78520
(956) 544-0822

Lorena Hernandez, CPA
COUNTY AUDITOR

April 4, 2025

Hon. County Judge, Eddie Trevino Jr.

Hon. Commissioner Pct. 1, Sofia Benavides
Hon. Commissioner Pct. 2, Joey Lopez
Hon. Commissioner Pct. 3, David Garza
Hon. Commissioner Pct. 4, Gustavo Ruiz
Cameron County Courthouse

Brownsville, Texas

Honorable County Judge and Commissioners:

The Cameron County International Toll Bridge System’s Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2024 is hereby submitted in compliance with Chapter 114 of the Local Government Code.
Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data, and the completeness and fairness of the presentation,
including all disclosure, rests with the County Auditor, as Chief Finance Officer of the County. To the best
of our knowledge, the enclosed data is accurate in all material respects and reported in a manner designed
to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the Cameron County International Toll
Bridge System, including all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of its
financial activities.

The management of the Cameron County International Toll Bridge System is responsible for maintaining
an internal control system designed to insure that the assets of the Bridge System are protected from loss or
misuse and to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the financial statements.
The system of internal control provides for segregation of duties and is documented by written policies and
procedures. The Cameron County Auditor’s Office also has an internal audit function to review the
operations of the Bridge System for effective internal control and compliance with statutory requirements.

The Cameron County International Toll Bridge System financial statements have been audited by Burton
McCumber & Longoria, L.L.P., Independent Certified Public Accountants, who were engaged by the
Cameron County Commissioners Court for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the Bridge System’s
financial statements. County management has made available to the independent auditors direct access to
County officers and employees and all of the County’s financial records and related data.

Sincerely,

: r/ﬂ
Lorerfa Hernandez, CPA

County Auditor
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Honorable County Judge
and Commissioners’ Court Cameron County, Texas

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of the Cameron County,
Texas International Toll Bridge System, and enterprise fund of Cameron County, Texas as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the business-type activities of the Cameron County, Texas International Toll Bridge System,
as of September 30, 2024, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the Cameron County, Texas International Toll Bridge System and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the Cameron County, Texas International Toll
Bridge System and do not purport to, and do not present fairly the financial position of Cameron County,
Texas, as of September 30, 2024, the changes in its financial position, or, where applicable, its cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Cameron County, Texas International Toll Bridge
System’s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including
any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

BML y Fragoso, S.C. 1950 Paredes Line Road, Brownsville, TX 78521
Matamoros, MX 956-542-2553 - www bmltexas.com
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based
on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Cameron County, International Toll Bridge System’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the Cameron County, Texas International Toll Bridge’s ability to continue as a
going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we
identified during the audit.

Other Matters

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis information on pages 6 - 14 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Government
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of the financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Cameron County, Texas International Toll Bridge System’s basic financial statements. The
Letter of Transmittal and Supplementary Information is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is
not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The Letter of Transmittal and Supplementary Information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly we do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on it.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 4, 2025, on our
consideration of the Cameron County, Texas International Toll Bridge System’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Cameron County, Texas International Toll Bridge System’s internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering Cameron County, Texas International Toll Bridge System’s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

Bisrcot, W Counebse f Longoria LLE

Brownsville, Texas
April 4, 2025



CAMERON COUNTY
INTERNATIONAL TOLL BRIDGE SYSTEM
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

This discussion and analysis of the Cameron County International Toll Bridge System’s (“Bridge System™)
financial performance provides an overview of the financial activities for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2024. The MD&A should be read in conjunction with the accompanying basic financial statements and related
notes to those financial statements. The Bridge System is an enterprise fund of Cameron County, Texas
(“County”) and is self-sustaining for all of its operations, as well as serving as a valuable funding source for the
County.

Financial Highlights

Bridge System total assets and deferred outflows exceeded total liabilities and deferred inflows by $24,346,138.
Of this amount, 9% or $2,185,969 is restricted debt service and reserve. As required by GASB 34, net position
also reflects $16,069,097 of net investment in capital assets. With the presentation of the net investment in capital
assets, unrestricted net position is $6,091,072. Toll revenues of $22,084,747 decreased by $(368,141) from FY
2023, in part due to a minor decrease in vehicles and pedestrians crossings into Mexico through the County’s
International Bridges. Total FY 2024 crossing of 5,684,147 reflect a decredse in comparison to 5,744,427
crossings in FY 2023.

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements

The Bridge System’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB). The Bridge System’s basic financial statements consists of the 1) statement of net position, 2)
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in net position, 3) the statement of cash flows and 4) notes to
the financial statements.

The basic financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Bridge System
finances in a manner similar to a private sector business. They present the financial picture of the Bridge System
from an economic resources measurement focus using the accrual basis of accounting. These statements include
all assets of the Bridge System (including capital assets) as well as all liabilities (including long-term debt).

The statement of net position presents information on all Bridge System assets, liabilities, deferred outflows, and
deferred inflows with the difference reported as net position. Increases or decreases in net position serve as a
useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Bridge System is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in net position presents information showing how net
position changed during the most recent fiscal year using full accrual basis of accounting. All changes in net
position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will result in
cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., earned but unused vacation leave).

The statement of cash flows presents information on all Bridge System sources of cash and cash equivalents and
the uses of cash and cash equivalents. Specific information about operating cash flows, investing cash flows, and
financing cash flows are presented along with information about material non-cash events.

The notes to the basic financial statements present additional information that is essential to a full understanding
of the data provided in the basic financial statements.
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Condensed Statements of Net Position

The Bridge System’s assets, liabilities and net position are presented in the statement of net position. Increases or decreases
to net position may indicate an improvement or deterioration of the Bridge System’s financial condition.

The Bridge System net position for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2024, and 2023, is summarized as follows:

FY 2024 FY 2023
Current assets $ 22,339,962 $ 27,111,025
Non-current assets 1,099,273 1,324,998
Capital assets (net of depreciation) 27,746,027 26,056,835
Total Assets 51,185,262 54,492,858
Deferred outflow of resources 1,153,368 1,733,364
Current liabilities 5,793,638 17,118,248
Long term liabilities 20,426,809 12,817.478
Total Liabilities 26,220,447 29,935,726
Deferred inflow of resources 1,772,045 2,135,090
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 16,069,097 16,687,277
Restricted 2,185,969 1,361,187
Unrestricted 6,091,072 6,106,942
Total Net Position $ 24,346,138 $ 24,155,406

(This area intentionally left blank)
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Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Net Position

The below condensed statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in net position reflect a comparison for FY 2024 and
2023. Changes in revenues and expenses are monitored monthly and compared to budgetary data. Any operating modifications
are addressed by the Bridge Manager.

FY 2024 FY 2023

Operating Revenues:

Tolls $ 22,084,747 $ 22,452,888

Renta!l income 242,927 240,717

Other 310,490 13.386

Total Operating Revenues 22,638,164 22.706.991
Operating Expenses:

Personnel services 3,208,978 2,976,141

Operations & maintenance 1,558,985 1,565,792

Depreciation 1,416,660 1,347.411

Total Operating Expenses 6,184,623 5,889.344
Operating Income 16,453,541 16,817,647
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest income 1,133,453 909,048
Amortization of bond discount (35,717) (35,717)
Amortization of bond premium 7,462 4411
Aid to other governments (5,377,075) (5,578,047)
Transfers in(out) (11,216,304) (11,741,877)
Interest and fiscal charges (774,628) (486.554)
Change in Net Position 190,732 (111,089)
Net Position - beginning 24,155,406 24.266.495
Net position - ending $ 24,346,138 $ 24,155,406

Operating expenses increased by $295,279 or 5% from FY 2023. GASB 68 and GASB75 require reporting standards for
public pension plans and participating employers. Actuarial assumptions for determining the net pension liability as of
December 31, 2023 were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period January 1, 2013 - December 31,
2016, except where required to be different per GASB 68. Recognition of costs per GASB 68 were allocated to Bridge system
based on census data as of the report date. Non-operating costs before transfers increased by $87,102 in comparison to FY
2023 partly due to increases in interest expenses and fiscal charges for the 2024 International Bridge System Revenue Bonds.
The FY 2024 total change in net position resulted in $190,732,

(This area intentionally left blank)
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Summary of Capital Assets

The Bridge System had $27,746,027 in capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation). General capital assets include land,
buildings, construction in progress, furniture and fixtures, autos and equipment. The Bridge System’s capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation as of September 30, 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

FY 2024 FY 2023

Depreciable Capital Assets:
Toll bridges and approaches $ 45,648,144 $ 38,944,752
Toll booths and equipment 3,613,106 3,567,374
Buildings 3,986,961 3,986,961
Fumniture and fixtures 50,990 50,990
Autos and machinery 656,882 656,882
Less accumulated depreciation (35,827,745) (34,411,084)
Net Depreciable Capital Assets 18,128,338 12,795,875
Construction in progress 304,967 3,948,238
Land 9,312,722 9,312,722
Total Capital Assets, net $ 27,746,027 $ 26,056,835

Debt Administration

At September 30, 2024, the Bridge System had $19,772,417 bonds payable, net of unamortized premium of which $1,259,579
is payable in fiscal year 2025.

At September 30, 2024, the Bridge System had $229,560 tax notes payable, net of unamortized premium of which $35,209 is
payable in fiscal year 2025.

REPORT ON BRIDGE SYSTEM OPERATIONS

GATEWAY INTERNATIONAL BRIDGE

Gateway International Bridge links the downtown business districts of Brownsville and Matamoros and is primarily used for
local traffic, maquiladora employees, tourists and pedestrian traffic. Eighty percent of the pedestrian traffic in Brownsville
uses this bridge to go from downtown Brownsville to Matamoros and vice versa. Gateway International Bridge is the only
bridge in the system that is operational twenty-four hours a day and is 100% owned and operated by Cameron County. Several
Duty-Free stores operate close to the bridge attracting pedestrians to this bridge. The West/East University Blvd., parallel to
Texas Southmost College and the newly created University of Texas Rio Grande Valley (UTRGV), connects Gateway Bridge
with the Southmost area in Brownsville, which is one of the fastest growing areas in the County. This road is an excellent
connection between Gateway International Bridge and the Veterans International Bridge at Los Tomates. The East Loop
Project will be a most viable method of transportation, once completed, for this bridge and the Veterans Bridge. The General
Services Administration (GSA) has fully funded the modernization of the Gateway port of entry. GSA will make an $200
million investment in the modemization of the port. The County is currently working with GSA on design layouts as it will
impact the entrance to the County’s toll gantries. GSA is scheduled to have construction begin by the second quarter of 2025.

FREE TRADE BRIDGE AT LOS INDIOS

The Free Trade Bridge at Los Indios is an international border crossing located eight miles south of Harlingen and San Benito.
Cameron County owns and operates the bridge; however, the cities of Harlingen and San Benito each receive 25% of the net
revenues as per interlocal agreements. The U.S. Border Station and Federal Inspection Facility is owned by the General
Services Administration and operated by U.S. Customs, Immigration and Naturalization Service, and U.S. Department of
Agriculture Animal and Plant Health Inspection Service. In March of 2003, all of these entities were merged and became the
Department of Homeland Security. The bridge facilities are located on a 127-acre tract of land and include the bridge structure,
border station import and export inspection areas, impound lot, toll plaza, parking areas, duty free stores and parking.



The Free Trade Commerce Center is a 755-acre industrial park adjacent to the Free Trade Bridge and is designated as a foreign
Trade Zone, (FTZ) providing the cities of Harlingen and San Benito with an excellent marketing tool. Any activation of the
FTZ is done through U.S. Customs.

Cameron County, Cities of Harlingen and San Benito partnered in an Interlocal Agreement for the construction of a Cold
Storage Facility on federal government property to be developed by the Harlingen Economic Development Corporation. This
is a shared ownership agreement with Cameron County retaining 50% ownership and the Cities of San Benito and Harlingen
retaining 25% each. Official ribbon cutting of this $500,000 facility was held in April 2018 and operations commenced
immediately. This new refrigerated inspection facility offers three cooled docking bays and maintains the “Cold Chain™ of
fresh products extending the shelf life. An added bonus to this location is that the United States Department of Agriculture
(USDA) maintains an entomologist on-site. Products referred to secondary inspection have an immediate assessment in the
event of any pests. This cold storage facility provides both frozen and refrigerated facilities for perishables as international
shippers await inspection U.S. Customs & Border Protection. Free Trade Bridge serves as the terminus of SH509, which is a
designated overweight corridor and a direct route to I69E. This International Bridge has the shortest wait times for commercial
vehicles in South Texas and access to this type of cold storage facility is expected to draw additional commercial traffic and

provide much needed services to this region.

The State of Tamaulipas has invested substantially in their highway infrastructure contributing directly to the increased traffic.
The Autopista providing direct access to Monterrey has now been operational for over twenty (20) years. This provides a
direct link between the Free Trade Bridge at Los Indios and the highly industrial area of Monterrey and its suburbs. With the
road improvements to Highway 99/101 which goes to Ciudad Victoria, the route to Ciudad Victoria is much safer and faster.
These road improvements have made the Free Trade Bridge at Los Indios very attractive to tourist traffic headed to the interior
of Mexico. Travelers now can potentially save over four hours of travel time from the interior of Mexico to Cameron County.
The Free Trade Bridge location and structural improvements have contributed to the growth of international trade in the
Cameron County area. Additionally, the ANAM, which encompasses Mexican Customs, has increased lane sizes at the
Mexican toll plazas to accommodate blades and all other wind turbine parts being transported between both countries. On
the US side, Cameron County has already completed these types of special wide lane crossings. Cameron County is working
with U.S. Customs and GSA on a DAP project to modernize the Export Lot and allow U.S. Customs to do joint inspection
with Mexican Customs.

VETERANS INTERNATIONAL BRIDGE AT LOS TOMATES

Cameron County owns and operates the Veterans International Bridge at Los Tomates; however, the City of Brownsville
receives 50% of the net surplus revenues as per interlocal agreements. The Veterans Bridge at Los Tomates operates eighteen
hours a day. Traffic and Revenue Analysis projected 3,500 vehicles daily. Average daily traffic is about 6,500 vehicles
including about 1,100 trucks. Security issues on the Mexican border continue to impact traffic crossings. This bridge has
improved the movement of goods and services on NAFTA highway trade routes. The reduction of time delays at this
international border has served as an economic stimulus for the Brownsville region and across the U.S. Directly across the
border in Matamoros, the bridge is located in a highly commercial and retail area of the community connecting directly into
the city's inner and outer loops. Completion of capital improvements in this area have reduced travel time to the Matamoros
airport to just fifteen minutes from the Veterans International Bridge at Los Tomates. The City of Matamoros has also
completed construction of the last phase of the outer loop that would connect to the west side of Matamoros and connecting
to the Monterrey highway; construction of two overpasses on the Manuel Cavazos Periferico that has shifted more traffic to
the Veterans International Bridge at Los Tomates. The City of Matamoros constructed a 1,500-foot portion of Accion Civica
that goes from Avenida Lauro Villar to Roberto Guerra Street thus reducing daily traffic congestion. Additionally overpass
construction over Roberto Guerra Street has allowed users to avoid this busy intersection. Three additional overpass
improvements are funded and planned along this main route that will allow for a better flow of traffic.

On the U.S. side the Veterans International Bridge at Los Tomates is the southernmost starting point of Interstate 69E (I69E).
TxDot has invested over thirty-five million dollars in highway improvements to connect to the bridge and to provide access.
Cameron County has completed construction and is continuing capital improvements projects that will expand the commercial
and vehicle capacity at this bridge and better facilitate needed secondary inspection stations. Through participation in the
Donations Acceptance Program (DAP), a commercial expansion project has been completed that has increased commercial
inspection lanes from two to six. Two (2) X-ray inspection machines were installed on December 2020. Cameron County
has partnered with Customs Border Protection and General Services Administration in an MOU for the expansion of the
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existing Federal Customs and Border Protection Primary and Secondary Vehicle Inspection Stations. Once completed,
capacity of northbound vehicular lanes will be doubled.  Plans call for this additional canopy to encompass four—station
inspection booths for vehicular traffic, an additional bay for secondary vehicular inspection, a separate bus x-ray inspection
station and an elevated platform Command Center in the secondary inspection area for passenger vehicles. The Project design

phase is complete and construction is expected to be completed in summer of 2024.

The area along I69E has seen extensive growth with new retail businesses. The Veterans International Bridge at Los Tomates
provides a direct access to this retail corridor for people coming from Matamoros and other surrounding communities in
Mexico. Commercial growth along this I69E corridor continues at a rapid pace. Along this corridor major retail developments
are Super Wal-Mart, Target, Lowe’s, Academy and Sam’s Club, eating establishments, auto dealerships, major hotels and
financing establishments. This corridor has rapidly become the fastest commercial and retail route for the Brownsville area.
Additional retail and commercial developments between Brownsville and Harlingen continue at a rapid pace. Commercial
traffic continues to grow at this bridge. Indications are that with this continued commercial growth, any declines in vehicular

traffic will be surpassed by commercial growth.
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS
VETERANS INTERNATIONAL BRIDGE PRIMARY LANE EXPANSION PROJECT

Cameron County has partnered with CBP and General Services Administration (GSA) in a Memorandum of Understanding
(MOU), through the DAP, for the expansion of the existing customs primary and secondary vehicle existing points of entry.
This project encompasses a number of structural and traffic improvements and will fulfill portions of the original master plan
for this Border Station. This expansion project will address vehicular primary and secondary inspections. The proposal
includes four station inspection booths for passenger vehicles with covered canopy, secondary inspection for passenger
vehicles of one additional bay, a bus X-ray inspection station with turnaround provision, and construction of an elevated
command center for passenger vehicles in the secondary inspection area. A new Z-machine portal machine, a non-invasive
inspection technology X-ray machine that allows drivers and passengers to remain in their vehicles during a security check is
expected to be installed. This equipment will allow for better flow of bases and passengers and reduce wait times. The project
is about 90% complete and should be completed by summer 2024. Once the additional lanes are operational, the Veterans
Bridge will be open 24 hours a day. With the on-going activity at the Port of Brownsville and Space X, we are positioning
ourselves to capture the majority of traffic that those facilities are creating. CBP has invested well over $15 million in
technology improvements to make it the most technology advanced bridge on the southwest border between Brownsville,

Texas and San Diego, California.
EAST LOOP PROJECT

The East Loop project continues in a partnership between Texas Department of Transportation, Cameron County, City of
Brownsville and Cameron County Regional Mobility Authority. This project consists of the construction of a four to six lane
roadway from SH4 to I69E (US77/83) that will connect to Veterans International Toll Bridge. The East Loop project is
approximately 10 miles long and will include the construction of a four-lane roadway divided highway from SH4 to the
Veterans International Bridge and I69E (US77/83). Construction costs for the East Loop project is estimated at $215Million.
Environmental assessment has been 90% completed and approval is projected for December 2024. Construction is tentatively
expected to begin in 2027. The East Loop will serve as the overweight corridor connector from Veterans International Bridge
to the Port of Brownsville and will provide significant passenger vehicle capacity in southeast Brownsville. This project is on
Txdot’s UTP and we expect that a large majority of the funding will come from the state. The County and CCRMA are
working with TxDOT to make is an On-System TxDOT Project.

FUTURE FLOR DE MAYO

Cameron County has acquired the necessary right of way for the future Flor de Mayo bridge. Additionally, the necessary right
of way for the General Services Administration was also acquired for this future bridge. These land purchases have been re-
categorized from Work in Process to Land Acquisition. An updated feasibility study was completed in FY23 for this future
project. The County is pending the issuance of a Presidential Permit by the U.S. Department of State.
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AUTOMATED VEHICLE IDENTIFICATION SYSTEM (AVI

All County owned bridges offer an automated vehicle identification system (AVI). The customer using the AVI system can
use any county owned bridge. This program has been very attractive to our maquiladora customers, both for commercial traffic
carrying their goods and products and for their employees that go back and forth every day. For FY 2024, collections totaled
$4,415,149 in AVI revenues which represents 20% of the total toll revenues collected. Clients that do not utilize the AVI

payment system pay a slightly higher rates as listed below to encourage commercial traffic to utilize the automated payment

process as it is more efficient.

TOLL RATES

The following schedule illustrates the toll rates for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2024 and in effect as of October 1,

2024:

CROSSINGS

As 0f 10/1/2024 FY 2024 (Oct 2023-Sep 2024)
AVI Non-AVI AV] Non-AVI

Classification Rate Rate
Pedestrian/Bike | $1.00  $1.00 $1.00 $1.00
Motorcycle 3.75 4.00 3.75 4.00
Auto 3.75 4.00 3.75 4.00
Bus 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00
Commercial
Vehicles:

Two Axle 9.50 11.00 9.50 11.00

Three Axle | 13.50  15.00 13.50 15.00

Four Axle 1550 17.25 15.50 17.25

Five Axle 19.25  22.00 19.25 22.00

Six Axle 2325  25.00 23.25 25.00

As of the end of September 30, 2024, a total of 5,684,147 vehicles and pedestrians crossed into Mexico through the County’s

International Bridges.

Bridge System Crossing Summary Revenue Summa
FY Vehicle & Other| Pedestrian Total Vehicle & Other| Pedestrian Total

2020 2,637.052 1,488.046] 4,125,098  § 13,838,364 $ 1,488,046 $15.326.410

2021 2,716,535 944,857 3.661,392]  §$ 14,650,524 $ 944,857 $ 15,595,381

2022 3,583,955 1,221,624 4,805,579] $17.683.919 $1.221,624 $ 18,905,543

2023 4.033,392 1,711,035 5,744,427  $20,741.853 $1.,711.035 $22.452.888

2024 3,842,243 1.841,904 5,684,147 $20,242.843 $ 1,841,904 $22,084.747

CROSSINGS BY CATEGORY

FY 2024 %o FY 2023 %

Autos & Motorcycles 3,374,529 59.4% 3,570,331 62.2%
Commercial Vehicle 292,601 5.1% 276,007 4.8%
Bikes 30,245 5% 30,301 5%
Buses 4,235 1% 3,892 1%
Transmigrant 36.960 1% 40,022 1%
Misc. 103.673 1.8% 112,839 1.9%
Pedestrian 1,841,904 32.4% 1,711,035 29.8%
Total 5,684,147 100.0% 5,744,427 100.0%
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KEY ISSUES OF CONCERN
Security

As in prior years, the international waiting times at the County owned bridges continue to be an area of concern. Point of
entry inspections by Customs and Border Protection have intensified due to security concerns. Major developments expected
to have a negative impact on the bridge crossings next fiscal year is the continuation of the security issues in Mexico. National
security continues to be a number one priority in the U.S. and the Department of Homeland Security’s presence is felt at all
bridge crossings. Additionally as conflicts continue in the Middle East, we will continue to experience thorough inspections
from the Department of Homeland Security, thus increasing the long crossing wait times for tourists and commercial traffic.
Due to the drug cartel violence, the Mexican military’s presence continues along the U.S./Mexico border.

The impact of the implementation of the Western Hemisphere Travel Initiative due to 9/11 appears to have stabilized as
international crossings continue to increase. Travelers have become acclimated to the requirement of needing a passport or a
passport card when traveling through international bridges.

Competition

Cameron County's competition for passenger vehicles is provided by the Brownsville & Matamoros (B&M) Bridge Company.
During 1997 the B&M Bridge Company expanded their bridge to provide four lanes for vehicles and commercial traffic.
Gateway International Bridge and the B&M Bridge stopped handling commercial vehicles since 1999. The B&M Bridge
Company lost its 100 year concession they had from the Mexican Government. The B&M Bridge Company now operates on
amonth to month concession with Mexico. It is highly unlikely they will receive a long term concession from Mexico. Mexico
is in the process of selecting a Concessionaire for their half of the bridge operations; thus bringing an end to the B&M Bridge
Company collecting tolls on both the U.S. and Mexican sides. Competition for commercial traffic comes from the Pharr-
Reynosa International Bridge. Opened on January 1995, this bridge provides another avenue for commercial traffic crossing
from Monterrey and the interior of Mexico. The toll road from Monterrey feeds directly into this bridge. The Pharr-Reynosa
Bridge has been able to attract custom brokers to invest in facilities in and around the bridge. The Pharr-Reynosa Bridge is a
direct competitor to the Free Trade Bridge at Los Indios, however, the waiting time for commercial vehicles is much longer
at the Pharr-Reynosa Bridge. The Pharr-Reynosa Bridge is approximately 30 miles west of the Free Trade Bridge at Los
Indios. The opening of the produce industry and market area to the whole southwest border presents an excellent opportunity
for the Free Trade Bridge at Los Indios and the Veterans International Bridge at Los Tomates that can increase commercial
traffic.

Cameron County and the Cameron County Regional Mobility Authority have completed a Border Master Plan with our
counterparts in Mexico. The plan identifies projects and opportunities within our bridge system for the next 20 years.

The Brownsville Navigation District (BND) has a U.S. Presidential Permit for the construction of a commercial bridge at the
Port of Brownsville. As of September 30, 2015, Mexico had not issued any permits on their side, thus, it is not known if the

proposed bridge will be constructed. The Donna — Rio Bravo Bridge opened in December 2010. The Anzalduas Bridge in
Mission is now in operation handling only passenger vehicle traffic.

(This area intentionally left blank)
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CONCLUSION

Cameron County International Bridges offer the most efficient routes for the distribution of products anywhere along the
U.S./Mexico border, while also being the most efficient connection to international shippers and optimal distribution logistics.
This has led to Cameron County’s success in promoting trade and in attracting greater flows of international traffic. It is not
unusual at other international bridges on the Southwest border for people to take hours to cross into the United States. And
just like in other border areas, on the average, people waiting on Cameron County owned bridges will take about forty five
minutes to an hour to cross into the United States. Those individuals that have a SENTRI cars, either Mexican or American
citizens, will generally experience a 15 minute delay. Cameron County International Bridge System enjoys an excellent
working relationship with the Department of Homeland Security and continues to look for ways and measures to reduce the
waiting time for international bridge customers. New trade routes between Mazatlan and Matamoros provide excellent
opportunities for the bridge system to generate additional commercial traffic. With SpaceX locating in Cameron County it is
anticipated that Mexican tourism and traffic will result in more international crossings. The County’s investment at the
Veterans Bridge for additional CBP lanes will make the wait times decrease which will add more round trips.

The on-going construction of the deepening of the ship channel at the Port of Brownsville will provide opportunities for
increases in commercial traffic. Infrastructure developments planned by Cameron County Regional Mobility Authority will
allow for increases in commercial traffic as well.

Cameron County is an excellent conduit to cross goods and products through its bridges and by having easily accessible
highways that connect the bridges to major markets in the United States and Mexico, more companies will start taking
advantage of the County's labor force and infrastructure. In closing, it is evident that the future of our Cameron County
International Bridge System has substantial growth potential and will continue to experience great success. 7

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Cameron County International Toll Bridge System’s

finances. Questions concerning information on this report should be directed to Cameron County Auditor, 1100 E. Monroe,
Brownsville, Texas 78520.
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CAMERON COUNTY, TEXAS
INTERNATIONAL TOLL BRIDGE SYSTEM
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash & cash equivalents
Restricted Cash:
Gateway Bridge Debt Service
Gateway Bridge Operating Reserve
Free Trade Bridge Debt Service
Free Trade Bridge Debt Reserve
Free Trade Bridge Construction Fund
Veterans International Toll Bridge Debt Service
Veterans International Toll Bridge Debt Reserve
Veterans International Toll Bridge Construction Fund
Veterans International Toll Bridge Operating Reserve
Total Restricted Cash
Accounts receivable
Leases receivable
Due from other funds
Prepaids
Total Current Assets
Non-Current Assets:
Lease receivable, non-current
Depreciable Capital Assets:
Toll bridges and approaches
Toll booths and equipment
Buildings
Furniture and fixtures
Autos and machinery
Less: accumulated depreciation
Net Depreciable Capital Assets
Construction in progress
Land
Total Capital Assets, net
Total Non-Current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
Deferred charges on refunding
Deferred outflow of resources-Pension
Deferred outflow of resources-OPEB

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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10,920,440

374,521
250,000
219,589
161,673
885,382
1,147,259
282,927
1,196,489
250,000

4,767,840

163,828
225,725
6,034,409
227.720

22,339,962

1,099,273

45,648,144
3,613,106
3,986,961

50,990
656,882
(35,827,745)

18,128,338
304,967
9,312,722

27,746,027

28,845,300

51,185,262

229,187
713,301
210,880

1,153,368

52,338,630

(continued)
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CAMERON COUNTY, TEXAS
INTERNATIONAL TOLL BRIDGE SYSTEM
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 77,236
Wages & fringe payable 82,611

Due to other agencies 1,502,653

Due to other funds 2,073,724
Unearned revenue 430,473
Compensated absences payable 34,031
Accrued interest payable 108,521

Tax notes, current 35,209
Bonds, current 1,259,579

Net pension liability 137,685
OPEB liability 51.916
Total Current Liabilities 5,793,638

Long-Term Liabilities:

Compensated absences payable 13,704
Leasehold deposits 18,750

Tax notes, non-current 194,351
Bonds, non-current 18,512,838

Net pension liability 107,202
OPEB liability 1,579,964
Total Long-Term Liabilities 20,426,809
TOTAL LIABILITIES 26.220.447

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES

Deferred inflows of resources-Leases 1,254,858
Deferred inflows of resources-Pension 139,544
Deferred inflows of resources-OPEB 377,643
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES 1,772,045
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES 27,992,492
NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 16,069,097

Restricted for:
Bond debt service 1,741,369
Bond debt reserve 444,600
Unrestricted 6,091,072
TOTAL NET POSITION 24,346,138

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
AND NET POSITION 3 52,338,630

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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INTERNATIONAL TOLL BRIDGE SYSTEM
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

OPERATING REVENUES
Tolls
Rental income
Other

CAMERON COUNTY, TEXAS

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and wages
Fringe benefits & payroll taxes
Supplies
Uniforms
Auditing
Pension expense (income)
OPEB expense (income)
Professional services
Repairs and maintenance
Utilities
Advertising
Insurance
Contractual
Depreciation
Other

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Interest income

Amortization of bond discount
Amortization of bond premium
Interest and fiscal charges

Aid from (to) other governments

TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
INCOME BEFORE TRANSFERS

Transfer in
Transfer (out)

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

Net Position - beginning
Net Position - ending

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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$

22,084,747
242,927
310.490

22,638,164

2,446,702
1,203,308
125,844
23,377
19,941
(362,672)
(78,360)
92,000
125,676
195,096
56,639
112,939
727,286
1,416,660
80,187

6,184.623

16,453,541

1,133,453
(35,717)
7,462
(774,628)
(5,377,075)

(5.046.505)

11,407,036

91,012
(11,307,316)

190,732

24.155.406

$

24.346.138
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CAMERON COUNTY, TEXAS

INTERNATIONAL TOLL BRIDGE SYSTEM

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Cash received from customers
Cash received from other operating activities
Cash payments for goods and services

Cash payments to employees
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Non-Capital Financing Activities:
Transfers in
Transfers (out)
Interfund loan repayments
Intergovernmental agreements
Net Cash Used for Non-Capital Financing Activities

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Payments for capital acquisitions
Debt premium and discount
Interest and fiscal agent fees
Principal payments on long-term debt
Debt issuance

Net Cash Provided for Capital and Related
Financing Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Receipts of interest

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR
Displayed as:

Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation
Post employment benefits
Pension
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in prepaids and other assets
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in wages and fringe payable
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences payable
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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22,105,100
553,281

(1,698,987)

(3,635,101)

17,324,293

91,012
(11,307.316)
(17,225,346)

(5.324.018)

(33.765.668)

(3,105,853)
466,448

(720,739)

(1,140,963)
9,101,003

4,599,896

1,133,453

1,133,453

(10,708,026)
26,396,306

15,688,280

10,920,440
4,767.840

15.688.280

16,453,541

1,416,660
(78,360)
(362,672)
(136)
(99,433)
(40,571)

18,925
(4,016)

20,355

17,324,293
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CAMERON COUNTY, TEXAS

INTERNATIONAL TOLL BRIDGE SYSTEM
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of Cameron County International Toll Bridge System (the “Bridge System”) have been
prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP)
applicable to state and local governments. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the
accepted standards setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.
The most significant accounting and reporting policies of the Bridge System are described in the following
notes to the financial statements.

A. Reporting Entity

Cameron County, Texas, (“County”), a public corporation and a political subdivision of the State of Texas,
through its Bridge System, owns and operates three (3) international toll bridges connecting the United
States and Mexico. Two international bridges connect Brownsville, Texas with Matamoros, Mexico and
one is located south of the cities of Harlingen and San Benito, Texas. The Veteran’s International Toll
Bridge at Los Tomates and the Free-Trade Bridge at Los Indios surplus bridge revenues are distributed
according to interlocal agreements between Cameron County and certain municipalities within the County.

B. Basis of Accounting

The Bridge System is an enterprise fund of County and is self-sustaining for all of its operations as well as
a valuable funding tool for the County. The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the
“gconomic resources” measurement focus using the accrual basis of accounting. The Bridge System reports
as a Business Type Activity, as defined by GASB Statement No. 34. Business Type Activities are those
that are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods and services. The Bridge
System applies GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements and Management's Discussion and
Analysis for State and Local Governments (GASB 34) as amended by GASB Statement 37. This Statement
established standards for external financial reporting for state and local governments and requires that
resources be classified for accounting and reporting purposed into the following net position categories:

Net investment in capital assets: Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation,
reduced by outstanding balances of debt attributable to the acquisitions, construction
or improvement of those assets.

Restricted: Net position whose use by the Bridge System is subject to externally
imposed stipulations that can be fulfilled by actions of the Bridge System pursuant to
those stipulations or that expire by the passage of time.

Unrestricted: Remaining net position that does not meet the definition of “net
investment in capital assets” or “restricted.”

(This area intentionally left blank)
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CAMERON COUNTY, TEXAS

INTERNATIONAL TOLL BRIDGE SYSTEM
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

B. Basis of Accounting (continued)

GASB Statement No. 87, Leases - The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information needs of
financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments. This
Statement increases the usefulness of governments’ financial statements by requiring recognition of certain
lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as
inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. It establishes
a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the
right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and
an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred
inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about governments’
leasing activities.

C. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Bridge System considers cash on hand and deposits at banks as well as all highly liquid investments
purchased with a maturity of three (3) months or less or with no stated maturity to be cash equivalents. The
Bridge System records investments at fair value in accordance with provisions of GASB Statement No. 31,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools as
superseded by GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application. All investment income
is recognized as revenue in the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in net position.

D. Receivables

Reimbursements and billable services are recorded as receivables and revenues when they are eamed in the
Bridge System statements.

Lending or borrowing between County funds is reflected as “due to or from.”
E. Inventories and Prepaid items

Inventory and prepaids consists of expendable supplies held for consumption. Inventory is valued at
average cost. The cost is recorded as expenditure at the time the inventory and prepaid items are used.

(This area intentionally left blank)
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CAMERON COUNTY, TEXAS

INTERNATIONAL TOLL BRIDGE SYSTEM
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

F. Leases

Leases are defined as contractual agreements that conveys control of the right-to-use another entity’s
nonfinancial asset (the underlying asset) as specified in the contract for a period of time in an exchange or
exchange-like transaction. The lease term is defined as the period during which a lessee has a
noncancelable right-to-use an underlying asset, plus any applicable periods covered by any renewal options
that are reasonably certain to be exercised, or options to terminate that are reasonably certain to be
exercised. Contracts that transfer ownership of the underlying asset are recognized as financed purchases
in the financial statements. Leases that have a maximum term of less than 12 months are considered short-
term leases. Short-term lease payments are recognized in the period of payment.

As a lessor, the Bridge System recognizes a lease receivable and a corresponding deferred inflow of
resources is measured at the present value of lease payments expected to be received during the lease term
discounted at either the explicit interest rate or the Bridge’s System estimated rate of return on investment.
Under the lease agreements, the Bridge System may receive variable lease payments that are dependent
upon the lessee’s revenue. The variable payments are recorded as an inflow of resources in the period the
payment is received. A deferred inflow of resources is recorded for the lease. The deferred inflow of
resources is recorded at the initiation of the lease in an amount equal to the initial recording of the lease
receivable. The deferred inflow of resources is amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

. Capital Assets

Capital assets are defined as assets with a cost value of $5,000 or more and a useful life greater than a
reporting period. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add value or materially extend
assets lives are not capitalized. Constructed or purchased assets are recorded at historical cost.
Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis over the following
estimated useful lives:

ASSETS YEARS
Buildings 40
Furniture and Fixtures 5
General Equipment 5
Trucks 6
Computer Hardware 5
Infrastructure 30

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net assets that applies to a future periods.
Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net assets that applies to future periods and will
not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.

The Bridge System deferred outflows consist of deferred costs on refunding debt obligations that are
applicable to future period(s). In reporting advance refunding of debt, the difference between the
reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the old debt is recorded as deferred charges on refunding
and reported as a deferred outflow of resources. These costs are amortized as components of interest
expense over the shorter of the remaining life of the refunding or the refunded debt. For the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2024, deferred outflow of resources due to refunding debt was recognized under the
Bridges System statements in the amount of $229,187.
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
H. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources (continued)

The Bridge System reports changes in Net OPEB Liability as OPEB expense or reported as deferred
outflows/inflows of resources depending on the nature of the change. The OPEB expense totaled $106,640
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2024.

The Bridge System reports deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to its pension. For the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2024, pension expense/(income) totaled $128,275 and deferred outflows/inflows were
as follows:

e Pension contributions after the measurement date — these contributions are deferred and
recognized the following fiscal year.

s Difference in projected and actual earnings on pension costs — investment (gains)/losses are
recognized in pension expense over a period of five years.

e Difference in expected and actual pension experience — economic/demographic
(gains)/losses and assumption changes or inputs are recognized over the rounded average
remaining service life for all active, inactive, and retired members.

I. Compensated Absences

A liability for unused vacation and compensatory time for all full time employees is calculated and reported
in the Bridge System statements. For financial reporting, the following criteria must be met to be
considered compensated absences;

a. leave or compensation is attributable to services already rendered
b. leave or compensation is not contingent on a specific event (such as illness)

Per GASB Interpretation No. 6, liabilities for compensated absences are recognized in the fund statements
to the extent the liabilities have matured (i.e. are due for payment). Compensated absences are accrued in
the Bridges System statements.

The Bridge’s System permanent, full-time employees accrue vacation leave at 3.08 hours per biweekly pay
period from date of employment to five years of service, 4.62 hours per pay period from 5 years to 15 years
of service and 6.16 hours per pay period in excess of 15 years of continuous employment. The maximum
accrual is two, three or four weeks of vacation for the respective accrual categories specified. Upon
termination from Bridge System employment, an employee shall be entitled to payment for total accrued
but unused hours of vacation.

J. Unemployment and Workers’ Compensation Benefits

The Bridges System is a reimbursing employer for unemployment compensation benefits. The Bridge
System processes workers’ compensation payments through a third-party administrator as the claims
become due. These obligations are budgeted and paid from current resources.

K. Long-Term Obligations

In the Bridge System financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as
liabilities under the statement of net position. Bond/Tax Note premiums and discounts, as well as prepaid
insurance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bond/tax note. Issuance costs are recognized
as an expense in the period incurred.

22



Page 31 of 209

CAMERON COUNTY, TEXAS

INTERNATIONAL TOLL BRIDGE SYSTEM
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

L. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

M. Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated subsequent events through April 4, 2025, the date the financial statements were
available to be issued.

Note 2 — Deposits, Including Certificates of Deposit

The Bridge System considers account balances in demand deposit accounts and certificates of deposit with
a maturity of less than three months to be cash equivalents. It is the Cameron County’s policy for cash to
be 105% secured by collateral valued at market or par, whichever is lower, less the amount insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). At September 30, 2024, the Bridge System cash, cash
equivalents and restricted cash totaled $15,688,280. Demand deposits were insured by the County’s
depository institution at $250,000 through FDIC and collateralized for amounts above the FDIC limits by
pledged securities in the Cameron County’s name. Collateral that is pledged to Cameron County complies
with the depository contract requirements, County Investment Policy and Procedures Section 9.01 and
Government Code Title 10, Chapters 2256 and 2257.

GASB 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application requires disclosures regarding investments that
calculate net asset value per share (or its equivalent). It addresses accounting and financial reporting issues
related to fair value measurements by providing guidance for determining fair value for financial reporting
purposes. All investments of the Bridge System have a determining fair value for financial reporting
purposes.

GASB 79, Certain External Investment Pools and Pool Participation certain disclosures for an external
investment pool to measure investments at amortized cost for financial reporting purposes. Cameton
County’s participation in investment pools does not meet the reporting criteria of this statement.

As of September 30, 2024, the Bridge System’s carrying amount of deposits and investments are illustrated

below:

Current Assets: Fair Value
Cash and cash equivalents $10,920,440
Restricted Assets:

Construction Fund 2.081.871
Bond Debt Reserve 444,600
Bond Debt Service 1,741,369
Operating Reserve 500.000

TOTAL $15.688.280
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Note 3 — Investments

Investments are under the custody of the Cameron County Treasurer. Investing is performed in accordance
with investment policies complying with State Statutes (Texas Government Code, Title 10, Chapter 2256
V.T.C.A GOVT Sec. 2256, as amended by Act 1995, 74* Legislature, Chapter 402, Section 1, effective
September 1, 1995). This law requires the government entity to maintain safety of principal, maintenance
of adequate liquidity, desired diversification to maximize rate of return with the previous considerations
and have portfolio maturities structured to achieve the highest rate of return of interest consistent with
liquidity requirements of the cash needs. The County’s Investment Policy and Funds Strategy is consistent
with this law and states that it will be the objective of Cameron County to earn the maximum rate of return
on its investments within the policies imposed by its safety and liquidity objectives and state and federal
law governing investment of public funds.

Custodial Credit Risk — In accordance with the County’s investment policy, the County shall require
monthly reports with market values of pledged securities from all financial institutions with which the
County has collateralized deposits. The Investment Officer will monitor adequacy of collateralization
levels to verify market values and total collateral positions.

Credit Risk - The County identifies and manages credit risk by following the Investment Policy. The
Investment Officer implements its investment strategy, establishes and monitors compliance with
investment policies and procedures and consistently monitors prudent risk controls. The Cameron County
seeks to control its risk of loss by monitoring the ratings of portfolio positions to assure compliance with
the rating requirements imposed by the Public Funds Investment Act.

The County specifically addresses credit risk in stating that all county funds are fully collateralized or
insured consistent with federal and state law in one or more of the following manners:

FDIC insurance coverage

United States Government Bonds, Notes and Bills,

Securities of federally sponsored U. S. Agencies and instrumentality’s of the United States
Government and/or obligations, including Letters of credit, of the United States or its agencies and
instrumentalities,

e Letters of credit of the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities,

e No Collateralized Mortgage Obligations are acceptable.

Concentration of Credit Risk — In accordance with the Investment Policy, the County will manage its credit
risk exposure through diversification and limiting its investments in each government-sponsored security to
eliminate the risk of loss resulting from over concentration of liquid assets with a specific maturity, a
specific issuer or a specific class of investments.

Cameron County has investments with Lone Star Investment Pool, managed by First Public, LLC, the State
of Texas investment pool available to governmental entities. Lone Star is neither a registered investment
pool with the SEC nor backed by pledged collateral, but the underlying investments are mutual funds, U.S.
Treasury Bonds, T-bills, government agency securities and repurchase agreements allowed under the
Public Funds Investment Act as described by V.T.C.A., Title 10, Government Code, Section 2256.
Investments are stated at fair value, which approximates fair value. Lone Star’s portfolio has low market
risk due to restrictions on weighted average maturity and maximum maturity of any one investment and is
rated AAA by Standard & Poor. Lone Star’s investment portfolio is required to maintain a stable $1 net
asset value. The Lone Star Investment Pool is governed by a Board of Trustees (Board) who is devoted to
running an investment pool with superior level of safety and protection of investments.

24



Page 33 of 209

CAMERON COUNTY, TEXAS

INTERNATIONAL TOLL BRIDGE SYSTEM
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Note 4 — Interfund Receivables and Payables

The Bridge System operates three international toll bridges: 1) Veteran’s International Toll Bridge at Los
Tomates (Veterans), 2) Free Trade Bridge at Los Indios (Free Trade) and 3) Gateway International Toll Bridge
(Gateway). Intra-system receivables and payables are reflected in the individual bridge statements; however,
the intra-system transfers, receivable and payables are not reflected in the System-wide statements of this
report.

Interfund Interfund

Fund Receivable Payable
Veterans Bridge $1,674,494 $2,573,057
Free Trade Bridge 1,862,346 1,083,184
Gateway Bridge 167,832 48,431
Total $3,704,672  $3,740.672

Note 5 — Lease Receivable

The Bridge System has entered into agreements to lease certain assets as a lessor. The lease agreements
qualify as other than short-term leases under GASB 87 and, therefore, have been recorded at the present
value of the future minimum lease payments as of the date of their inception.

Land agreement effective July 1, 2020 requires 120 monthly payments of $20,000. There are no variable
payment components of the lease. The lease receivable is measured at the present value of the future
minimum rent payments expected to be received during the lease term at a discount rate of 2.7%, which is
the estimated rate of return on investments. For fiscal year ended September 30, 2023, the Bridge System
recognized $210,124 of lease revenue and $37,450 of interest revenue under the lease.

Land agreement effective June 19, 2022 requires 60 monthly payments of $1,560. There are no variable
payment components of the lease. The lease receivable is measured at the present value of the future
minimum rent payments expected to be received during the lease term at a discount rate of 2.7%, which is
the estimated rate of return on investments. For fiscal year ended September 30, 2023, the Bridge System
recognized $17,493 of lease revenue and $1,551 of interest revenue under the lease.

The net present value of the future minimum less lease payments to be received as of September 30, 2024
are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

September 30, Principal Interest Total
2025 $ 225,725 $ 32,995 $ 258,720
2026 231,895 26,825 258,720
2027 231,974 20,507 252,481
2028 225,623 14,377 240,000
Thereafter 409,781 10,219 420,000
TOTAL $ 1,324,998 $104,923 $ 1,429,921
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Note 6 — Capital Assets

Capital assets consisted of the following at September 30, 2024:

Beginning Ending
Balance Balance
9/30/2023 Increases Decreases 9/30/2024
Depreciable Assets:
Toll bridges and approaches $ 38,944,752 § 6,703,392 $ - $ 45,648,144
Toll booths and equipment 3,567,374 45,732 - 3,613,106
Buildings 3,986,961 - - 3,986,961
Furiture and fixtures 50,990 - - 50,990
Autos and machinery 656,882 - - 656,882
Less: accumulated depreciation (34.411,084) (1,416,660) s (35,827.745)
Net Depreciable Assets 12,795,875 5,332,464 # 18,128,338
Non-Depreciable Assets: -
Construction work in progress 3,948,238 (3,643,271) - 304,967
Land 9,312,722 - = 9,312,722
TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS, NET  $26,056,835 $ 1,689,193 $ - $ 27,746,027

Depreciation expense totaled $1,416,660 for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2024.
Note 7 - Long-Term Debt

A. Tax Notes

Tax Notes are issued pursuant to the general laws of the State of Texas, Chapters 1371 and 1431, Texas
Government Code and are direct obligations of the County, payable from the levy and collection of an ad
valorem tax, within the limits prescribed by law, on all taxable property in the County. :

The County issued $7,115,000 Cameron County, Texas Tax Notes, Series 2024 dated March 26, 2024 for the
purpose of purchasing heavy equipment, patrol vehicles, non-law enforcement vehicles, computer equipment,
maintenance equipment, other miscellaneous items and the paying of costs of issuance. Bridge System received
proceeds of $99,604 from this issuance with premium costs of $7,467 and bond issuance costs of $2,068.
Payments are due semiannually on February 15 and August 15, maturing on February 15, 2031 with interest rates
of 5.00%. As of September 30, 2024, principal balance of $99,604 is attributable to the International Bridge
System.

Cameron County issued $6,850,000 Cameron County, Texas Tax Notes, Series 2022 dated May 5, 2022 for the
purpose of purchasing equipment, and the paying costs of issuance. Payments are due semiannually on February
15" and August 15%, maturing on February 15, 2029 with interest rates of 5.00%. Proceeds received were
$6,973,342 with premium costs of $693,342 and bond issuance cost of $33,757. Cameron County Bridge
System received proceeds of $99,500 from this issuance. As of September 30, 2024, principal balance of
$86,572 is attributable to the International Bridge System.

Cameron County issued $5,570,000 Cameron County, Texas Tax Notes, Series 2020 dated February 1, 2020 for
the purpose of providing for the payment of contractual obligations to be incurred in connection with the
purchase of equipment, technology upgrades for County departments, vehicles, HVAC and cooling system
improvements to County buildings, costs of issuing the Notes and payment of contractual obligations for
professional services rendered in connection therewith. Payments are due semiannually on February 15t and
August 15% maturing on February 15, 2025 with interest rates of 5.00%. Proceeds received were $6,096,346
with premium costs of $646,858 and issuance costs of $120,512. Cameron County International Toll Bridge
System received proceeds of $137,793 from this issuance. As of September 30, 2024, principal balance of
$27,801 is attributable to the International Bridge System.
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Note 7 - Long-Term Debt (Continued)

A. Tax Notes (continued)

The annual requirements to amortize the amounts outstanding attributable to Bridges System as of September 30,
2024, including estimated interest payments of $33,645 are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending
September 30, Principal Interest Total
2025 $ 35,209 $ 9,819 $ 45,028
2026 33,004 8,113 41,117
2027 34,575 6,424 40,999
2028 36,362 4,650 41,012
2029 38,219 2,786 41,005
Thereafter 36,608 1,853 38,461
213,977 33,645 247,622
Unamortized
premium 15,583 - 15,583
TOTAL $229,560 $ 33,645 $ 263,205

B. Bonds

During the period in which the bonds are outstanding, the International Toll Bridge Bond Resolution and Order
require the County to create and maintain certain accounts or "funds" to receive the gross revenues derived from
the operations of the System. In accordance with the terms of the Bond Resolution, these assets can be used 1)
to pay the maintenance and operating expenses of the System, 2) to pay the debt service costs of the System's
revenue bonds and 3) to pay for any ordinary maintenance, repairs, or replacements to the System's property.
Any remaining revenues may be transferred to other County funds or used for the purchase of the System's
outstanding revenue bonds at a price less than par and accrued interest.

The County issued Certificates of Obligation, Series 2024 for a total amount of $35,040,000 on April 30, 2024.
Bridge System received proceeds of $5,606,400 from this issuance with premium costs of $466,878 and bond
issuance costs of $73,278. The Certificates are being issued for the purpose of providing payment of
contractual obligations to be incurred for the design, planning, acquisition, equipping, construction, expansion,
repair and/or renovation of public property. Payments are due semiannually on February 15 and August 15,
maturing on February 15, 2044 with interest rates from 4.0% to 5.0%. As of September 30, 2024, principal
balance totaled $5,606,400.

Cameron County issued $6,050,000 International Toll Bridge System Revenue Bonds, Taxable Series 2022
dated June 9, 2022 to pay for the purpose of making improvements to the Veterans International Toll Bridge,
funding a reserve fund, and payment of the costs of issuance. The Bonds are secured by and payable from a
pledge of and lien on the Net Revenues of the County's Toll Bridge System. The annual interest rate is 4.0%.
Interest accrues semiannually and the bonds mature in fiscal year 2042. As of September 30, 2024, principal
balance totaled $5,680,000. '
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Note 7 - Long-Term Debt (Continued)

B. Bonds (continued)

Cameron County issued $17,865,000 Limited Tax Refunding Bonds, Taxable Series 2019 dated October 1,
2019 for the purpose of refunding current outstanding obligations to achieve debt service savings; and to pay
costs related to the issuance of the Bonds; interest rates range from 1.831% to 2.893%. The proceeds were used
to refund $15,115,000 Certificates of Obligation Series 2011 and Limited Tax Refunding Bond, Series 2011,
$1,660,000 with interest rates ranging from 4.0% to 5.0%. The Refunded Bonds were sold at par $17,769,127
less underwriters discount of $95,873; costs of issuance incurred were $171,267. Net proceeds from the
Refunding Obligations were deposited with Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., Dallas, Texas
(the “Escrow Agent,”) pursuant to Escrow Agreement between the Issuer and the Escrow Agent. The “Order”
provides that proceeds of the sale of the Refunding Bonds and available funds of the Issuer will be sufficient to
the discharge and final payment of the Refunded Obligations. The Escrow Fund is irrevocably pledged to the
payment of principal and interest on the Refunded Obligations. The mathematical accuracy of payment
schedules have been vetted by “Verification Agent”. By the deposit of the Governmental Obligations and cash
with the Escrow Agent pursuant to the Escrow Agreement, the Issuer has entered into a firm banking and
financial arrangement for the final payment and discharge of the Refunded Obligations pursuant to the terms of
the Order and the Refunded Obligations are deemed to be no longer outstanding, except for the purpose of
being paid from the funds held in such Escrow Fund. As of September 30, 2024, principal balance of
$2,141,323 is attributable to the International Toll Bridge System.

On February 12, 2015 Cameron County issued $18,100,000 Limited Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2015 with
interest rates ranging from 3.0% to 5.0%. The proceeds were used to refund $525,000 Unlimited Tax Road
Bonds, Series 2005, $5,645,000 Certificates of Obligation, Series 2007, $10,490,000 Certificates of Obligation,
Series 2008 and $1,675,000 Unlimited Tax Road Bonds, Series 2008 with interest rates ranging from 4.00% to
6.125%. The 2014 Limited Tax Refunding Bonds carried an initial principal amount of $18,335,000 but were
sold at a net premium of $2,338,519. Cameron County cash contribution of $177,529 and incurred issuance
cost, insurance premium and underwriting fees of $283,639 the net proceeds were $20,332,410. The net
proceeds from the issuance of the Limited Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2015 were deposited in the Escrow
Fund to refund the Refunding Obligations. The accuracy and sufficiency of such deposits to make payments
has been confirmed by the Financial Advisor and such amounts will be held in an escrow fund under an Escrow
Agreement dated March 1, 2015 between the Issuer and the Escrow Agent. Funds held by the Escrow Agent
are irrevocably pledged to the payment of principal and interest on the Refunded Obligations and will be used to
purchase certain United States obligations and obligations of agencies or instrumentalities of the United States.
The advance refunding by Cameron County has effected the defeasance of the Refunded Obligations in
accordance with Law. The Refunded Obligations are deemed to be fully paid and no longer outstanding except
for the purpose of being paid from the Federal Securities and funds as provided for in the Escrow Agreement.
The purpose of this Refunding was to restructure debt service payments, to obtain net present value savings of
$1,587,781 and for the payment of related Refunding Bond issuance costs. As of September 30, 2024, principal
balance of $2,485,735 is attributable to the International Bridge System.

(This area intentionally left blank)
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Note 7 - Long-Term Debt (Continued)

B. Bonds (continued)

The annual requirements to amortize the amounts outstanding attributable to Bridges System as of September
30, 2024, including estimated interest payments of $8,055,728 are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending
September 30, Principal Interest Total
2025 $ 1,259,579 $ 810,412 $ 2,069,991
2026 1,466,184 751,882 2,218,066
2027 1,516,734 693,951 2,210,685
2028 1,347,372 643,928 1991,300
2029 898,113 602,400 1,500,513
2030-2034 4,022,675 2,477,618 6,500,293
2035-2039 4,284,200 1,578,502 5,862,702
2040-2043 4,513,600 497,035 5,010,635
19,308,457 8,055,728 27,364,185
Unamortized
Premium 463,960 - 463,960
TOTAL $19,772,417 $8,055.728 $27.828.145

Interest expense on long-term debt totaled $610,748 for the Bridge System’s fiscal year ended September 30,
2024,

Note 8 — Commitments
A. Free Trade Bridge at Los Indios

On June 3, 1991, Cameron County executed interlocal agreements with the City of San Benito, Texas and the
City of Harlingen, Texas, whereby the County would finance and construct an international bridge. This Free
Trade Bridge at Los Indios is located approximately eight miles south of the cities of Harlingen and San Benito.

The County is the legal owner and operator of the bridge on the United States side of the border; however, in
event of a revenue shortfall, the Cities have obligated themselves to pay twenty-five percent (25%) each, not to
exceed the sum of $200,000 each annually, of any deficiencies in the annual debt service requirements for the
Los Indios International Toll Bridge revenue bonds, any capital expenditures not paid from bond proceeds, and
any net losses before transfers excluding depreciation and including or excluding interlocal agreement revenues
(or expenses) of the Free Trade International Bridge at Los Indios. Any surplus revenues remaining after
payment of the debt service requirements, maintenance and operating costs will be shared between the Cities
and the County as per interlocal agreements.

The results of operations for the Free Trade Bridge at Los Indios for the fiscal year eneded September 30, 2024
produced a $1,780,227 surplus as defined by the interlocal agreement between the entities and the County. The
County’s share of the interlocal agreement proceeds is $891,173. Each participating entity is entitled to a
combined total of $889,054 for their share of the year’s operations as defined under the interlocal agreement.

29



Page 38 of 209

CAMERON COUNTY, TEXAS

INTERNATIONAL TOLL BRIDGE SYSTEM
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Note 8 — Commitments (Continued)
B. Veteran’s International Toll Bridge at Los Tomates (continued)

On January 12, 1990, Cameron County executed an interlocal agreement with the City of Brownsville, Texas
whereby the County would finance, construct and operate an international toll bridge located in Southeast
Brownsville, Texas, approximately two miles east of Gateway International Toll Bridge, herein referred to as
"Los Tomates International Bridge," located between Brownsville, Texas and Matamoros, Tamaulipas, Mexico.
Revenue Bonds were issued on parity with any additional International Toll Bridge Bonds, for the construction
of the international bridge and were outstanding from the revenues of the County's Toll Bridge System.
Cameron County, Texas is the legal owner and operator of this bridge; however, the City of Brownsville has
obligated itself to pay fifty percent (50%), not to exceed the sum of $400,000 annually, of any deficiencies in
the annual debt service requirements for the proposed revenue bonds issued to finance the Los Tomates
International Bridge. Revenue Bond Debt obligation issued for this construction has been extinguished. Any
surplus revenues remaining after payment of the debt service requirements, maintenance and operation costs,
and an amount equal to one hundred forty percent (140%) of the average annual debt service requirements of all
outstanding bonds will be shared equally between the City and the County. The Debt Reserve funds set aside to
provide for the Veteran’s International Toll Bridge at Los Tomates (VITB) is funded at 140% of the highest
annual debt service level. Unless additional debt is incurred, further allocation of bridge proceeds to fund the
VITB Debt Reserve is unnecessary.

The City of Brownsville does not retain an equity interest in the project, which is considered a cooperative
arrangement between the governments rather than a joint venture. The results of operations for the Veterans
Bridge at Lost Tomates for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2024, produced a $8,988,044 surplus as defined
by the interlocal agreement between the entities and the County.

The following is a summary of the interlocal transactions between the City of Brownsville and the County:

Year Ended City of Total Surplus
September 30, Cameron County Brownsville (Deficiency)
2024 $4,500,022 $4,488,022 $8,988,044
2023 4,809,359 4,809,359 9,618,718
2022 3,362,213 3,362,213 6,724,426
2021 2,805,450 2,805,450 5,610,900
2020 2,342,865 2,342,865 4,685,730
2019 3,097,696 3,097,696 6,195,392
2018 2,664,756 2,664,756 5,329,512
2017 2,552,857 2,552,857 5,105,714
2016 2,411,486 2,411,486 4,822,972
2015 1,876,662 1,876,662 3,753,324

(This area intentionally left blank)
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Note 9 — Retirement Plan
A. Plan Description

The Cameron County provides retirement, disability and death benefits, for all of its full-time employees
through a nontraditional defined benefit pension plan administered by the statewide, public employee
Texas County and District Retirement System (TCDRS). The Board of Trustees of TCDRS is responsible
for the administration of the statewide agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system
consisting of approximately 800 counties and districts pension plans.

TCDRS issues an aggregate annual comprehensive financial report on a calendar year basis. The ACFR is
available on the TCDRS website at www.TCDRS.org or upon request from the TCDRS Board of Trustees
at P.O. Box 2034, Austin, TX 78768-2034.

The plan’s provisions are adopted by the governing body of the employer, within the options available in
the state statutes governing TCDRS (TCDRS Act). Members can retire at ages 60 and above with 8 or more
years of service or with 30 years of service regardless of age, or when the sum of their age and years of
service equals 75 or more. Members are vested after 8 years of service but must leave their accumulated
contributions in the plan to receive any employer-financed benefit. Members who withdraw their personal
contributions in a lump sum are not entitled to any amounts contributed by their employer.

Benefit amounts are determined by the sum of the employee's contributions to the plan, with interest, and
employer-financed monetary credits, with interest. The level of these monetary credits is adopted by the
governing body of the employer within the actuarial constraints imposed by the TCDRS Act so that the
resulting benefits can be adequately financed by the employer's commitment to contribute. At retirement,
death, or disability, the benefit is calculated by converting the sum of the employee’s accumulated
contributions and the employer-financed monetary credits to a monthly annuity using annuity purchase
rates prescribed by the TCDRS Act.

The employer has elected the annually determined contribution rate (ADCR) plan provisions of the TCDRS
Act. The plan is funded by monthly contributions from both employee members and the employer based on
the covered payroll of employee members. Under the TCDRS Act, the contribution rate of the employer is
actuarially determined annually. The employer’s contribution is determined using an actuarially determined
rate of 12.20% for the months of the calendar year in 2022 and 11.30% for the months of the calendar year
in 2023. As of December 31, 2023, the Summary Valuation for the County’s TCDRS plan recognized an
investment loss. In cases where there are deferred actuarial gains in the prior years, any current year
actuarial loss is offset against the oldest actuarial gain. If any current year actuarial loss remains after the
initial offset, the remainder is offset against the next oldest gain and so on.

The contribution rate payable by the employee members for the calendar years 2022 and 2023 is the rate of
7.00% as adopted by the govemning body of the employer. The employee contribution rate and the
employer contribution rate may be changed by the governing body of the employer within the options
available in the TCDRS Act. For the Cameron County’s fiscal year ended September 30, 2024, the actual
employer contributions were $9,818,929 and were equal to the required contribution.

County Pension Plan Provisions

Employee Deposit Rate 7%
Employee Matching 200 %
Prior Service Credit 160 %
Retirement Eligibility
Age 60 (vesting) 8 years of services
Rule of 75 years total age + service
At any age 30 years of service
Optional Benefits
Partial Lump-Sum Payment at Retirement Yes
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Note 9 — Retirement Plan (Continued)
A. Plan Description (continued)

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), Statement No. 68 provides accounting and financial
reporting standards for public pension plan obligations for employers. GASB 68 requires the Net Pension
Liability (NPL) or Net Pension Asset (NPA) to be recognized on the balance sheets of participating
employers. The allocated Net Pension Liability (NPL) for the Bridge System totaled $244,887, and the
recognized pension expense (income) totaled $128,725 for fiscal year ended September 30, 2024.

Note 10 — Other Post-Employment Benefits
A. Post-Retirement Benefits

Texas Local Government Code, Chapter 175 requires counties make available continued health benefit
coverage to retirees and their dependents beyond the end of an individual’s employment with County.
Texas Law does not require counties to fund all or any portion of such coverage. Effective October 1, 2007,
County discontinued medical coverage after age 65. The County may incur a debt obligation to pay for
OPEB cost for its retired employees so long as the County follows the constitutional requirement that it
have sufficient taxing authority available at the time such debt is incurred to provide the payment of the
debt and has levied a tax for such purpose. Information and amounts presented in the County’s Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report relative to OPEB expense/expenditures, related liabilities (assets), note
disclosures, and supplementary information are only intended to achieve compliance with the requirements
of generally accepted accounting principles (GASB 75) and does not constitute or imply that the County
has made a commitment or is legally obligated to provide OPEB benefits. Cameron County has not
incurred a legal debt obligation for OPEB nor has it levied a tax for the same. The County does not have a
separate audited GAAP basis postemployment benefit plan report available for defined benefit plans.
Currently, the County funds costs associated with OPEB on a current “pay as you go” basis for each single
year through annual appropriations authorized by Commissioners Court during the annual County Budget
Adoption Process.

B. The Plan: Health Insurance Benefit

Cameron County administers a single-employer defined health benefit plan that covers employees, retirees
and their spouses. Benefits provided by the Cameron County to retirees only includes medical benefits for
which the retiree pays a monthly premium. This benefit is not available after retiree reaches the age of 65.
The plan provisions allow members to retire upon attaining age 60 with 8 or more years of service or when
the sum of their age and years of service equals 75 or more.

Dependents of retirees who are not eligible for Medicare are also eligible for coverage while retiree is alive
but they must pay for dependent coverage. Participants under disability are eligible for continued medical
coverage under COBRA but must pay the full premium.

After COBRA expires, there is no additional medical coverage for disabled participants. Cameron County
does not offer dental, vision or hearing medical benefits to retirees. Transactions are recorded using the
accrual basis of accounting. Plan member and employer contributions are recognized in the period for
which the contributions are due. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable. Cameron
County does not pre-fund benefits. Benefits are paid directly from general assets on a pay-as-go basis and
there is no trust for accumulating plan assets. Local Government Code Section 157.101 assigns the
authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to Commissioner’s Court.
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Note 10 — Other Post-Employment Benefits (Continued)
B. The Plan: Health Insurance Benefit (continued)
Monthly medical contributions required by retirees are as follows:

Retiree  Retiree & Spouse  Retiree & | Child Retiree & Children Retiree & Family
Medical/TX  $250.78 $ 57598 $ 50098 $ 53223 $ 657.23

Cameron County’s membership in the plan at 10/1/23, the date of the latest actuarial valuation, consists of
the following:

Active Members 1,543
Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits: 33
Spouses of Retirees 10
Total 1,586

The valuation date of GASB 75 for Cameron County is October 1, 2023, the date as of which the actuarial
valuation was performed. Measurement date is September 30, 2024, the entity’s fiscal year end. The
OPEB liability was determined as of September 30, 2024 which is the reporting date. There have been no
significant changes between the valuation date and the fiscal year end.

Valuation Date October 1, 2023

Measurement Date September 30, 2024

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Discount Rate September 30, 2023 4.09%
September 30, 2024 3.81%

The discount rate is based on the Bond Buyer's 20 year General Obligation Index immediately prior to or
coincident with the measurement date.

Inflation 2.30% per annum

Price inflation from December 31, 2023 actuarial report from TCDRS.

Medical OPEB Liability September 30, 2023 September 30, 2024
Bridge System OPEB Liability $ 1,436,114 $ 1,370,567
Covered Payroll 2,184,312 2,160,644
OPEB Liability a % of covered payroll 65.75% 63.43%
OPEB Liability a % of Total OPEB Liability 4.86% 4.45%

Total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of the valuation date, calculated based on
the discount rate and actuarial assumptions and was then projected forward to the measurement dates. Any
significant changes during this period have been reflected as prescribed by GASB 75.
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Note 10 — Other Post-Employment Benefits (Continued)
B. The Plan: Health Insurance Benefit (continued)

Changes in Cameron County's NET - OPEB Liability - Medical

Incr(Decr)
Total OPEB
Liability
Changes in Total OPEB Liability $ 29,569,838
Balance as of September 30, 2023
Changes for the year:
Service Cost 1,793,625
Interest on total OPEB Liability 1;266,124
Effect on assumptions changes or inputs (1,726,195)
Expected benefit payments 710,100
Other (821,967)
Balance as of September 30, 2024 $ 30,791,525

Information presented as CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY is inclusive for the local government of
Cameron County.

The following presents the total OPEB liability of Cameron County, calculated using the 3.81%, as well as
what County’s total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1% point
lower (2.81%) or 1% point higher (4.81%) than the current rate.

1% Decrease  Discount Rate 1% Increase
2.81% 3.81% 4.81%

Total OPEB liability $ 33,442,518 § 30,791,525 $28,322,388

The following represents the total OPEB liability of Cameron County, calculated using the current
healthcare cost trend rates as well as what the County’s total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated
using trend rates that are 1% point lower or 1% point higher than the current trend rates.

Current Trend
1% Decrease Rate 1% Increase
Total OPEB liability $ 27,044,355 $30,791,525  $ 35,244,981

C. OPEB — Multiple Employer Defined Group Term Plan Group Term Life Fund

Cameron County participates in a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined-benefit group term life insurance
plan operated by the Texas County & District Retirement System (TCDRS). This plan is referred to as the
Group Term Life Fund (GTLF). The GTLF retiree death benefit paid from the Group Term Life (GTL)
program is an OPEB benefit. This OPEB program is treated as an unfunded trust, because the GTL
program covers both active and retirees and is not segregated. The TCDRS GTL program is an unfunded
OPEB plan as the GTL fund does not meet the requirements of a trust fund under Paragraph 4b of GASB
75, because the assets of GTL fund can be used to pay active GTL benefits which are not part of the
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Note 10 — Other Post-Employment Benefits (Continued)
C. OPEB - Multiple Employer Defined Group Term Plan Group Term Life Fund (continued)

OPEB plan. For GASB75 purposes the OPEB plan is not a cost sharing plan, so the annual benefit
payments are treated as being equal to the employer’s actual retiree GTL contributions for the year.

Information presented is inclusive for the local government of Cameron County:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023
Total OPEB - GTL Liability $ 3,236,489 $ 3,674,545
Bridge System Liability $ 238,782 $ 261,313

The total OPEB Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of the valuation date, calculated
based on the discount rate and actuarial assumptions below:

Discount Rate: December 31,2022 December 31,2023
Discount rate (1) 3.72% 3.26 %
Long-term expected rate of return, net of investment expenses Does not apply Does not apply
Municipal bond rate 3.72% 326 %

(I)The OPEB plan has been determined to be an unfunded OPEB plan: therefore only the municipal bond
rate applies

Key Actuarial Assumptions:

All actuarial assumptions that determined the total OPEB liability as of December 31, 2023 were based on
the results of an actuarial experience study for the period January 1, 2017 — December 31, 2020, except
where required to be different by GASB 75.

Beginning Date Ending Date
Valuation date December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023
Measurement date December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023
Employer's fiscal year October 1, 2023 September 30, 2024

Changes in Cameron County’s Net - OPEB Liability - GTL

Incr(Decr)
Total OPEB
Liability

Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ 3,236,489
Changes for the year:

Service Cost 91,851

Interest on total OPEB Liability 122,521

Effect on economic/demographic experience (6,345)

Effect on assumptions changes or inputs 300,219

Expected benefit payments (70,190)
Balance as of December 31, 2023 $ 3,674,545

Information listed for OPEB Liability-GTL is inclusive for Cameron County.
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Burton
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& Longoria, ue

Giobal in Reach - Local in fﬂﬂb‘ﬁ |

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

To the Honorable County Judge
and Commissioners' Court
Cameron County, Texas

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements as a whole. The
accompanying supplementary information is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required
part of the basic financial statements.

Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relate directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statementsasawhole.

Bisrcort, Ve Conetboe f Longoeia LLE

Brownsville, Texas
Avpril 4, 2025

BML y Fragoso, S.C. 1950 Paredes Line Road, Brownsville, TX 78521
Matamoros, MX 956-542-2553 « www.bmltexas com
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CAMERON COUNTY, TEXAS
INTERNATIONAL TOLL BRIDGE SYSTEM

GATEWAY INTERNATIONAL TOLL BRIDGE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash & cash equivalents
Restricted Cash:
Bond Debt Service
Operating reserve
Total Restricted Cash
Accounts receivable
Lease receivable
Prepaids
Due from other funds
Total Current Assets
Non-Current Assets:
Lease receivable
Depreciable Capital Assets:
Toll bridges and approaches
Toll booths and equipment
Buildings
Furniture and fixtures
Autos and machinery
Less: accumulated depreciation
Net Depreciable Capital Assets
Construction in progress
Land
Total Capital Assets, net
Total Non-Current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
Deferred charges on refunding
Deferred outflow of resources-Pension
Deferred outflow of resources-OPEB

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
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6,622,674

374,521
250,000

624,521

163,828
225,725
79,417
3,919,550

11,635,715

1,099,273

4,765,889
1,489,619
437,137
24,972
136,794
(6,112,979

741,432
141,061
7,823,926

8,706,419

9,805,692

21,441,407

101,874
268,949
99,281

470,104

21,911,511

(continued)
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CAMERON COUNTY, TEXAS
INTERNATIONAL TOLL BRIDGE SYSTEM
GATEWAY INTERNATIONAL TOLL BRIDGE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 16,170
Wages and fringe payable 24,189
Due to other funds 504,541
Compensated absences payable 4,360
Accrued interest payable 27,485
Tax notes, current 9,997
Bonds, current 276,841
Net pension liability 51,914
OPEB liability 20,238
Total Current Liabilities 935,735
Long-Term Liabilities:
Compensated absences payable 1,755
Leasehold deposits 18,750
Tax notes, non-current 26,048
Bonds, non-current 5,040,587
Net pension liability 40,852
OPEB liability 400,212
Total Long-Term Liabilities 5,528,204
TOTAL LIABILITIES 6,463,939
DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOQURCES
Deferred inflows of resources-Pensions 52,616
Deferred inflows of resources-Leases 1,254,858
Deferred inflows of resources-OPEB 179,573
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES 1,487,047
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES 7,950,986
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 7,206,390
Restricted for:
Bond Debt Service 374,521
Unrestricted 6,379,614
TOTAL NET POSITION 13,960,525

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
AND NET POSITION $ 21,911,511
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CAMERON COUNTY, TEXAS
INTERNATIONAL TOLL BRIDGE SYSTEM
GATEWAY INTERNATIONAL TOLL BRIDGE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

OPERATING REVENUES

Tolls $ 6,633,320
Rental income 228,807
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 6,862,127
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and wages 769,660
Fringe benefits & payroll taxes 393,232
Supplies 27,654
Uniforms 4,530
Auditing 6,647
Pension expense (income) (136,745)
OPEB expense (income) (29,545)
Professional service 92,000
Repairs and maintenance 24,841
Utilities 43,588
Advertising . 13,509
Insurance 40,947
Contractual 195,145
Depreciation 275,462
Other 14,043
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,734,968
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 5,127,159
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest income 570,686
Interest and fiscal charges (170,295)
Amortization of bond discount (15,876)
Amortization of bond premium 3.011
TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 387.526
INCOME BEFORE TRANSFERS 5.514.685
Transfer in 10,096
Transfer (out) (5,524.747)
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 34
Net Position - beginning 13,960,491
Net Position - ending $ 13,960,525
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CAMERON COUNTY, TEXAS
INTERNATIONAL TOLL BRIDGE SYSTEM

FREE TRADE BRIDGE AT LOS INDIOS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash & cash equivalents
Restricted Cash:
Construction fund
Bond debt reserve
Bond debt service
Total Restricted Cash
Due from other funds
Prepaids
Total Current Assets
Non-Current Assets:
Depreciable Captial Assets:
Toll bridges and approaches
Toll booths and equipment
Buildings
Furniture and fixtures
Autos and machinery
Less: accumulated depreciation
Net Depreciable Capital Assets
Construction in Progress
Land
Total Capital Assets, net
Total Non-Current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS
DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES

Deferred outflow of resources-Pensions
Deferred outflow of resources-OPEB

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
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9,653

885,382
161,673
219,589

1,266,644

1,588,510
71,401

2,936,208

7,804,349
798,731
853,645

13,511
176,504
(7,777,000)

1,869,740
163,906
911,393

2,945,039

2.945.039

5,881,247

93,549
5,673

99,222

5,980,469

(continued)
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CAMERON COUNTY, TEXAS
INTERNATIONAL TOLL BRIDGE SYSTEM
FREE TRADE BRIDGE AT LOS INDIOS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 17,860
Wages and fringe payable 12,515

Due to other governments 685,251

Due to other funds 495,656
Unearned revenue 2,067
Compensated absences payable 3,927
Accrued interest payable 15,722

Tax notes, current 6,744
Bonds, current 112,821

Net pension liability 18,057
OPEB liability 4,400
Total Current Liabilities 1,375,020

Long-Term Liabilities:

Compensated absences payable 1,582

Tax notes, non-current 76,823
Bonds, non-current 2,835,716

Net pension liability 12,491
OPEB liability 365,867
Total Long-Term Liabilities 3,292,479
TOTAL LIABILITIES 4,667,499

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES

Deferred inflows of resources-Pensions 18,300
Deferred inflows of resources-OPEB 8,180
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES 26,480
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 4,693,979
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 1,554,607
Restricted for:
Bond debt service 219,589
Bond debt reserve 161,673
Unrestricted (649,379)
TOTAL NET POSITION 1,286,490

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
AND NET POSITION $ 5,980,469
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CAMERON COUNTY, TEXAS
INTERNATIONAL TOLL BRIDGE SYSTEM
FREE TRADE BRIDGE AT LOS INDIOS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

OPERATING REVENUES
Tolls $ 3,066,530
Rental Income 2,120
Other 310,490
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 3,379,140
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and wages 346,212
Fringe benefits and payroll taxes 189,775
Supplies 17,961
Uniforms 3,715
Auditing 6,647
Pension expense (income) (47,564)
OPEB expense (income) (10,277)
Repairs and maintenance 44,467
Utilities 70,050
Advertising 9,270
Insurance 37,582
Contractual 236,048
Depreciation 127,069
Other 27,057
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,058,012
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 2,321,128
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Intergovernmental agreement-Hgn. & San Benito . (889,053)
Interest income 55,144
Interest and fiscal charges (116,272)
Amortization of bond premium 1.268
TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) (948,913)
INCOME BEFORE TRANSFERS 1,372,215
Transfer in 55,377
Transfer (out) (1,057,405)
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 370,187
Net Position - beginning 916,303
Net Position - ending $ 1,286,490
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CAMERON COUNTY, TEXAS
INTERNATIONAL TOLL BRIDGE SYSTEM
VETERANS INTERNATIONAL TOLL BRIDGE

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted Cash:
Construction fund
Bond debt reserve
Bond debt service
Operating reserve
Total Restricted Cash
Due from other funds
Prepaids
Total Current Assets
Non-Current Assets:
Depreciable Capital Assets:
Toll bridges and approaches, and toll booths
Toll booths and equipment
Buildings
Furniture and fixtures
Autos and machinery
Less: accumulated depreciation
Net Depreciable Capital Assets
Construction in progress
Land
Total Capital Assets, net
Total Non-Current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
Deferred charges on refunding
Deferred outflow of resources-Pensions
Deferred outflow of resources-OPEB

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
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4,288,113

1,196,489
282,927
1,147,259
250,000

2,876,675

1,627,417
76,902

8,869,107

33,077,906
1,324,756
2,696,179

12,508
343,584
(21.937.766)

15,517,167

577,403

16,094,570

16,094,570

24,963,677

127,313
350,803
105,926

584,042

25,547,719

(continued)
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CAMERON COUNTY, TEXAS
INTERNATIONAL TOLL BRIDGE SYSTEM
VETERANS INTERNATIONAL TOLL BRIDGE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 43,206
Wages & fringe payable 45,907
Unearned revenue 428,406

Due to other governments 817,402

Due to other funds 2,174,596
Compensated absences payable 25,744
Accrued interest payable 65,314

Tax Notes, current 18,468
Bonds, current 869,917

Net pension liability 67,714
OPEB liability 27.278
Total Current Liabilities 4,583,952

Long-Term Liabilities:

Compensated absences payable 10,367

Tax notes, non-current 91,480
Bonds, non-current 10,636,535

Net pension liability 53,859
OPEB liability 813,885
Total Long-Term Liabilities 11,606,126
TOTAL LIABILITIES 16,190,078

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES

Deferred inflow of resources-Pensions 68,628
Deferred inflow of resources-OPEB 189,890
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES 258,518
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES 16,448,596
NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 7,308,100

Restricted for:
Bond debt service 1,147,259
Bond debt reserve 282,927
Unrestricted 360.837
TOTAL NET POSITION 9,099,123

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
AND NET POSITION $ 25,547,719
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CAMERON COUNTY, TEXAS
INTERNATIONAL TOLL BRIDGE SYSTEM
VETERANS INTERNATIONAL TOLL BRIDGE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

OPERATING REVENUES
Tolls $ 12,384,897
Rental income 12.000
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 12,396,897
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and wages 1,330,830
Fringe benefits & payroll taxes 620,301
Supplies 80,229
Uniforms 15,132
Auditing 6,647
Pension expense (income) (178,363)
OPEB expense (income) (38,538)
Repairs and maintenance 56,368
Utilities 81,458
Advertising 33,860
Insurance 34,410
Contractual 296,093
Depreciation 1,014,129
Other 39.087
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 3,391,643
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 9,005,254
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Intergovernmental agreement-City of Brownsville (4,488,022)
Interest income 507,623
Amortization of debt discount (19,841)
Amortization of debt premium 3,183
Interest and fiscal charges (488,061)
TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) (4.485,118)
INCOME BEFORE TRANSFERS 4,520,136
Transfer in 25,539
Transfer (out) (4,725,164)
CHANGE IN NET POSITION (179,489)
Net Position - beginning 9,278,612
Net Position - ending $ 9,099,123
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Burton
McCumber
& Longoria, ue

Global in Reach - Local in Touch

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorable County Judge
and Commissioners’ Court Cameron County, Texas

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type activities of the Cameron County, Texas
International Toll Bridge System, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2024, and the related notes to the
financial, and have issued our report thereon dated April 4, 2025.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Cameron County, Texas
International Toll Bridge System’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Cameron County, Texas
International Toll Bridge System’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Camron County, Texas International Toll Bridge System‘s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements, on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that
were not identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Cameron County, Texas International Toll Bridge
System’s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions
was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards.

BML y Fragoso, S.C. 1950 Paredes Line Road, Brownsville, TX 78521
Matamoros, MX 47 956-542-2553 - www bmlitexas.com
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Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any
other purpose.

Brownsville, Texas
April 4, 2025
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For additional information regarding the
Cameron County International Toll Bridge System

Please contact:

Erika Garcia
Cameron County Bridge Manager
3310 South Expressway 77
Brownsville, Texas 78521
(956) 574-8771
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ALL INVOICING IN DUPLICATE TO THIS ADDRESS ONLY

CAMERON COUNTY AUDITOR'S OFFICE
1100 E. MONROE ST., STE. 345
BROWNSVILLE, TX 78520-7123
}5/ SAM'S CLUB DIRECT PURCHASE ORDER NO: P383849
N PO BOX 669810 VENDOR NO: 0000166625
D P.O. DATE: 08/29/2025
g DALLAS, TX 75266-0956 REQUIRED BY: EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT|
IMPORTANT
S ADMINISTRATIVE BUILDING 1. Show purchase order number on all invoices, packages, bills of lading,
H 964 E HARRISON packing lists, and correspondence.
[ 2. Each order should be covered by a separate invoice.
’11:: BROWNSVILLE, TX 78520 3. The C(.)nditions of.‘this order an? no.t to be moc?iﬁed except in writing.
0 4, All prices are delivered to destination. No freight collect or C.0.D. accepted.

ITEM NO. DESCRIPTION OF ITEMS ORDERED QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE TOTAL
0001 OZARKA 16.9 OZ 40 PK 15.00 EA 6.48 97.20
0002 DINNER PAPER PLATES 2.00 EA 18.98 37.96

Contract NO.
TOTAL ORDER 135.16
PRICE INCREASE IS NOT AUTHORIZED WITHOUT PRIOR APPROVAL

Seller warrants that all materials and/or services deemed hereunder shall be of merchandisable quality free :

from defects in material and workmanship, shall conform strictly to all specifications, designs and S L G B Cameron COUIlty Purchasmg

descriptions, if any, and shall be fit for their ordinary intended purposes, as well as any Roberto C. Luna 1100 E. MONROE

particular purposes specified herein. BROWNSVILLE, TX 78520-7123
Phone: (956) 544-0871

Seller shall indemnify and save harmless the Cameron County from any and all liability,

expenses, including reasonable attorney's fees, costs, damages and/or losses of any kind arising out

of any negligent act or omission by Seller in performance of this contract.

10 10 6025 100 406 9999 $97.20
10 10 6025 100 406 9999 $37.96

Cameron County is exempted from the payment of Sales,
Excise or Use Taxes, Texas sales and use Tax No. 1-74-6000420.

Ravyn Hinojosa R398097 08/28/2025
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Fiscal Year 2024 Year to Date

GATEWAY INTERNATIONAL BRIDGE
SCHEDULE OF TOLL REVENUES

Page 60 of 209

CLASS JAUTO/MTRCY({ Auto/Motorcycle 2X 2X Frgt. 3X 3X Frgt. 4X 4X Frgt. 5X 5X Frgt. 6X 6X Frgt.
RATE 3.75&4.00 Revenue 9.50&11 Revenue 13.50&15 Revenue 15.50&17.25 Revenue 19.25&22 Revenue 23.25&25 Revenue
Oct-23 111,796 $446,380.75 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00
Nov-23 102,203 $408,114.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00
Dec-23 106,785 $426,542.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00
Jan-24 94,040 $375,506.25 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00
Feb-24 89,945 $359,133.75 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00
Mar-24 99,150 $395,936.25 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00
Apr-24 102,566 $409,493.50 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00
May-24 93,790 $374,528.50 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00
Jun-24 88,540 $353,601.25 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00
Jul-24 87,638 $350,044.50 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00
Aug-24 93,027 $371,507.50 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00
Sep-24 80,453 $321,213.25 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00
FY24 1,149,933 $4,592,001.50 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00
CLASS BIKE Bike TRANS. Transmigrant BUS Bus PEDES. Pedestrian MISC. Misc. TOTAL TOTAL
RATE $1.00 Revenue $7.75&11.25 Revenue $10.00 Revenue $1.00 Revenue Revenue CROSSINGS REVENUE
Oct-23 1,569 $1,569.00 0 $0.00 328 $3,280.00 160,893 $160,893.00 456 $13,756.09 275,042 $625,878.84
Nov-23 1,260 $1,260.00 0 $0.00 312 $3,120.00 157,690 $157,690.00 450 $13,238.96 261,915 $583,422.96
Dec-23 1,301 $1,301.00 0 $0.00 339 $3,390.00 166,370 $166,370.00 659 $14,637.17 275,454 $612,240.17
Jan-24 1,152 $1,152.00 0 $0.00 323 $3,230.00 142,086 $142,086.00 449 $12,238.92 238,050 $534,213.17
Feb-24 1,275 $1,275.00 0 $0.00 308 $3,080.00 151,668 $151,668.00 424 $11,754.21 243,620 $526,910.96
Mar-24 1,339 $1,339.00 0 $0.00 360 $3,600.00 158,339 $158,339.00 540 $13,770.74 259,728 $572,984.99
Apr-24 1,526 $1,526.00 0 $0.00 347 $3,470.00 158,074 $158,074.00 494 $13,885.53 263,007 $586,449.03
May-24 1,488 $1,488.00 0 $0.00 360 $3,600.00 157,977 $157,977.00 537 $13,395.87 254,152 $550,989.37
Jun-24 1,384 $1,384.00 0 $0.00 365 $3,650.00 139,745 $139,745.00 548 $10,920.98 230,582 $509,301.23
Jul-24 1,333 $1,333.00 0 $0.00 376 $3,760.00 145,056 $145,056.00 573 $11,747.95 234,976 $511,941.45
Aug-24 1,669 $1,669.00 0 $0.00 378 $3,780.00 160,644 $160,644.00 540 $10,545.27 256,258 $548,145.77
Sep-24 1,348 $1,348.00 0 $0.00 325 $3,250.00 136,767 $136,767.00 470 $8,264.82 219,363 $470,843.07
FY24 16,644 $16,644.00 0 $0.00 4,121 $41,210.00 1,835,309 [ $1,835,309.00 6,140 $148,156.51 3,012,147 $6,633,321.01

SOURCE: INTERNATIONAL BRIDGE SYSTEM




Fiscal Year 2024 Year to Date

FREE TRADE BRIDGE AT LOS INDIOS
SCHEDULE OF TOLL REVENUES
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CLASS JAUTO/MTRCY({ Auto/Motorcycle 2X 2X Frgt. 3X 3X Frgt. 4X 4X Frgt. 5X 5X Frgt. 6X 6X Frgt.
RATE 3.75&4.00 Revenue 9.50&11 Revenue 13.50&15 Revenue 15.50&17.25 Revenue 19.25&22 Revenue 23.25&25 Revenue
Oct-23 35,205 $140,730.50 63 $645.00 158 $2,280.00 17 $286.25 898 $18,466.25 80 $1,940.50
Nov-23 35,951 $143,724.50 55 $561.50 222 $3,243.00 9 $151.75 710 $14,440.25 870 $21,015.00
Dec-23 41,072 $164,230.00 63 $643.50 169 $2,452.50 9 $150.00 610 $12,465.75 1,639 $40,406.25
Jan-24 33,009 $131,955.25 70 $702.50 271 $3,955.50 22 $376.00 753 $15,331.25 147 $3,487.75
Feb-24 34,737 $138,865.75 72 $738.00 302 $4,395.00 21 $353.50 897 $18,408.50 84 $1,958.25
Mar-24 40,200 $160,696.75 58 $605.00 226 $3,273.00 17 $291.50 920 $18,840.25 325 $7,799.50
Apr-24 37,995 $151,875.00 86 $875.50 226 $3,279.00 15 $257.00 999 $20,152.00 54 $1,271.25
May-24 39,006 $155,925.25 70 $714.50 209 $3,028.50 15 $255.25 1,151 $23,652.75 471 $11,633.25
Jun-24 37,157 $148,531.00 56 $569.50 231 $3,312.00 18 $305.25 1,385 $28,732.00 895 $21,983.00
Jul-24 40,154 $160,527.25 66 $667.50 391 $5,670.00 17 $291.50 1,592 $33,110.00 1,680 $41,329.75
Aug-24 42,838 $171,227.25 72 $730.50 408 $5,914.50 17 $289.75 1,222 $25,357.75 1,446 $35,626.75
Sep-24 36,752 $146,899.25 58 $584.00 317 $4,575.00 19 $320.75 1,411 $29,348.00 2,309 $56,850.00
FY24 454,076 $1,815,187.75 789 $8,037.00 3,130 $45,378.00 196 $3,328.50 12,548 $258,304.75 10000 $245,301.25
CLASS BIKE Bike TRANS. Transmigrant BUS Bus PEDES. Pedestrian MISC. Misc. TOTAL TOTAL
RATE $1.00 Revenue $7.75&11.25 Revenue $10.00 Revenue $1.00 Revenue Revenue CROSSINGS REVENUE
Oct-23 44 $44.00 3,196 $28,822.00 3 $30.00 140 $140.00 7,431 $29,305.95 47,235 $222,690.45
Nov-23 35 $35.00 3,686 $33,312.50 2 $20.00 150 $150.00 8,519 $33,843.23 50,209 $250,496.73
Dec-23 50 $50.00 3,405 $30,833.75 2 $20.00 269 $269.00 7,833 $31,820.60 55,121 $283,341.35
Jan-24 30 $30.00 2,138 $18,816.50 3 $30.00 127 $127.00 4,802 $20,396.47 41,372 $195,208.22
Feb-24 14 $14.00 3,035 $27,178.75 2 $20.00 162 $162.00 7,004 $29,114.47 46,330 $221,208.22
Mar-24 4 $4.00 3,289 $29,465.75 2 $20.00 176 $176.00 7,675 $31,380.18 52,892 $252,551.93
Apr-24 2 $2.00 2,987 $26,866.25 1 $10.00 126 $126.00 6,968 $29,430.89 49,459 $234,144.89
May-24 3 $3.00 3,210 $29,287.50 1 $10.00 150 $150.00 7,635 $32,325.44 51,921 $256,985.44
Jun-24 10 $10.00 2,822 $25,468.50 1 $10.00 129 $129.00 6,642 $28,292.59 49,346 $257,342.84
Jul-24 8 $8.00 3,105 $28,340.75 2 $20.00 175 $175.00 7,441 $30,634.42 54,631 $300,774.17
Aug-24 10 $10.00 3,001 $27,023.75 1 $10.00 182 $182.00 7,087 $29,460.84 56,284 $295,833.09
Sep-24 8 $8.00 3,086 $28,190.00 2 $20.00 156 $156.00 7,252 $29,001.59 51,370 $295,952.59
FY24 218 $218.00 36,960 $333,606.00 22 $220.00 1,942 $1,942.00 86,289 $355,006.67 606,170 $3,066,529.92

SOURCE: INTERNATIONAL BRIDGE SYSTEM



Fiscal Year 2024 Year to Date

VETERANS INTERNATIONAL BRIDGE
SCHEDULE OF TOLL REVENUES

Page 62 of 209

CLASS JAUTO/MTRCY({ Auto/Motorcycle 2X 2X Frgt. 3X 3X Frgt. 4X 4X Frgt. 5X 5X Frgt. 6X 6X Frgt.
RATE 3.75&4.00 Revenue 9.50&11 Revenue 13.50&15 Revenue 15.50&17.25 Revenue 19.25&22 Revenue 23.25&25 Revenue
Oct-23 144,850 $576,689.25 1,693 $16,953.50 1,961 $27,387.00 186 $2,995.00 13,795 $272,467.25 4,889 $119,283.25
Nov-23 134,750 $536,611.75 1,617 $16,194.00 2,102 $29,317.50 202 $3,227.25 13,781 $272,717.50 7,339 $180,052.00
Dec-23 155,299 $618,923.25 1,354 $13,578.50 1,709 $23,769.00 164 $2,620.75 11,996 $237,633.00 7,280 $178,620.75
Jan-24 146,387 $582,925.25 1,450 $14,495.00 1,965 $27,316.50 164 $2,584.00 13,280 $261,959.50 1,271 $30,270.00
Feb-24 148,509 $591,381.50 1,380 $13,852.50 1,867 $25,992.00 156 $2,446.00 14,540 $288,057.00 1,465 $34,943.25
Mar-24 151,072 $601,969.50 1,437 $14,470.50 2,074 $28,842.00 160 $2,506.25 15,897 $316,197.75 2,889 $69,944.75
Apr-24 136,153 $542,182.00 1,649 $16,607.50 1,766 $24,625.50 147 $2,310.00 18,150 $360,797.25 1,989 $47,353.75
May-24 160,039 $637,377.25 1,603 $16,139.00 1,988 $27,667.50 194 $3,119.00 17,672 $350,894.50 2,578 $62,290.50
Jun-24 146,755 $584,830.25 1,467 $14,736.00 1,699 $23,656.50 171 $2,748.50 16,242 $321,587.75 1,781 $42,769.75
Jul-24 151,600 $604,158.50 1,563 $15,765.00 1,941 $27,010.50 237 $3,850.25 17,377 $343,686.75 1,958 $47,035.50
Aug-24 154,325 $614,736.00 1,613 $16,267.00 1,847 $25,638.00 229 $3,742.00 18,482 $366,000.25 2,156 $51,926.00
Sep-24 140,781 $560,537.00 1,375 $13,838.00 1,700 $23,572.50 132 $2,100.25 14,353 $283,472.75 1,816 $43,763.75
FY24 1,770,520 $7,052,321.50 18,201 $182,896.50 22,619 $314,794.50 2,142 $34,249.25 185,565 $3,675,471.25 37,411 $908,253.25
CLASS BIKE Bike TRANS. Transmigrant BUS Bus PEDES. Pedestrian MISC. Misc. TOTAL TOTAL
RATE $1.00 Revenue $7.75&11.25 Revenue $10.00 Revenue $1.00 Revenue Revenue CROSSINGS REVENUE
Oct-23 1,087 $1,087.00 0 $0.00 4 $40.00 393 $393.00 825 $15,443.95 169,683 $1,032,739.20
Nov-23 972 $972.00 0 $0.00 8 $80.00 317 $317.00 827 $15,811.03 161,915 $1,055,300.03
Dec-23 1,190 $1,190.00 0 $0.00 6 $60.00 425 $425.00 1,069 $18,856.41 180,492 $1,095,676.66
Jan-24 1,047 $1,047.00 0 $0.00 2 $20.00 270 $270.00 821 $15,653.68 166,657 $936,540.93
Feb-24 1,031 $1,031.00 0 $0.00 4 $40.00 378 $378.00 831 $16,276.81 170,161 $974,398.06
Mar-24 1,106 $1,106.00 0 $0.00 6 $60.00 432 $432.00 1,022 $19,444.94 176,095 $1,054,973.69
Apr-24 1,063 $1,063.00 0 $0.00 7 $70.00 543 $543.00 919 $17,208.91 162,386 $1,012,760.91
May-24 1,116 $1,116.00 0 $0.00 8 $80.00 427 $427.00 926 $18,918.65 186,551 $1,118,029.40
Jun-24 1,161 $1,161.00 0 $0.00 2 $20.00 240 $240.00 989 $15,701.19 170,507 $1,007,450.94
Jul-24 1,214 $1,214.00 0 $0.00 8 $80.00 319 $319.00 1,052 $16,542.27 177,269 $1,059,661.77
Aug-24 1,224 $1,224.00 0 $0.00 1 $10.00 416 $416.00 995 $14,998.78 181,288 $1,094,958.03
Sep-24 1,172 $1,172.00 0 $0.00 36 $360.00 493 $493.00 968 $13,097.66 162,826 $942,406.91
FY24 13,383 $13,383.00 0 $0.00 92 $920.00 4653 $4,653.00 11,244 $197,954.28 2,065,830 | $12,384,896.53

SOURCE: INTERNATIONAL BRIDGE SYSTEM




Fiscal Year 2024 Year to Date

INTERNATIONAL BRIDGE SYSTEM

SCHEDULE OF TOLL REVENUES
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CLASS JAUTO/MTRCY({ Auto/Motorcycle 2X 2X Frgt. 3X 3X Frgt. 4X 4X Frgt. 5X 5X Frgt. 6X 6X Frgt.
RATE 3.75&4.00 Revenue 9.50&11 Revenue 13.50&15 Revenue 15.50&17.25 Revenue 19.25&22 Revenue 23.25&25 Revenue
Oct-23 291,851 $1,163,800.50 1,756 $17,598.50 2,119 $29,667.00 203 $3,281.25 14,693 $290,933.50 4,969 $121,223.75
Nov-23 272,904 $1,088,450.25 1,672 $16,755.50 2,324 $32,560.50 211 $3,379.00 14,491 $287,157.75 8,209 $201,067.00
Dec-23 303,156 $1,209,695.25 1,417 $14,222.00 1,878 $26,221.50 173 $2,770.75 12,606 $250,098.75 8,919 $219,027.00
Jan-24 273,436 $1,090,386.75 1,520 $15,197.50 2,236 $31,272.00 186 $2,960.00 14,033 $277,290.75 1,418 $33,757.75
Feb-24 273,191 $1,089,381.00 1,452 $14,590.50 2,169 $30,387.00 177 $2,799.50 15,437 $306,465.50 1,549 $36,901.50
Mar-24 290,422 $1,158,602.50 1,495 $15,075.50 2,300 $32,115.00 177 $2,797.75 16,817 $335,038.00 3,214 $77,744.25
Apr-24 276,714 $1,103,550.50 1,735 $17,483.00 1,992 $27,904.50 162 $2,567.00 19,149 $380,949.25 2,043 $48,625.00
May-24 292,835 $1,167,831.00 1,673 $16,853.50 2,197 $30,696.00 209 $3,374.25 18,823 $374,547.25 3,049 $73,923.75
Jun-24 272,452 $1,086,962.50 1,523 $15,305.50 1,930 $26,968.50 189 $3,053.75 17,627 $350,319.75 2,676 $64,752.75
Jul-24 279,392 $1,114,730.25 1,629 $16,432.50 2,332 $32,680.50 254 $4,141.75 18,969 $376,796.75 3,638 $88,365.25
Aug-24 290,190 $1,157,470.75 1,685 $16,997.50 2,255 $31,552.50 246 $4,031.75 19,704 $391,358.00 3,602 $87,552.75
Sep-24 257,986 $1,028,649.50 1,433 $14,422.00 2,017 $28,147.50 151 $2,421.00 15,764 $312,820.75 4,125 $100,613.75
FY24 3,374,529 $13,459,510.75 18,990 $190,933.50 25,749 $360,172.50 2338 $37,577.75 198,113 $3,933,776.00 47,411 $1,153,554.50
CLASS BIKE Bike TRANS. Transmigrant BUS Bus PEDES. Pedestrian MISC. Misc. TOTAL TOTAL
RATE $1.00 Revenue $7.75&11.25 Revenue $10.00 Revenue $1.00 Revenue Revenue CROSSINGS REVENUE
Oct-23 2,700 $2,700.00 3,196 $28,822.00 335 $3,350.00 161,426 $161,426.00 8,712 $58,505.99 491,960 $1,881,308.49
Nov-23 2,267 $2,267.00 3,686 $33,312.50 322 $3,220.00 158,157 $158,157.00 9,796 $62,893.22 474,039 $1,889,219.72
Dec-23 2,541 $2,541.00 3,405 $30,833.75 347 $3,470.00 167,064 $167,064.00 9,561 $65,314.18 511,067 $1,991,258.18
Jan-24 2,229 $2,229.00 2,138 $18,816.50 328 $3,280.00 142,483 $142,483.00 6,072 $48,289.07 446,079 $1,665,962.32
Feb-24 2,320 $2,320.00 3,035 $27,178.75 314 $3,140.00 152,208 $152,208.00 8,259 $57,145.49 460,111 $1,722,517.24
Mar-24 2,449 $2,449.00 3,289 $29,465.75 368 $3,680.00 158,947 $158,947.00 9,237 $64,595.86 488,715 $1,880,510.61
Apr-24 2,591 $2,591.00 2,987 $26,866.25 355 $3,550.00 158,743 $158,743.00 8,381 $60,525.33 474,852 $1,833,354.83
May-24 2,607 $2,607.00 3,210 $29,287.50 369 $3,690.00 158,554 $158,554.00 9,098 $64,639.96 492,624 $1,926,004.21
Jun-24 2,555 $2,555.00 2,822 $25,468.50 368 $3,680.00 140,114 $140,114.00 8,179 $54,914.76 450,435 $1,774,095.01
Jul-24 2,555 $2,555.00 3,105 $28,340.75 386 $3,860.00 145,550 $145,550.00 9,066 $58,924.64 466,876 $1,872,377.39
Aug-24 2,903 $2,903.00 3,001 $27,023.75 380 $3,800.00 161,242 $161,242.00 8,622 $55,004.89 493,830 $1,938,936.89
Sep-24 2,528 $2,528.00 3,086 $28,190.00 363 $3,630.00 137,416 $137,416.00 8,690 $50,364.07 433,559 $1,709,202.57
FY24 30,245 $30,245.00 36,960 $333,606.00 4,235 $42,350.00 1,841,904 | $1,841,904.00 | 103,673 $701,117.46 5,684,147 | $22,084,747.46

SOURCE: INTERNATIONAL BRIDGE SYSTEM
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Desktop Insurance Appraisal Report for

Gateway International Bridge
25.89904789 -97.49734831

Los Indios International Bridge
26.03286440 -97.73887216

Veterans' International Bridge
25.88745388 -97.47642484

Located in
Cameron County, TX

CAMERON *

Prepared June 37, 2024
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June 3, 2024

Mr. Andre Suissa, MAI
Titan Commercial Valuation
461 Woodland Lane
Golden, CO 80401

Mr. Suissa-

AAE Consulting Group is pleased to provide our conclusions of value resulting from the recent property insurance appraisal
in accordance with the specifications outlined by the Cameron County, Texas. Cameron County is the southernmost county
in the U.S. state of Texas. Cameron County comprises the Brownsville-Harlingen, TX metropolitan statistical area, as well
as the Brownsville-Harlingen—Raymondville combined statistical area, which itself is part of the larger Rio Grande Valley
region. The county has a total area of 1,276 square miles, of which 891 square miles are land and 386 square miles (30%)
are covered by water. To the east, the county borders the Gulf of Mexico. The appraised properties that make up this
appraisal report consist of three (3) international bridges along the southern border of the United States in Cameron County,
Texas.

The intended use of the appraisal is to provide value conclusions that will assist Cameron County, Texas with its effort to
maintain proper and supportable insurance to value, insurance limit placement, proof of loss documentation, and collection
of important underwriting data as it relates to their property insurance reporting requirements. Our reported opinions are
intended to provide assistance to Cameron County, Texas in achieving their risk management goals and do not constitute
a recommendation. Any insurance coverage decisions shall remain the responsibility of Cameron County, Texas. Our report
may only be utilized for the intended use described above.

The submitted reports have been deemed as an “Appraisal Report (Summary)” and are prepared under Standards Rule 8-
2a (i — x) and Advisory Opinion 38. The criterion for this type of report has been achieved in the certificate letter of the
report. Individualized detailed valuation backup will reside in our appraisal workfile and may be provided upon request of
the client or in the event of court appearance.

Cameron County, Texas is the sole intended user of this report or other work product produced in relation to this assignment.
Cameron County, Texas may disclose a copy of the report to other insurance professionals acting in an advisory role in
connection with the intended use of this this appraisal. Distribution of this report or other work product produced in relation
to this assignment is prohibited without the written consent of AAE Consulting Group. No third party shall have the right of
reliance on this report.

Replacement Cost can be described as the cost to construct or replace an item of equal quality and utility. Modern materials
and manufacturing/construction methods will be used in the replacement of an item. Replacement Cost does not take into
consideration improvements necessary to conform to changes in building codes, demolition, debris removal, site accessibility
or site work, reuse of building components or services, overtime, bonuses for labor, soft costs, extraordinary fees, premiums
for materials, or other contingencies. For insurance purposes, the prices used for labor, materials, overhead, profit and
fees are those in effect as of the effective date of the valuation.

Based upon the findings and valuation methodologies used in this study, it is our opinion that, for the intended use of this
valuation, the replacement cost of the subject properties, as of June 3rd, 2024, is fairly represented in the rounded amount
of:

$58,609,000

FIFTY-EIGHT MILLION SIX HUNDRED NINE THOUSAND DOLLARS
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In the event of a partial loss, the cost to repair/replace is typically proportionately higher when compared to the cost of full
replacement. Physical changes to the property after the date of our field inspection are not reflected in this report.

The assets that were included in the study include:
e Buildings & Structures

The assets that were excluded from the study include:

Building Contents

Ancillary Bridge Buildings

Assets of an intangible nature

Land/Landscaping

Property in the open

Inventories, supplies, consumables, spare parts, records, drawings, and materials
Licensed vehicles

Contractor’s equipment

Fine art

Property leased from others

Improvements to leased property

Employee’s personal property

Any property not presented to our staff or not in place at the time of inspection
All other property not specifically included in the scope of work

As Replacement Cost or Reproduction Cost conclusions (insurance purposes) are the intent of the appraisal, the cost
approach was used most effectively. The other approaches to value were considered but were not implemented since
these approaches are most commonly used to develop some form of market value and were not applicable for the intended
use of this assignment. As stated under USPAP Standards Rule 7.4, the appraiser has considered each approach to value
and decided which were applicable to the current project scope.

e Cost Approach: Defined as starting with the current replacement cost new of the subject and deducting for the
loss in value caused by physical deterioration, functional obsolescence, and economic obsolescence. This approach
was the primary approach used in the study; however no deductions were taken due to the scope of the project
to arrive at replacement cost.

Income Approach: Defined as the present value of future economic benefits of owning the property. Due to
the nature and scope of the project, this approach was considered but not implemented. As defined in the intended
use of this report, the income approach was not deemed as an acceptable means to derive at replacement cost.
In addition, isolated income from a specific piece of equipment was impractical to develop.

Market Approach: Defined as adjusting the prices that have been paid for assets comparable to the asset being

appraised, equating the comparable to the subject. This approach was considered but not implemented due to the
value definitions set forth by the scope of the project.

Scope of Work

The values stated were derived under a desktop methodology. No physical inspection or in-person data collection was
required for this assignment. The report was prepared with the aid of information provided by representatives of the client.
Square footage was derived utilizing TxDOT records and aerial imaging. The client is responsible for the accuracy and
completeness of the information and AAE Consulting Group accepts no responsibility for the client’s failure to provide such
information to AAE Consulting Group. Although gathered from reliable sources, no guarantee is made nor liability assumed
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for the accuracy of any data, opinions, or estimates identified as being furnished by others, which have been used in

formulating this analysis.

The values established for these properties should be used with caution and can vary greatly contingent upon information
which is often not available with a desktop analysis. We therefore would recommend the client complete a more detailed

appraisal with an onsite inspection.

Data was analyzed utilizing various internal pricing documents, bridge inspection reports, client supplied documentation,
paid subscription services, and public information. The values noted are based on a desktop analysis and all values represent
functional equivalency. Any historical components were not considered and are beyond the scope of this appraisal.

Value Conclusions:

Gateway International Bridge

Bridge IDs

210310C00804001 /
210310C00804002

Latitude Longitude

Address

25.89904789 -97.49734831

510 E. 14th Street Brownsville, TX

Gross Square Feet

Total Length

Number of Lanes

11,733

121' (Southbound) / 176' (Northbound)

3-4 Lanes

Construction Date (s)

Primary Foundation Type

Primary ISO Class

1969

Reinforced Concrete Pilings

6B - Fire Resistive

Est . Real Property RCN:

$3,310,000

Cost/SF:

$282.11

RCN = Replacement Cost New

Los Indios International Bridge

210310C00302001 /
210310C00302002

Bridge IDs Latitude Longitude

Address

26.02977081 -97.73885821

100 Los Indios Blvd
Los Indios, TX

Gross Square Feet

Total Length

18,520

Number of Lanes

237' (South Span) / 81' (North Span)

4 Lanes

Construction Date (s)

Primary Foundation Type

Primary 1SO Class

1992/ 1998

Reinforced Concrete Pilings

6B - Fire Resistive

Est . Real Property RCN:

$5,290,000

Cost/SF:

$285.64

RCN = Replacement Cost New
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Veterans International Bridge

Bridge IDs Latitude Longitude Address

210310AA0804001 / ] 3310 South Expressway 77
210310AA0804002 2588745388 -97.47642484 Brownsville, TX

Gross Square Feet Total Length Number of Lanes
171,766 1438 8 Lanes

Construction Date (s) Primary Foundation Type Primary 1SO Class
1999 / 2013 Reinforced Concrete Pilings 6B - Fire Resistive

Est . Real Property RCN: $50,009,000 Cost/SF: $291.15
RCN = Replacement Cost New
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Limiting Conditions

1. Our report and value conclusions are intended solely for the intended use and intended users stated herein.

2. AAE Consulting Group has relied on certain information provided by the Client during our investigation. All
information that has been provided to our staff by Client personnel is presumed to be accurate and reliable. AAE
Consulting Group did not attempt to verify the accuracy of this information and accepts no responsibility for its
accuracy.

AAE Consulting Group reserves the right to make adjustments to our opinions of value as deemed necessary and
appropriate.

Our report will only be used for the specific purpose stated herein and any other use is invalid. No reliance may
be made by any third party without our prior written consent. You may show our report in its entirety to those
third parties that need to review the information contained therein. No one should rely on the report as a
substitute for his or her own due diligence. Possession of this report or any copy thereof does not carry with it
any rights including the right of publication. No portion of this report shall be disseminated to the public through
prospectus, advertising, public relations, news, or any other means of communication without the written consent
and approval of AAE Consulting Group.

AAE Consulting Group relied upon certain publicly available information during our investigation. It is assumed
that this information is accurate. AAE Consulting Group did not attempt to verify the accuracy of this information
and accepts no responsibility for its accuracy.

It is beyond the scope of this report to determine or assign ownership and/or insurance responsibility for any of
the property included in this report. We assume no responsibility for the final determination of insurance
responsibility as it relates to property ownership, leases, partnerships or other forms of legal interest in any of the
property included in this report. No investigation was conducted, and we assume no responsibility for title to, or
liabilities against the property appraised.

No person other than those identified (and the Client) had any significant professional input on the valuation
process. Unless previously stated, no subcontractors or outsourcing were utilized in the derivation of the values
provided in the report.

It is assumed that there are no hidden, unapparent or inherent conditions to the property that may affect the
valuation of the property. No responsibility is assumed for such consideration, or for arranging engineering
studies that may be required to discover them. No environmental audit of the subject property has been
conducted as part of this appraisal. It is assumed that the use of the subject assets complies fully with any and all
environmental regulations and laws. It is also not our intent to provide safety, engineering or hazardous material
surveys. Responsibility is not assumed for those areas.

AAE Consulting Group will maintain and house copies of our project backup and field notes, all relative
correspondence, and the final reports and database(s) for a period not less than five years after preparation or at
least two years after final disposition of any judicial proceeding in which the appraiser provided testimony related
to the assignment, whichever period expires last. This policy is outlined in accordance with the American Society
of Appraisers and the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP).

. The appraiser, by reason of this appraisal, is not required to give further consultation, testimony, or be in
attendance in court with reference to the property in question unless arrangements have been previously made.
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11. Cameron County, TX agrees to indemnify and hold AAE Consulting Group, harmless from any losses, claims, actions,
damages, expenses or liabilities, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, to which we may become subject to in
connection with this engagement, except for those attributed to our negligence. Your obligation for indemnification
and reimbursement shall extend to any director, officer, employee, subcontractor, and affiliate or like individual or
agency. In the event we are subject to any liability in connection with this appraisal, regardless of legal theory
advanced, such liability will be limited to the amount of fees we received for this engagement.

. Valuation only includes portions of bridges located in the United States. Border lines were determined utilizing GIS
and aerial imaging. Even though only the portion of the bridges located in the United States were included, the
valuation assumes fully functioning and complete bridge structures for the purposes of providing an accurate and
supportable conclusion of value.
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I certify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief:

M
M

The statements of fact contained in this report are true and correct.

The reported analyses, opinions, and conclusions are limited only by the reported assumptions and limiting
conditions, and are my personal, impartial, and unbiased professional analyses, opinions, and conclusions.

I have no present or prospective interest in the property that is the subject of this report and no personal interest
with respect to the parties involved.

I have performed no services, as an appraiser or in any other capacity, regarding the property that is the subject
of this report within a three-year period immediately preceding the agreement to perform this assignment.

I have no bias with respect to any property that is the subject of this report or to the parties involved with this
assignment.

My engagement in this assignment was not contingent upon developing or reporting predetermined results.

My compensation for completing this assignment is not contingent upon the reporting of a predetermined value
or direction in value that favors the cause of the client, the amount of the value opinion, the attainment of a
stipulated result, or the occurrence of a subsequent event directly related to the intended use of this appraisal.

My analyses, opinions, and conclusions were developed, and this report has been prepared, in conformity with
the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice.

The American Society of Appraisers has a mandatory recertification program to remain current accreditation. I
verify that the accredited members of the project team are in compliance with these requirements.

Griffin Harris has provided significant appraisal assistance to the person signing this certification.

AAE Consulting Group
Austin Engelhardt, ASA, CPCU

President
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*° Bridge Inspection Report
y A8 210310C00804002
NB LN INTER BR
over

RIO GRANDE RIVER

Inspection Date: 11/09/2023
Inspected By: Justin Wilson

Inspection Type(s): Routine

& -
* |
v 1/23/2024
Texas
Department
of Transportation
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Latitude: 25.89876746
Longitude: -97.49725299

DO NOT DISCLOSE. THIS INFORMATION IS CONFIDENTIAL UNDER THE TEXAS HOMELAND SECURITY
ACT & 23 U.S.C SECTION 409, SAFETY SENSITIVE INFORMATION.
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‘ ® BRIDGE INSPECTION RECORD
Structure Number 210310C00804002 Inspector Wilson,Justin
l" s Facility Carried NB LN INTER BR Inspection Date 11/09/2023
of Transportation Feature Intersected RIO GRANDE RIVER Maint. Section 00
Condition

Rating Description Seal

Not Applicable

Excellent Condition

Very Good Condition - no problems noted

Good Condition - some minor problems

Satisfactory Condition - minor deterioration of structural elements (limited)

5 e Fair Condition - minor deterioration of structural elements (extensive)
S Poor Condition - deterioration significantly affects structural capacity
£ T Serious Condition - deterioration seriously affects structural capacity, local
failures possible
2 e Critical Condition - advance deterioration of primary elements, bridge
should be closed until repaired
T, Failing Condition - bridge closed but repairable
[ Failed Condition - bridge closed and beyond repair Signature & Date:
*These descriptions are for items 58, 59, 60 and 65. Code Items 61 and 62 according to the
TxDOT Coding Guide. Prime Firm Name & Number:
Bridge Description: Sub Firm Name & Number:

4 Cast-in-Place Tensioned Slab and 1 Variable Depth Post Tensioned Slab Span

General Comments:

This inspection covers only the portion of the structure on the United States side. According to
administration directives, the Mexico side will be left to be inspected by Mexican authorities.

Bridge contains four Cast in place tension slab and Girder spans and 1 variable depth post tensioned
slab span. Piers are numbered from South to North as per plans beginning at Abutment 1 and ending
at Abutment 6. The U.S/Mexico boundary line is at Pier 4.

Weather on this date was cloudy and temperature between 60-75 degrees F. Equipment used during

the inspection included a tape measure, pick hummer, carpenter's ruler, camera for photographs. No traffic control
needed during inspection and it was performed by walking the top and the bottom side. Bucket truck would be essential
in future inspection.

Permanent supplemental pier walls have been added to the north and south sides of Pier 5 due to past settlement.

Inspection by: Justin Wilson, Team Leader, P.E. (TXDOT BRG), Christian Roque, E.I.T. (TXDOT
BRG), and Eric Trevino, (TXDOT PHR)

There are no recommendations for this inspection.

DECK Structure ID: 210310C00804002 Inspection Date: 11/09/2023
(|TEM 58) DO NOT DISCLOSE. THIS INFORMATION IS CONFIDENTIAL UNDER THE TEXAS HOMELAND
SECURITY ACT & 23 U.S.C SECTION 409, SAFETY SENSITIVE INFORMATION.
Component Description Min.  Rating Comment
|Deck - Component Rating 1 8
Wearing Surface HMAC 6 8 The wearing surface has been replaced since the 2017 routine inspection and is
performing well.
Surfacing Thickness: 3 inches
Fill Height: inches
Joints, Expansion, Open 6
Joints, Expansion, Sealed 6 7 The expansion joints are covered with a new overlay.

Abutment 1 joint in the west sidewalk has missing sealant, photo #1.
Joints, Other 6 N



Drainage System
Curbs, Sidewalk & Parapets

Deck Drain Ports

Page 78 of 209

Clogged drains in deck structure, photo #2.

The rails exhibit spalled concrete with exposed reinforcing steel that has been
patched at the metal rail anchorage.

The concrete parapet rails have minor transverse cracking spaced at 5'to 10'.
2.5" Gap between safety walk sections, photo #3.

West safety walk has a 14" long x 9" wide x 3" deep spall (failed patch) with
exposed rebar, photo #4.

Impact damage on the west steel rail, photo #5.

Median Barrier 6 N
Railings 6 8 No deficiencies noted.
Railing Type:
Railing Protective Coating 7
Delineation 7 No deficiencies noted.
Other -
SUPERSTRUCTURE Structure ID: 210310C00804002 Inspection Date: 11/09/2023
(|TEM 59) DO NOT DISCLOSE. THIS INFORMATION IS CONFIDENTIAL UNDER THE TEXAS HOMELAND
SECURITY ACT & 23 U.S.C SECTION 409, SAFETY SENSITIVE INFORMATION.
Component Description Min.  Rating Comment
Main Members - Steel 0 N
Main Members - Concrete 0 7 The girders exhibit minor cracks and spalls along the bottom edges.
Efflorescence under concrete slab at cap north side of pier 5, photo #6.
At the cantilever slab spans, the corbels exhibit minor to moderate diagonal
cracking at the edges and corners, photos #7 and #8.
In span 5, underside of concrete slab has random spalls up to 8in wide x 1in
deep at abutment 6, photos #9 and #10.
Main Members - Timber 0 N
Main Members - Connections 0 N
Floor System Members 1 N
Floor System Connections 1 N
Secondary Members 5 8 No deficiencies noted.
Secondary Mem. Connections 5 8 No deficiencies noted.
Expansion Bearings 6 8 No deficiencies noted.
Fixed Bearings 6 8 No deficiencies noted.
Steel Protective Coating 6 N
Other - N
|Overall Component Rating 7
SUBSTRUCTURE Structure ID: 210310C00804002 Inspection Date: 11/09/2023
(ITEM 60) DO NOT DISCLOSE. THIS INFORMATION IS CONFIDENTIAL UNDER THE TEXAS HOMELAND
SECURITY ACT & 23 U.S.C SECTION 409, SAFETY SENSITIVE INFORMATION.
Component Description Min.  Rating Comment
Abutment Caps 0 8 No deficiencies noted.
Above Ground 0 8 No deficiencies noted.
Below Ground or Foundation 0 8 No deficiencies noted.
Backwalls & Wingwalls 0 8 No deficiencies noted.
Intermediate Supports:
Caps - Concrete - 8 The caps have been patched up and are performing well.
Caps - Steel - 8 No deficiencies noted.
Caps - Timber - N
Above Ground - Concrete - 8 The supplemental pier wall at the south side of Pier 5 has been rehabbed and the
repairs are performing well.
Northwest Wingwall with poor consolidation at top, photo #11.
Above Ground - Steel Pier 4 Supplemental - 8 At Pier 5, the supplemental support includes metal beams and supports and these
Support have been cleaned and painted since the 2019 routine Inspection, photo #12.
Above Ground - Timber - N
Above Ground - Masonry - N
Below Ground or Foundation - 7 Supplemental support pier walls have been added to Pier 5, photo #13. This
appears to be now stabilized but should be monitored in future inspections. The
supplemental concrete supports have been rehabbed and repairs are performing
well.
Collision Protection System 5
Steel Protective Coating 6 8 The Pier 5 supplemental support steel members were cleaned and painted since

2017.
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CHANNEL Structure ID: 210310C00804002 Inspection Date: 11/09/2023

(ITEM 61) SECURITY ACT & 23 U.S.C SECTION 409, SAFETY SENSITIVE INFORMATION.
Component Description Min.  Rating Comment

Channel Banks 0 8 Vegetated and stable. No change.

Channel Bed 0 8 No deficiencies noted.

Rip Rap, Toe Walls & Apron 5 N

Dikes 5 N

Jetties 5 N

Other - N

[ Overall Component Rating 8

CULVERTS Structure 1D: 210310C00804002 Inspection Date: 11/09/2023

(ITEM 62) SECURITY ACT & 23 U.S.C SECTION 408, SAFETY SENSITIVE INFORMATION.
Component Description Min.  Rating Comment

Top Slabs 0 N

Bottom Slab or Footing 0 N

Abutments, Intermed. Supports 0 N

Headwalls & WingWalls 5 N

Other - N

|Overa|| Component Rating N

APPROACHES Structure ID: 210310C00804002 Inspection Date: 11/09/2023

(TEM 65 B T S5 U o o v e o "o
Component Description Min.  Rating Comment

Embankments 0 N

Embankment Retaining Walls 4 8 No deficiencies noted.

Slope Protection 5 8 No deficiencies noted.

Roadway Concrete 5 8 The North Approach has been repaired since the 2017 inspection and all repairs
are performing well. Back of NW transition with spall (8" long x 9" wide x 1/2"
deep.

Relief Joints 6 N

Drainage 6 8 No deficiencies noted.

Guardfence 6 N

Delineation 7 N

Sight Distance 7 8 No deficiencies noted.

Other - N

8 No deficiencies noted.

[Overall Component Rating

Structure ID: 210310C00804002 Inspection Date: 11/09/2023

MISCELLANEOUS DO NOT DISCLOSE. THIS INFORMATION IS CONFIDENTIAL UNDER THE TEXAS HOMELAND
SECURITY ACT & 23 U.S.C SECTION 409, SAFETY SENSITIVE INFORMATION.
Component Description Min.  Rating Comment
Signs N 8
lllumination N 8
Warning Devices N N
Utility Lines 7 8
Other Pedestrian Canopy N 8
Structure ID: 210310C00804002 Inspection Date: 11/09/2023
APPRAISAL RATINGS DO NOT DISCLOSE. THIS INFORMATION IS CONFIDENTIAL UNDER THE TEXAS HOMELAND
SECURITY ACT & 23 U.S.C SECTION 409, SAFETY SENSITIVE INFORMATION.
TRAFFIC SAFETY FEATURES (ITEM 36) Rating Comment
Bridge Rails: 0
0 - Does not meet current standards e
1 - Meets current standards Transitions: 0
N - Not applicable Appr. Rails: 0
Appr. Rail Ends: 0
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WATERWAY ADEQUACY (ITEM 71) 9

APPROACH ROADWAY ALIGNMENT (ITEM 72) 5
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Inspector: Justin Wilson * Structure Number: 210310C00804002
Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 l.;..’:"-_- Facility Carried: NB LN INTER BR
Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 1 Defect

Description West sidewalk missing joint at Abutment side.

PHOTO 2 Defect

Description Deck drains clogged
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Inspector: Justin Wilson * Structure Number: 210310C00804002
Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 l.;..’-_-_- Facility Carried: NB LN INTER BR
Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO3  Defect

Description 2.5 inch gap between safety walk rail
o o BT i

PHOTO 4 Defect
Description West safety walk spall in Span 4 14in L x 9in H x 3in D
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Inspector: Justin Wilson _ﬁ-' Structure Number: 210310C00804002

Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 P oremrs Facility Carried: NB LN INTER BR
Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 5 Defect

Description 4 inch impact dent at West rail

PHOTO 6 Defect

Description Efflorescence at Cap North side of Pier.
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Inspector: Justin Wilson * Structure Number: 210310C00804002
Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 l.;..’:"-_- Facility Carried: NB LN INTER BR
Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 7 Defect

Description Pier Structure North East corner with sealed shear cracks.

PHOTO 8 Defect

Description Pier Structure South East corner with sealed shear cracks.
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Inspector: Justin Wilson _.5*' Structure Number: 210310C00804002

Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 P oremrs Facility Carried: NB LN INTER BR
Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

-

PHOTO9  Defect

Description Spall at Abutment bottom slab 8in wide x 1in deep.

'.\' 2
PHOTO 10 Defect

Description Spall at Abutment bottom slab 8in wide x 1in deep
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Inspector: Justin Wilson ___.*'- Structure Number: 210310C00804002
Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 l.;..’:"-_- Facility Carried: NB LN INTER BR
Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 11 Defect

Description Northwest Wingwall with poor consolidation at top.

N : RN e T M TS TR T T OS]

PHOTO 12  Defect

Description Efflorescence at Cap North side of Pier.
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Inspector: Justin Wilson * Structure Number: 210310C00804002
Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 l.:..-"'-- Facility Carried: NB LN INTER BR

Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

gy 248

PHOTO 13 Other

Description Pier Structure East face looking West.

PHOTO 14  Elevation View

Description East elevation looking South.
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Inspector: Justin Wilson * Structure Number: 210310C00804002
Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 l.;..‘-‘-- Facility Carried: NB LN INTER BR
Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 15 Elevation View

Description West elevation looking South.

PHOTO 16 ther

Description Pier Column 5 looking south.
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Inspector: Justin Wilson * Structure Number: 210310C00804002
Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 l"‘:—"" Facility Carried: NB LN INTER BR
Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 17  Downstream View

Description Downstream looking East.

"~ CAUTION
Are%cmu&

PHOTO 18

Description Razor wire installed-access to channel not possible
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Inspector: Justin Wilson *'- Structure Number: 210310C00804002
Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 l.;..’:"-_- Facility Carried: NB LN INTER BR
Bridge Inspection Report
Pictures
PHOTO 19

Description Span 4 Superstructure looking South

PHOTO 20  Superstructure View

Description Variable depth post tensioned slab span 5, looking
north.
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Inspector: Justin Wilson * Structure Number: 210310C00804002
Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 l.;..’:"-_- Facility Carried: NB LN INTER BR
Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 21  Roadway View
Description North bound lanes - looking North.

'

PHOTO 22 Roadway View

Description North bound lanes - looking South
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Inspector: Justin Wilson * Structure Number: 210310C00804002
Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 l.;..’:"-_- Facility Carried: NB LN INTER BR
Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 23 Roadway View
Description US-MEX Border.



- BRIDGE INSPECTION REPORT
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over

RIO GRANDE RIVER

Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 ¢
Inspector: Wilson,Justin el
Inspection Type(s):  Rout 'q“ﬁ?iﬁ"fmg
nspection Type(s): outine PR
(BN g
7
1212012023

DO NOT DISCLOSE. THIS INFORMATION IS CONFIDENTIAL UNDER THE TEXAS HOMELAND
SECURITY ACT & 23 U.S.C SECTION 409, SAFETY SENSITIVE INFORMATION.
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Inspector: Wilson,Justin
Inspection Date:

11/09/2023
Parent Contract:

Page 95 of 209

' Structure Number: 210310C00804001
I“ Facility Carried: SB LN INTER BR
i Features Intersected:  RIO GRANDE RIVER
Bridge Inspection Report
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B Bing . B % © 2023 Microsoft Gorporation © 2023 TomTom
Latitude: 25.89904789

Longitude: -97.49734831

DO NOT DISCLOSE. THIS INFORMATION IS CONFIDENTIAL UNDER THE TEXAS HOMELAND SECURITY
ACT & 23 U.S.C SECTION 409, SAFETY SENSITIVE INFORMATION.
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* ® BRIDGE INSPECTION RECORD
S Structure Number 210310C00804001 Inspector Wilson,Justin
De;nw::m » Facility Carried SB LN INTER BR Inspection Date 11/09/2023
of Transportation Feature Intersected RIO GRANDE RIVER Maint. Section 00
coRnat:;:lKgm Description* Seal:
N reeceereeeeeees Not Applicable
[ ORI Excellent Condition
8 e B Very Good Condition - no problems noted
T oo Bhieecceriaeans Good Condition - some minor problems
B L Satisfactory Condition - minor deterioration of structural elements (limited)
5 e reecrrenees Fair Condition - minor deterioration of structural elements (extensive)
- SRS Poor Condition - deterioration significantly affects structural capacity
< TP ST SO Serious Condition - deterioration seriously affects structural capacity, local
failures possible
2 R Critical Condition - advance deterioration of primary elements, bridge
should be closed until repaired
T g Failing Condition - bridge closed but repairable
[0 SO Failed Condition - bridge closed and beyond repair Signature & Date:

*These descriptions are for items 58, 59, 60 and 65. Code Iltems 61 and 62 according fo the
TxDOT Coding Guide.

Bridge Description:

5 Cast-in-Place Post Tensioned Slab and Girder Spans with 1 Variable Depth Post Tensioned Slab Span

General Comments

Prime Firm Name & Number:

Sub Firm Name & Number:

This inspection covers only the portion of the structure on the United States side. According to administration
directives, the Mexico side will be left to be inspected by Mexican authorities.

Bents (7 - 13) are numbered from north to south per the original plans. The North Abutment designated as

"Abutment No. 7" (This is in continuation to the northbound sister structure 21-031-C008-04-002). The
U.S./Mexico boundary line is Pier 9.

Inspection by: Justin Wilson, Team Leader, P.E. (TXDOT BRG), Christian Roque, E.LT. (TXDOT BRG), and
Eric Trevino (TXDOT PHR).

Razor wire was placed below the bridge in Span 7. Bent 8, Span 8, and the channel were not accessible for

inspection. Channel notes were taken from the 2021 inspection.

DECK Structure ID: 210310C00804001 Inspection Date: 11/09/2023
(|TEM 58) DO NOT DISCLOSE. THIS INFORMATION IS CONFIDENTIAL UNDER THE TEXAS HOMELAND
SECURITY ACT & 23 U.S.C SECTION 409, SAFETY SENSITIVE INFORMATION.
Component Description Min.  Rating Comment
[Deck - Component Rating 1 7 | - The underside of the deck below the sidewalk exhibits minor transverse
cracks.
Wearing Surface HMAC 6 8 - Abutment 7: Full width transverse crack at the edge of the backwall, 1/8" wide.
(Photo 12)
Surfacing Thickness: 3 inches
Fill Height: inches
Joints, Expansion, Open 6 N
Joints, Expansion, Sealed 6 7 - All expansion joints are covered with asphalt
Joints, Other 6 N
Drainage System 6 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies.
Curbs, Sidewalk & Parapets 6 7 - The east side pedestrian/traffic concrete parapet exhibits minor transverse
cracking in all spans.
Median Barrier 6 N
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Railings 6 6 - Span 8, East Fence: The horizontal bars have two areas of corrosion with
100% section loss. (Photo 13).
Railing Type:
Railing Protective Coating Paint 7 - Span 8, East Fence: The horizontal bars have two areas of failed galvanizing.
Delineation Raised Pavement 7 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies.
Markers
Other - N
SUPERSTRUCTURE Structure ID: 210310C00804001 Inspection Date: 11/09/2023
(ITEM 59) SEQURTTY ACT & 53 /S0 SECTION 405, SAFETY SENSITIVE INFORMATION:
Component Description Min.  Rating Comment
Main Members - Steel 0 N
Main Members - Concrete 0 7 - The girders exhibit minor diagonal cracks at the ends on all the spans.
- The spalls reported in the 2017 inspection were repaired; the repairs are
performing weil.
Main Members - Timber 0 N
Main Members - Connections 0 N
Floor System Members 1 N
Floor System Connections 1 N
Secondary Members Conc Diaphragms 5 7 - A few diaphragms exhibit minor spalls along the bottom edges.
Secondary Mem. Connections 5 N
Expansion Bearings 6 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies.
Fixed Bearings 6 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies.
Stee! Protective Coating 6 N
Other - N
|0veral| Component Rating 7 I
SUBSTRUCTURE Structure ID: 210310C00804001 Inspection Date: 11/09/2023
(ITEM 60) SEQURTTY ACT & 23 U.5.C SECTION 405, SAFETY SENSITIVE INFORMATION.
Component Description Min.  Rating Comment
Abutment Caps 0 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies.
Above Ground 0 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies.
Below Ground or Foundation 0 8 - Not visible.
Backwalls & Wingwalls 0 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies.
Intermediate Supports:
Caps - Concrete - 8 - Patch repairs have been made to the intermediate supports since the 2017
Routine Inspection. The repairs are performing well
Caps - Steel N
Caps - Timber N
Above Ground - Concrete 8 - Patch repairs have been made to the intermediate supports since the 2017
Routine Inspection. The repairs are performing well
Above Ground - Steel - N
Above Ground - Timber N
Above Ground - Masonry N
Below Ground or Foundation - 8 - Not visible.
Collision Protection System 5 N
Steel Protective Coating 6 N
|a/erall Component Rating 8
CHANNEL Structure ID: 210310C00804001 Inspection Date: 11/09/2023
(ITEM 61) SECURTTY ACT & 5 UiS.C SECTION 405, SAFETY SENSITIVE INFORMATION. "
Component Description Min.  Rating Comment
Channel Banks 0 8 - Vegetated and stable.
Channel Bed 0 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies.
Rip Rap, Toe Walls & Apron 5 N
Dikes 5 N
Jetties 5 N
Other - N

|
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L -]

CULVERTS Structure ID: 210310C00804001 Inspection Date: 11/09/2023
(ITEM 62) SECURITY AGT & 33 U.5.C SECTION 409, SAFETY SENSITIVE INFORMATION. "
Component Description Min.  Rating Comment

Top Slabs 0 N

Bottom Slab or Footing 0 N

Abutments, Intermed. Supports 0 N

Headwalls & WingWalls 5 N

Other - N

lOveraII Component Rating N
APPROACHES Structure ID: 210310C00804001 Inspection Date: 11/09/2023
(ITEM 65) SECURITY AST & 23 U.S.C SECTION 409, SAFETY SENSITIVE INFORMATION:

Component Description Min.  Rating Comment

Embankments 0 N

Embankment Retaining Walls 4 N

Slope Protection 5 N

Roadway Concrete 5 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies.

Relief Joints 6 N

Drainage 6 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies.

Guardfence 6 N

Delineation 7 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies.

Sight Distance 7 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies.

Other - N

8

IOveraII Component Rating

Structure 1D: 210310C00804001 Inspection Date: 11/09/2023

MISCELLANEOUS DO NOT DISCLOSE. THIS INFORMATION IS CONFIDENTIAL UNDER THE TEXAS HOMELAND
SECURITY ACT & 23 U.S.C SECTION 409, SAFETY SENSITIVE INFORMATION.
Component Description Min.  Rating Comment

Signs N N

lllumination N 8

Warning Devices N N

Utility Lines Qtt_alched to East Metal 7 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies.

ai
Other Pedestrian Canopy N 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies.

APPRAISAL RATINGS

Structure ID: 210310C00804001 Inspection Date: 11/09/2023
DO NOT DISCLOSE. THIS INFORMATION IS CONFIDENTIAL UNDER THE TEXAS HOMELAND
SECURITY ACT & 23 U.S.C SECTION 409, SAFETY SENSITIVE INFORMATION.

TRAFFIC SAFETY FEATURES (ITEM 36) Rating Comment
Bridge Rails: 0
0 - Does not meet current standards e
1 - Meets current standards Transitions: 0
N - Not applicable Appr. Rails: 0
Appr. Rail Ends: 0
WATERWAY ADEQUACY (ITEM 71) 9
APPROACH ROADWAY ALIGNMENT (ITEM 72) 5
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Pictures
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Inspector: Justin Wilson * . Structure Number: 210310C00804001
Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 la:-—— Facility Carried: SB LN INTER BR
Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

oL b T e TiE

PHOTO 1

Description West Elevation

PHOTO 2
Description North Approach
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Inspector: Justin Wilson . *' Structure Number: 210310C00804001
Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 la."::.- Facility Carried: SB LN INTER BR
Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 3
Description North Approach Looking South

PHOTO 4

Description US/Mexico Border
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Inspector: Justin Wilson * Structure Number: 210310C00804001
Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 o Facility Carried: SB LN INTER BR

Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 5
Description South Approach

PHOTO 6
Description South Approach Looking North
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Inspector: Justin Wilson * . Structure Number: 210310C00804001
Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 l...‘."-.-. Facility Carried: SB LN INTER BR

Pictures

PHOTO 7

Description Looking West

PHOTO 8

Description Looking East
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Inspector: Justin Wilson * Structure Number: 210310C00804001
Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 lo..-"':-. Facility Carried: SB LN INTER BR
Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 9
Description Typical Pier

PHOTO 10

Description Typical Superstructure, Span 8
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Inspector: Justin Wilson ) ___.*' Structure Number: 210310C00804001
Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 l-.-"‘-‘— Facility Carried: SB LN INTER BR
Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

*J’.-’.-.?n.,

PHOTO 11

Description Typical Superstructure, Span 7

PHOTO 12

Description Transverse crack at the top of the backwall.
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Inspector: Justin Wilson ** Structure Number: 210310C00804001
Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 lo..‘.'-."— Facility Carried: SB LN INTER BR
Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 13

Description Area of 100% section loss to the east chainlink fence.
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INTERNATIONAL BRIDGE PROPERTY

1-Jul-25

Insurer: Zurich American Insurance Company
Limits
Gateway $3,376,200 Structure
$7,446,000 Business Income / Extra Expense
Los Indios $5,395,800 Structure
$2,754,000 Business Income / Extra Expense
Veterans $51,009,180 Structure

$13,260,000 Business Income / Extra Expense

Policy Aggregate:

$83,241,180

Flood Sublimit $50,000,000
Named Storm Sublimit $50,000,000
Accounts Receivable: $50,000
Expediting Expenses: $500,000
Extra Expense: $500,000
Loss Adjustment Expenses: $100,000

Ordinance and Law:

$1,000,000 (Demolition and Increased Cost of Construction)

Incl. Debris Removal

Lesser of 25% of loss or $5,000,000

Terrorism:

Excluded

Deductible:

5% /$100,000 Minimum Per Location - Named Storm

$100,000 Flood

$ 250,000 Flood (Los Indios)

$50,000 All Other Perils

14 Days / Time Element

International Bridge Property Annual Premium:

$220,704
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* BRIDGE INSPECTION REPORT
l@";'i,’"":i 210310AA0804001

LOS INDIOS INTL BR

over

'

Inspection Date: 11/08/2023
Inspector: Bitla,Naveen
Inspection Type(s): Routine

Texas

Department
of Transportation

RIO GRANDE RIVER

NN
e Te N
£ S0

2o
z * * l’

------------------------------

.
........

1/12/2023

DO NOT DISCLOSE. THIS INFORMATION IS CONFIDENTIAL UNDER THE TEXAS HOMELAND
SECURITY ACT & 23 U.S.C SECTION 409, SAFETY SENSITIVE INFORMATION.
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Location Map



Inspector: Bitla,Naveen ‘ Structure Number:

Inspection Date:  11/08/2023 I,__ Facility Carried:
Department

Parent Contract: AT~ Features Intersected:

Bridge Inspection Report

210310AA0804001
LOS INDIOS INTL BR
RIO GRANDE RIVER

&

‘]'-P.‘r,_

11479 |
Reservair
NMumber 2
Las Rusias
Los Indios [s09] 281
oA Carricitos

La Barranca

Microsat PR > . AnILLA NI
e bin @ 2023 Micresoft Corporation © 2023 TemTom

Landrun

Latitude: 26.02977081

Longitude: -97.73885821
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DO NOT DISCLOSE. THIS INFORMATION IS CONFIDENTIAL UNDER THE TEXAS HOMELAND SECURITY
ACT & 23 U.S.C SECTION 409, SAFETY SENSITIVE INFORMATION.
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‘ @ BRIDGE INSPECTION RECORD
Structure Number

210310AA0804001 Inspector Bitla,Naveen
lg roas Facility Carried LOS INDIOS INTL BR Inspection Date 11/08/2023
of Transportation Feature Intersected RIO GRANDE RIVER Maint. Section 04
C‘:{::;:;" Description* Bail

Mo Not Applicable
8. ... Excellent Condition
8 ... Very Good Condition - no problems noted
7. ... Good Condition - some minor problems
6 ... ... Satisfactory Condition - minor deterioration of structural elements (limited)
Brsaatineiae Fair Condition - minor deterioration of structural elements (extensive)
& it Poor Condition - deterioration significantly affects structural capacity
3. Serious Condition - deterioration seriously affects structural capacity, local

failures possible
Lcsansiaiiie Critical Condition - advance deterioration of primary elements, bridge

should be closed until repaired
T Failing Condition - bridge closed but repairable
O.oocoooeoonnn..... Failed Condition - bridge closed and beyond repair Signature & Date:

*These descriptions are for items 58, 59, 60 and 65. Code Items 61 and 62 according to the

TxDOT Coding Guide. Prime Firm Name & Number:

Bridge Description: Sub Firm Name & Number:
AASHTO Type IV Precast Prestressed Concrete Girders

General Comments:

Los Indios International bridge connects U.S. and Mexico, is stationed from south to north (Mexico ==> U.S.),
and consists of 5 spans with the total length of 503'. The substructure units are labeled from south to north as
per plans beginning Abutment #1 (Mexico side) ending Abutment #6 (U.S. side). The girders are numbered
from west to cast. The U.S./Mexico border line is at Span #3 between Pier #3 and #4. The weather during the
inspection was 78 degrees F, and sunny.

This inspection was performed by walking the top and underside of the bridge. The inspection covers only the
portion of the structure on the U.S. side. According to administration directives, the Mexico side will be left to
be inspected by Mexican Authorities. The equipment used during the inspection were folding ruler, chipping
hammer, tape measure, and camera.

Traffic control was not necessary to gain access to the bridge. The bridge remained open to traffic during the
inspection. Coordination with Cameron County International Bridge System was required to inspect the bridge.

The inspection was performed by Naveen Bitla, P.E. (Team Leader), Hungjoo Kwon, P.E., and Cody Lewis,
operator (TxDOT BRG Division).

DECK Structure 1D: 210310AA0804001 Inspection Date: 11/08/2023
{iTEM 58) DO NOT DISCLOSE. THIS INFORMATION IS CONFIDENTIAL UNDER THE TEXAS HOMELAND
SECURITY ACT & 23 U.S.C SECTION 409, SAFETY SENSITIVE INFORMATION.
Component Description Min.  Rating Comment

[Deck - Component Rating 1 8 - The underside of the deck has stay-in-place (SIP) forms on the U.S. side
Wearing Surface HMAC 6 7 - 10" wide x up to 1/4" deep abrasion for full length along east curb (Photo 20)

Surfacing Thickness: inches

Fill Height: inches

Joints, Expansion, Open

Joints, Expansion, Sealed Header Type 6 6 - 1-1/2" wide x 4" long spall/cracked area in northbound right lane at deck joint,
Pier #4 (Photo 21 and 22)
- 10" wide x 3" long spallicracked area in northbound left lane at deck joint, Pier
#5 (Photo 21)
- 12" missing sealant and 18" wide x 4" long x 2-1/2" deep spall near center
(double yellow line) at deck joint, Pier #4 (Photo 21 and 23)
- 4" wide loose sealant in southbound lane, deck joint, Abutment #6 (Photo 24)

Joints, Other 6 N
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Drainage System Deck Drain Ports 6 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Curbs, Sidewalk & Parapets 6 7 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Median Barrier 6 N
Railings 6 7 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Railing Type:
Railing Protective Coating Galvanized 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Delineation Striping 7 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Other Lighting Standards - 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies
SUPERSTRUCTURE Structure ID: 210310AA0804001 Inspection Date: 11/08/2023
(ITEM 59) D e & 52 0:5.C SEETION 405, SAFETY SENSITIVE INFORMATION. -
.S. ), A
Component Description Min.  Rating Comment
Main Members - Steel 0 N
Main Members - Concrete 0 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Main Members - Timber 0 N
Main Members - Connections 0 N
Floor System Members 1 N
Floor System Connections 1 N
Secondary Members Steel Diaphragms 5 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Secondary Mem. Connections Bolted 5 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Expansion Bearings 6 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Fixed Bearings 6 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Steel Protective Coating 6 N
Other - N
|overall Component Rating 8 |
SUBSTRUCTURE Structure ID: 210310AA0804001 Inspection Date: 11/08/2023
(TEm 60 B o s S e ESHATOR "™
Component Description Min.  Rating Comment
Abutment Caps 0 - Minor debris on Abutment #6 seats
Above Ground 0 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Below Ground or Foundation 0 N
Backwalls & Wingwalls 0 7 - 2 long x 1/8" wide horizontal crack at cheekwall, Abutment #6 (Photo 25)
- Stains due to leakage from deck joint at backwall, Abutment #6
- Typical vertical hairline cracks in all bay, Abutment #6
Intermediate Supports:
Caps - Concrete - 7 - Horizontal hairline crack at the center of cap on the south fascia of Pier #5
(Photo 26)
Caps - Steel - N
Caps - Timber - N
Above Ground - Concrete - 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Above Ground - Stesl - N
Above Ground - Timber - N
Above Ground - Masonry - N
Below Ground or Foundation - N
Collision Protection System 5 N
Steel Protective Coating 6 N
|overall Component Rating 7 J - No noteworthy deficiencies
CHANNEL Structure ID: 210310AA0804001 Inspection Date: 11/08/2023
(TEm 1) B e s AR e mEaAATER "™
Component Description Min.  Rating Comment
Channel Banks 0 6 - 2 areas of erosions 25' long x 4' deep x up to §' wide under Span #5 (Photo 27)
Channel Bed 0 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Rip Rap, Toe Walls & Apron 5 7 - Riprap (apron) at Abutment #6 west side has full width crack at the bottom
{Photo 28)
Dikes 5 N
Jetties 5

N
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Other - N
| overall Component Rating e |
CULVERTS Structure ID: 210310AA0804001 Inspection Date: 11/08/2023
(TEm 62) e I e e s
Component Description Min.  Rating Comment
Top Slabs 0 N
Bottom Slab or Footing 0 N
Abutments, Intermed. Supports 0 N
Headwalls & WingWalls 5 N
Other - N
|overall Component Rating N
APPROACHES Structure ID: 210310AA0804001 Inspection Date: 11/08/2023
(TEM 55) B ety S NS e ameon e "
Component Description Min.  Rating Comment
Embankments 0 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Embankment Retairing Walls 4 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Slope Protection 5 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Roadway 5 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Relief Joints 6 N
Drainage 6 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Guardfence 6 N
Delineation 7 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Sight Distance 7 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Other - N
|overall Component Rating 8 |- No noteworthy deficiencies
Structure ID: 210310AA0804001 Inspection Date: 11/08/2023
MISCELLANEOUS DO NOT DISCLOSE. THIS INFORMATION IS CONFIDENTIAL UNDER THE TEXAS HOMELAND
SECURITY ACT & 23 U.S.C SECTION 409, SAFETY SENSITIVE INFORMATION.
Component Description Min. Rating Comment
Signs N N
|llumination N 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Warning Devices N N
Utility Lines 7 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Other N 7 - Many reflectors on U.S./Mexico border line were missing
Structure ID: 210310AA0804001 Inspection Date: 11/08/2023
APPRAISAL RATINGS DO NOT DISCLOSE. THIS INFORMATION IS CONFIDENTIAL UNDER THE TEXAS HOMELAND
SECURITY ACT & 23 U.S.C SECTION 409, SAFETY SENSITIVE INFORMATION.
TRAFFIC SAFETY FEATURES (ITEM 36) Rating Comment
Bridge Rails: 1
0:Docerlmesourentstanderds  Traniions: 0
N - Not applicable Appr. Rails: 0
Appr. Rail Ends: 0
WATERWAY ADEQUACY (ITEM 71) 8
APPROACH ROADWAY ALIGNMENT (ITEM 72) 8
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Inspector: Naveen Bitla * Structure Number: 210310AA0804001
Inspection Date: 11/08/2023 I“. Facility Carried: LOS INDIOS INTL BR

Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 1 Elevation View

Description East Elevation of Bridge Looking Southwest

PHQTO 2 Elevation View

Description West Elevation of Bridge Looking Southeast
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Inspector: Naveen Bitla ﬁ* . Structure Number: 210310AA0804001

Inspection Date: 11/08/2023 ln-o—- Facility Carried: LOS INDIOS INTL BR
Bridge Inspection Report

Tt

Pictures

PHOTO 3 Roadway View
Description Bridge from North Approach Looking South

PHOTO 4 Roadway View
Description North Approach from Bridge Looking North
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Inspector: Naveen Bitla * . Structure Number: 210310AA0804001

Inspection Date: 11/08/2023 ln.."‘:.- Facility Carried: LOS INDIOS INTL BR
Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 5 Roadway View
Description Deck Joint at Abutment #6 Looking West

PHOTO 6 Roadway View
Description Typical Top of Deck Shown at Span #5 Looking Northwest
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Inspector: Naveen Bitla * . Structure Number: 210310AA0804001
Inspection Date: 11/08/2023 lc-.::—- Facility Carried: LOS INDIOS INTL BR
Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 7 Roadway View
Description East Sidewalk Looking North

PHOTO 8 Roadway View
Description West Sidewalk Looking North
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Inspector: Naveen Bitla * Structure Number: 210310AA0804001
Inspection Date: 11/08/2023 l":‘—“ Facility Carried: LOS INDIOS INTL BR
Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 9 Roadway View
Description Bridge at Mexico Side Looking South

PHOTO 10  Other

Description U.S./Mexico Border Line Looking East.
Note: Missing Reflectors Throughout
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Inspector: Naveen Bitla * Structure Number: 210310AA0804001
Inspection Date: 11/08/2023 s Facility Carried: LOS INDIOS INTL BR

I
(CE—

Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 11 Upstream View

Description Upstream Looking West

PHOTO 12 Downstream View

Description Downstream Looking East
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Inspector: Naveen Bitla * Structure Number: 210310AA0804001
Inspection Date: 11/08/2023 I,-..'::.. Facility Carried: LOS INDIOS INTL BR

4wy

Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 13  Other
Description East Side Deck Overhang Shown at Span #5 Looking South

L

PHOTO 14  Other
Description Typical SIP (Stay-In-Place) Form Deck Shown at Bay #4, Span #5 Looking South
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Inspector: Naveen Bitla * Structure Number: 210310AA0804001
Inspection Date: 11/08/2023 la::_'__:__,_ Facility Carried: LOS INDIOS INTL BR
Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

: li‘i; ' } ' N 1] a4 4 11/8/2023
b : = T N R
PHOTO 15 Roadway Under View

Description Underside of Span #4 Looking South

PHOTO 16  Superstructure View
Description Typical Bearing Shown at Girder #2 at Abutment #6 Looking Northwest
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Inspector: Naveen Bitla * . Structure Number: 210310AA0804001

——a
(T

Inspection Date: 11/08/2023 s Facility Carried: LOS INDIOS INTL BR

Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 17  Other
Description Abutment #6 Looking Northeast.

11/8/2023

PHOTO 18  Other
Description Typical Backwall Shown at Bay #2 at Abutment #6
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Inspector: Naveen Bitla * Structure Number: 210310AA0804001
Inspection Date: 11/08/2023 (i) Facility Carried: LOS INDIOS INTL BR

Pictures

PHOTO 19  Other
Description North Elevation of Pier #4 Looking South

PHOTO 20 Defect
Description 10" Wide x up to 1/4" Deep Abrasion for Full Length along East Curb Looking North
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Inspector: Naveen Bitla . * . Structure Number: 210310AA0804001
Inspection Date: 11/08/2023 la.‘.“:_- Facility Carried: LOS INDIOS INTL BR

Pictures

PHOTO 21 Defect

Description Deck Joint at Pier #4 Looking West.
Note: Spalls/Cracked Areas and Missing Sealant

PHOTO 22 Defect

Description Close up of Photo 21. 1-1/2" Wide x 3" Long Spall/Cracked Area in Northbound Right Lane at Pier
#4, Deck Joint Looking West
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Inspector: Naveen Bitla * . Structure Number: 210310AA0804001
Inspection Date: 11/08/2023 la...‘:'...~ Facility Carried: LOS INDIOS INTL BR
Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 23  Defect

Description Close up of Photo 21. 18" Wide x 4" Long x 2-1/2" Deep Spall at Center, Deck Joint at Pier #4
Looking West

PHOTO 24  Defect
Description 4' Wide Loose Joint Sealant in Southbound Lane, Deck Joint, Abutment #6 Looking West
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Inspector: Naveen Bitla * . Structure Number: 210310AA0804001
Inspection Date: 11/08/2023 la."-‘:- Facility Carried: LOS INDIOS INTL BR
Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 25 Defect
Description 2' Long x 1/8" Wide Crack at Cheek Wall, Abutment #6 Looking Northwest

PHOTO 26  Defect

Description Horizontal Hairline Crack at Center of Cap at Pier #5 South Fascia
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Inspector: Naveen Bitla * Structure Number: 210310AA0804001
Inspection Date: 11/08/2023 oot Facility Carried: LOS INDIOS INTL BR

4 S v

Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 27  Defect

Description Erosions under Span #5 Looking North

PHOTO 28  Defect
Description Riprap at Abutment #6 West End. Full Width Crack at Bottom Looking North West
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Bridge Inspection Follow-Up Action



Initial Finding Information
Locatlon Information
Bridge D4  210310AAD804001

Facility Carried  LOS INDIOS INTL BR

Ownership/Responsibility
District Aroa Offico

Systomn Deslgnation 2 Bridgo Owner

Malntenance Information

tnspaection Dato 11/08/2023 Roc Type Level 3

Bridgo Component  Substructure Repair Category
Other:
Description of Issue and Recommendation

- 2* Long x 1/8" Wide Crack at Cheek Wall, Abutment #6
- Riprap at Abutment #6 West Side. Full Wiith Crack at Bottom

Recommendation: Repair the cracks

District Bridge Office Comments

Comments By
District Area or Assigned Maintenance Office Comments

Commonts By

Follow-up Action Resolution Comments
Work to bo Comptotod

Via:

+District Proposed
Funding Source:

Action Taken:

+Additional
Comments If
Nocossary:

Latitude  26.02977081

Foature Crossod

+Project Status:

+CSJIWO/
Project (D:

Vorifiod By

Bridge Inspection Follow-Up Action

Longitude  -97.73885821 County 031-CAMERON Location

RIO GRANDE RIVER

Malntenznce Section Control - Section  AA08 .

Procinct

Proviously Rocommended? N CriticalFinding? N

Seal Cracks (Caps, Columns, etc.)

Date

Date

+District Estimated
Lotting Dato:

+Optional Fiskds

Dato

CRITICAL FINDING FOLLOW UP INFORMATION (BLANK [F FOLLOW UP ACTION IS NOT A CRITICAL FINDING)

Conditlon Rating {Affoctod ofamonts only)

Follow Up Inspection Information:
Automated Emall Sent To:

Date Bridge Division notified of Critical Finding:
TxDOT Inspoctor:

Commonts:

Temporary Repair Information:
TxDQOT Inspoctor:
Bridgo Ownor Rop:

. Date Temporary Ropair was
Temp Repalr In Placs: atalied:

Comments:

P t Repair Infor
TxDOT Inspector:

Bridge Owner Rep:

Date
Discussod w/Bridge Owner:

Comments:

Overall Recommondation:

Now Load Rating / Anatysis Regqulrad?

Dato Bridge Owner notifiod of
Critlcal Finding;

Codnspaction Date w/ Bridge
Owner:

Concur with findings:

Bridgo Owner Rep:

to T
Discussod wlB;lduo Owner:

Co-inspection Date wiBridge Owner:

Date Bridge Division notified of
Temp Repair:

Permanent Ropalr Target Date:
Co-Inspection Date wiBridge Owner:

Dato Bridgo Divislon notificd of

Dato:
. Permenant Repair:

F Repalr

FUAID 701326

2MI S OF US281/FMS09_INT
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DO NOT DISCLOSE - INFORMATION CONFIDENTIAL UNDER THE TEXAS HOMELAND SECURITY ACT AND 23 USC SECTION 409, SAFETY SENSITIVE INFORMATION
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Inspector: Hungjoo Kwon Structure Number: 210310AA0804001

Inspection Date: Facility Carried:
Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO1  Defect
Description 2' Long x 1/8" Wide Crack at Cheek Wall, Abutment #6 Looking Northwest

PHOTO 2 Defect
Description Riprap at Abutment #6 West End. Full Width Crack at Bottom Looking North West
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Bridge Inspection Follow-Up Action

Initial Finding Information

Locatlon Information

Bridge [D#  210310AA0804001 Latitudo  26.02877081 Longitude -97.73885821 County 031-CAMERON Location
Facility Carrlod  LOS INDIOS INTL BR Festuro Crossod  RIO GRANDE RIVER
Ownership/Responstbllity
Arca Offico Maintenznco Scctlon 04 Control - Sectlon  AADB . 04
District
System Dosignation 2 Bridgoe Owner Procinet

Maintenance Information

tnspection Dato 11/08/2023 Roc Type Level3 Praviousty Recommendad? N Critical Finding? N
Bridge Component  Deck Ropair Category  Clean and Seal Joints
Other:

Description of Issue and Recommendation

- Deck joint at Pier #4 has spalls and looso joint seal
- Dock joint at Abutment #6 has looso joint seal

- Recommendation: repair the spalls and the looss joint seal

District Bridge Office Comments

Commonts By

District Area or Assi

d Mai Office C

Comments By

Foll p Action

Date

Work to be Completod

+District Proposod
Funding Source:

Action Tekon:

+Additional
Comments if
Nocossary:

o . +District Estimated
Projoct Status: Lotting Data:

+CSIIWO/
Project ID:

Verified By

CRITICAL FINDING FOLLOW UP INFORMATION (BLANK IF FOLLOW UP ACTION IS NOT A CRITICAL FINDING)

Condition Rating (Affocted olements only) Overall Recommondation:

Follow Up Inspection Information:

Automated Email Sont To:

Dat 1 4 f Critical Finding: Date Bridgo Owner notificd of
o Bridge Dlviston notifled of Inding Critlca) Finding:
Co-inspoction Dato w/ Bridge

TxDOT Inspactor: Ownor:
Commants:
Temp y Repair Infi i
TXDOT I d Dato R dod

X nspector: Discussod wIB;ldao Owner:
Bridgo Owner Rep: Co-inspection Date wiBridge Owner:

" Date Temporary Ropair was Date Bridge Division notified of

Tamp Ropair In Place: Instatied: Tomp Ropair:
Comments:
Per Repalr Infor

TxDOT Inspector:

Bridge Ownor Rop:

Pormanont Repalr Target Date:

Co-nspoction Date w/Bridge Owner:

Date
Discussod wiBridge Owner:

Comments:

o F Repalr C: Dato:

+Optionsl Fields

Dato

Now Load Rating / Analysis Raquired?

Concur with findings:

Bridgo Ownor Rop:

Dato Bridge Divislon notitled of
Permenant Repalr:

FUAID 701324

2 M) S OF US281/FMS09_INT
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Inspector: Hungjoo Kwon Structure Number: 210310AA0804001

Inspection Date: Facility Carried:
Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 1 Defect

Description Deck Joint at Pier #4 Looking West.
Note: Spalls/Cracked Areas and Missing Sealant

.

PHOTO2  Defect
Description 4' Wide Loose Joint Sealant in Southbound Lane, Deck Joint, Abutment #6 Looking West
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tnitial Finding Information
Location Information

Bridge ID#  210310AA0804001 Latitudo  26.02877081 Longituds  -97.73885821 County 031-CAMERON Locatlon
Facility Carried  LOS INDIOS INTL BR Fosturo Crossed  RIO GRANDE RIVER

Ownership/Responsibility

District Araa Office Malntenonco Sectlon 04 Control - Scctlon  AADB - 04
Systom Deslgnation 2 Bridge Owner Precinet

Malntenance Information

tnspection Dato 1170872023 RocType Leveld Praviously Recommended? N Critical Finding? N

Bridge Component Miscellznoous Ropair Catogory  Other - Misc

Other: Reflectors

Description of Issue and Recommendation

Many reflectors on U.S/Mexico border line were missing

- jon: reinstall on tho border ine

District Bridge Office Comments

Comments By Date

District Area or Assigned Mal Office C t

Comments By Dato

Follow-up Action Resolution Comments

Work to be Complated . +District Estimatad

Via: +Project Status Lotting Data:

+District Proposed +CSIIWO/ o

Funding Source: Project iD: | Flakis
Actlon Taken: Vorifled By Date

+Additional

Comments if

Nocossary:

Bridge Inspection Follow-Up Action

CRITICAL FINDING FOLLOW UP INFORMATION (BLANK [F FOLLOW UP ACTION IS NOT A CRITICAL FINDING)

Cenditlon Rating (Affoctod cloments only)

Follow Up Inspection (nformation:
Automated Email Sont To:

Dato Bridge Division notified of Critice! Finding:
TxDOT Inspoctor:

Commaonts:

Temporary Repair information:

TxDOT Inspector:

Bridgo Ownor Rep:

Date Temporary Ropalr was

T 3
‘emp Ropzir tn Placo. Installed:

Comments:

Per Repair
TxDOT lnspector:

Bridgo Owner Rop:

Dato R
Discussed wi/Bridge Ownor:

Commonts:

Ovarall Recommondation:

Dato Bridge Ownor notiflod of
Critical Finding:

Co-tnspoction Data w/ Bridgo
mor:

Now Load Rating f Analysis Roquired?

Concur with findings:

Bridgo Ownor Rep:

Date Te

Discussed wIB:ldgo Owner:

Co-Inspection Date w/Bridge Owner:

Date Bridgoe Blvislon notifled of Temp
Repair:

Permanent Repair Target Dato:

Co-inspection Date w/Bridge Ownor:

F Ropair (

Dato: Date Bridge Divislon notificd of

Pormonant Repair:

FUAID 701320

2 MI S OF US281/FMS09_INT

Page 137 of 209

DO NOT DISCLOSE - INFORMATION CONFIDENTIAL UNDER THE TEXAS HOMELAND SECURITY ACT AND 23 USC SECTION 409, SAFETY SENSITIVE INFORMATION

Page

27 of 28



Page 138 of 209

Inspector: Hungjoo Kwon Structure Number: 210310AA0804001

Inspection Date: Facility Carried:
Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 1 Other

Description U.S./Mexico Border Line Looking East.
Note: Missing Reflectors Throughout
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[eprime
of Tiavesporizion

BRIDGE INSPECTION REPORT

210310C00302002
Veterans Inter(NB)

over
Rio Grande River

Inspection Date: 11/09/2023
Inspector: Bitla,Naveen
Inspection Type(s): Routine

Ry " i

R R R R i e P

R Lk UALL LETL S

oh 1EDFTE A

1/12/2024

DO NOT DISCLOSE. THIS INFORMATION IS CONFIDENTIAL UNDER THE TEXAS HOMELAND
SECURITY ACT & 23 U.S.C SECTION 409, SAFETY SENSITIVE INFORMATION.
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Location Map



Inspector: Bitla,Naveen

=
Fo

Structure Number:
Facility Carried:

Page 142 of 209

210310C00302002
Veterans Inter(NB)

Inspection Date: ~ 11/09/2023
Parent Contract: Features Intersected:  Rio Grande River
Bridge Inspection Report
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Latitude: 25.88745528
Longitude: -97.47617057

DO NOT DISCLOSE. THIS INFORMATION IS CONFIDENTIAL UNDER THE TEXAS HOMELAND SECURITY

ACT & 23 U.S.C SECTION 409, SAFETY SENSITIVE INFORMATION.
Page 2 of 25



Page 143 of 209

Bridge Inspection Record (1085)



Page 144 of 209

‘ ¥ BRIDGE INSPECTION RECORD
Structure Number

210310C00302002 Inspector Bitla,Naveen
I Tt Facility Carried Veterans Inter(NB) Inspection Date 11/09/2023
Daarimacy K .
o A0k Feature Intersected Rio Grande River Maint. Section 02
Condition

Rating Description Seal

Not Applicable

.. Excellent Condition

Very Good Condition - no problems noted

T e Good Condition - some minor problems

Satisfactory Condition - minor deterioration of structural elements (limited)
Fair Condition - minor deterioration of structural elements (extensive)

.. Poor Condition - deterioration significantly affects structural capacity

Serious Condition - deterioration seriously affects structural capacity, local
failures possible

2 e Critical Condition - advance deterioration of primary elements, bridge
should be closed until repaired
T, Failing Condition - bridge closed but repairable
[ Failed Condition - bridge closed and beyond repair Signature & Date:
*These descriptions are for items 58, 59, 60 and 65. Code Items 61 and 62 according to the
TxDOT Coding Guide. Prime Firm Name & Number:
Bridge Description: Sub Firm Name & Number:

44 simple span PRSTR "I" Beams

General Comments:

Veterans International Northbound bridge connects U.S. and Mexico, is stationed from north to south

(U.S. ==> Mexico), and consists of 44 spans with the total length of 4095' according to bridge plans. The
substructure units are labeled from north to south beginning Abutment #1 (U.S. side) ending Abutment #45
(Mexico side). The beams are numbered from east to west as per plans. The U.S./Mexico border line is at Span
#17 between Bent #17 and #18. The weather during the inspection was between 79 and 86 degrees F, and
cloudy.

This inspection was performed by walking the top and underside of the bridge. The inspection covers only the
portion of the structure on the U.S. side. According to administration directives, the Mexico side will be left to
be inspected by Mexican authorities. The equipment used during the inspection were folding ruler, chipping
hammer, tape measure, and camera.

Traffic control was not necessary to gain access to the bridge. The bridge remained open to traffic during the
inspection. Coordination with Cameron County International Bridge System was required to inspect the bridge.

The inspection was performed by Naveen Bitla, P.E. (Team Leader), Hungjoo Kwon, P.E., Cody Lewis,
operator (TxDOT BRG Division).

DECK Structure ID: 210310C00302002 Inspection Date: 11/09/2023
(|TEM 58) DO NOT DISCLOSE. THIS INFORMATION IS CONFIDENTIAL UNDER THE TEXAS HOMELAND
SECURITY ACT & 23 U.S.C SECTION 409, SAFETY SENSITIVE INFORMATION.
Component Description Min.  Rating Comment

|Deck - Component Rating 1 7 | - Transverse hairline cracks throughout on the top of the deck in all spans
(Photo 16)
- Transverse hairline cracks at the bottom of both east and west deck overhangs
(Photo 17)

- Minor cracks perpendicular to the deck joints

- Spall and cracked area at deck joint, Abutment #1. 2' wide x 1' long x 2" deep
(Photo 18)

- 2 edge spalls at the bottom of the deck in Bay #2, Span #6. 2' long x 4" wide x
1" deep (Photo 19)

- Hairline cracks with efflorescence at the bottom of the deck, Bay #5 and #6
near Bent #14 (Photo 20)

Wearing Surface 6 N
Surfacing Thickness: inches

Page 4 of 25
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Fill Height: inches
Joints, Expansion, Open 6
Joints, Expansion, Sealed SEJ-A 6 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Joints, Other Construction 6 7 - Steel header at Abutment #1 deck joint is bent 1/4" towards south for up to 2'
(Photo 18)
Drainage System 6 7 - Short weeps draining directly on the substructure (Photo 21)
Curbs, Sidewalk & Parapets 6 7 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Median Barrier 6 N
Railings 6 9 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Railing Type:
Railing Protective Coating 7 9 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Delineation Striping 7 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Other Light Standards - 9 - No noteworthy deficiencies
SUPERSTRUCTURE Structure ID: 210310C00302002 Inspection Date: 11/09/2023
(TEM 59) B O MATION 5 CONFIDENTAL UNDER T TexAS HOMELAND
Component Description Min.  Rating Comment
Main Members - Steel 0 N
Main Members - Concrete 0 7 - Scrapes and impact damage on the bottom flange of Beam # 1 and #2, Span
#2. 7" long x 3" wide x 1/8" deep (Photo 22)
Main Members - Timber 0 N
Main Members - Connections 0 N
Floor System Members 1 N
Floor System Connections 1 N
Secondary Members 5 N
Secondary Mem. Connections 5 N
Expansion Bearings 6 9 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Fixed Bearings 6 9 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Steel Protective Coating 6 N
Other - N
|0vera|| Component Rating 7
SUBSTRUCTURE Structure ID: 210310C00302002 Inspection Date: 11/09/2023
(ITEM 60) SECURITY ACT & 23 U.S.C SECTION 409, SAFETY SENSITIVE INFORMATION.
Component Description Min.  Rating Comment
Abutment Caps 0 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Above Ground 0 9 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Below Ground or Foundation 0 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Backwalls & Wingwalls 0 7 - Hairline map cracking in the backwall, Bay #7, Abutment #1
- Spall with exposed rebars on the backwall at Bay #8, Abutment #1. 16" high x 3-
1/2" deep x 16" wide (Photo 23)
Intermediate Supports:
Caps - Concrete - 7 - Shallow rebar on the bottom face at the west end, Bent Cap #5. 13" long x up to
2" wide x 1/4" deep (Photo 24)
- Shallow rebar on the bottom face at the west end, Bent Cap #7. 1'long x 3" wide
x 1/4" deep
- Popout at the west end, Bent Cap #12. 4" high x 1" wide
Caps - Steel - N
Caps - Timber - N
Above Ground - Concrete - 9 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Above Ground - Steel - N
Above Ground - Timber - N
Above Ground - Masonry - N
Below Ground or Foundation - 9 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Collision Protection System 5 N
Steel Protective Coating 6 N
[Overall Component Rating 7

CHANNEL

Structure ID:

210310C00302002 Inspection Date: 11/09/2023

DO NOT DISCLOSE. THIS INFORMATION IS CONFIDENTIAL UNDER THE TEXAS HOMELAND
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SECURITY ACT & 23 U.S.C SECTION 409, SAFETY SENSITIVE INFORMATION.

(ITEM 61)
Component Description Min.  Rating Comment
Channel Banks 0 7 - 3 areas of erosion at Bent #6. 15" Long x 2' Wide x Up to 2' Deep (Photo 25)
Channel Bed 0 8
Rip Rap, Toe Walls & Apron 5 7 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Dikes 5 N
Jetties 5 N
Other - N
[ Overall Component Rating 7
CULVERTS Structure ID: 210310C00302002 Inspection Date: 11/09/2023
(ITEM 62) SECURITY ACT & 23 U.S.G SECTION 409, SAFETY SENSITIVE INFORMATION.
Component Description Min.  Rating Comment
Top Slabs 0 N
Bottom Slab or Footing 0 N
Abutments, Intermed. Supports 0 N
Headwalls & WingWalls 5 N
Other - N
[Overall Component Rating N
APPROACHES Structure ID: 210310C00302002 Inspection Date: 11/09/2023
(TEM 65 B T S5 U o o Are e BN "
Component Description Min.  Rating Comment
Embankments 0 9 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Embankment Retaining Walls 4 9 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Slope Protection 5 9 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Roadway 5 7 - Transverse sealed cracks at the north approach
Relief Joints 6 N
Drainage 6 9 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Guardfence 6 N
Delineation 7 N
Sight Distance 7 9 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Other - N
[overall Component Rating 7
Structure ID: 210310C00302002 Inspection Date: 11/09/2023
MISCELLANEOUS DO NOT DISCLOSE. THIS INFORMATION IS CONFIDENTIAL UNDER THE TEXAS HOMELAND
SECURITY ACT & 23 U.S.C SECTION 409, SAFETY SENSITIVE INFORMATION.
Component Description Min.  Rating Comment
Signs N 9 - No noteworthy deficiencies
lllumination N 9 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Warning Devices N N
Utility Lines 7 9 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Other N N
Structure ID: 210310C00302002 Inspection Date: 11/09/2023

APPRAISAL RATINGS

DO NOT DISCLOSE. THIS INFORMATION IS CONFIDENTIAL UNDER THE TEXAS HOMELAND
SECURITY ACT & 23 U.S.C SECTION 409, SAFETY SENSITIVE INFORMATION.

TRAFFIC SAFETY FEATURES (ITEM 36) Rating Comment
Bridge Rails: 1
0 - Does not meet current standards e
1 - Meets current standards Transitions: !
N - Not applicable Appr. Rails: 1
Appr. Rail Ends: 1
WATERWAY ADEQUACY (ITEM 71) 6
APPROACH ROADWAY ALIGNMENT (ITEM 72) 8
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Pictures
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Inspector: Naveen Bitla *'- Structure Number: 210310C00302002
Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 l.;-.’:"-_- Facility Carried: Veterans Inter(NB)
Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 1 Elevation View

Description West Elevation of Bridge Looking Southeast

PHOTO 2 Elevation View

Description East Elevation of Bridge Looking Southwest
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Inspector: Naveen Bitla ___.*'- Structure Number: 210310C00302002
Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 l.;-.’:"-_- Facility Carried: Veterans Inter(NB)
Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 3 Roadway View
Description North Approach from Bridge Looking North

PHOTO 4 Roadway View

Description Bridge from North Approach Looking South
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Inspector: Naveen Bitla _5*- Structure Number: 210310C00302002
Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 l.;-."."-_- Facility Carried: Veterans Inter(NB)

Pictures

PHOTO 5 Other
Description Top of Deck at Span #1 Looking Southwest

PHOTO 6 Other
Description Deck Joint at Bent #2 Looking West
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Inspector: Naveen Bitla _.5*' Structure Number: 210310C00302002
Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 l-p-.":‘—.- Facility Carried: Veterans Inter(NB)
Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 7 Roadway View
Description Mexico Side of Bridge Looking South

PHOTO 8 Roadway View

Description U.S. Side of Bridge from U.S./Mexico Border Line Looking North
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Inspector: Naveen Bitla _*- Structure Number: 210310C00302002
Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 l.;-."."‘-_- Facility Carried: Veterans Inter(NB)

Pictures

PHOTO 9 Other

Description U.S./Mexico Border Line Looking West

PHOTO 10 Downstream View

Description Downstream Looking East
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Inspector: Naveen Bitla __.*'- Structure Number: 210310C00302002
Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 l.;-.’:"-_- Facility Carried: Veterans Inter(NB)

Pictures

PHOTO 11 Other
Description East Sidewalk Looking South

11,49/ 2023

PHOTO 12  Other
Description Underside of Deck at Span #14 Looking North
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Inspector: Naveen Bitla *'- Structure Number: 210310C00302002
Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 l.;-.’:"-_- Facility Carried: Veterans Inter(NB)
Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 13  Other

Description Abutment #1 Looking Northwest

— —

PHOTO 14  Other
Description Typical Bearings Shown Beam #8 and #9, Abutment #1 Looking Northwest
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Inspector: Naveen Bitla * Structure Number: 210310C00302002
Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 l.;-.’:"-_- Facility Carried: Veterans Inter(NB)
Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 15  Other
Description South Elevation of Bent #4 Looking North

PHOTO 16  Other, Defect

Description Deck Joint at Bent #10 Looking West.
Note: Transverse Crack
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Inspector: Naveen Bitla * Structure Number:
Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 l.;..’:'._. Facility Carried:

Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 17  Defect

Description Typical Transverse Cracks at 5' Spacing in East Deck Overhang Shown is in Span #13

PHOTO 18 Defect

11,49/ 2023

Page 156 of 209

210310C00302002

Veterans Inter(NB)

Description Spall and Cracked Area at Deck Joint, Abutment #1 Looking East. 2' Wide x 1' Long x 2" Deep

Note: Steel Header Bent 1/4" toward South
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Inspector: Naveen Bitla *'- Structure Number: 210310C00302002
Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 l.;-.’:"-_- Facility Carried: Veterans Inter(NB)
Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 19  Defect
Description 2 Edge Spalls at Bottom of Deck at Bay #2, Span #6. 2' Long x 4" Wide x 1" Deep

PHOTO 20 Defect

Description Hairline Cracks with Efflorescence at Bottom of Deck, Bay #5 and #6 near Bent #14
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Inspector: Naveen Bitla _5*- Structure Number: 210310C00302002
Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 l.;-."."-_- Facility Carried: Veterans Inter(NB)
Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 21  Defect
Description Typical Short Weep Draining Directly on Superstructure Shown at Bent #8

PHOTO 22 Defect

Description Scrapes and Impact Damage on Bottom of Beams # 1 and #2 at Span #2, 7" Long x 3" Wide x
1/8" Deep
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Inspector: Naveen Bitla _5*- Structure Number: 210310C00302002
Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 l.;-."."-_- Facility Carried: Veterans Inter(NB)
Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 23  Defect
Description Spall with Exposed Rebar on Backwall at Bay #8, Abutment #1. 16" High x 3-1/2" Deep x 16" Wide

PHOTO 24  Defect
Description Shallow Rebar at West End, Bottom Face, Bent Cap #5. 13" Long x Up to 2" Wide x 1/4" Deep
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Inspector: Naveen Bitla *'- Structure Number: 210310C00302002
Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 l.;-.’:"-_- Facility Carried: Veterans Inter(NB)
Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 25 Defect
Description 3 Areas of Erosion at Bent #6 Looking North. 15' Long x 2' Wide x Up to 2' Deep
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Initial Finding Information
Location Information
Bridge ID#  210310C00302002

Facility Carried  Veterans Inter(NB)
Ownership/Responsibility

- Area Office
District

System Designation 2 Bridge Owner

Maintenance Information

Inspection Date 11/09/2023 Rec Type Level 3

Bridge Component Substructure Repair Category

Other:

Description of Issue and Recommendation

Latitude 25.88745528

Feature Crossed

Previously Recommended? Y

Bridge Inspection Follow-Up Action

Longitude -97.47617057 County 031-CAMERON

Rio Grande River

Maintenance Section 02 Control - Section C003

Precinct

Critical Finding? N

Seal Cracks (Caps, Abutments, Wingwalls, Backwalls, Columns, etc.)

- Spall with exposed rebar on the backwall at Bay #8, Abutment #1. 16" high x 3-1/2" deep x 16" wide

Recommendation: Repair the spall on the backwall at Bay #8, Abutment #1

District Bridge Office Comments

Comments By

District Area or Assigned Maintenance Office Comments

Comments By

Follow-up Action Resolution Comments
Work to be Completed
Via:

+District Proposed
Funding Source:

Action Taken:

+Additional
Comments if
Necessary:

Verified By

+Project Status:

Date

Date

+District Estimated
Letting Date:

+CSJ/ WO/
Project ID:

Date

CRITICAL FINDING FOLLOW UP INFORMATION (BLANK IF FOLLOW UP ACTION IS NOT A CRITICAL FINDING)

Condition Rating (Affected elements only)

Follow Up Inspection Information:
Automated Email Sent To:

Date Bridge Division notified of Critical Finding:
TxDOT Inspector:

Comments:

Temporary Repair Information:

TxDOT Inspector:

Bridge Owner Rep:

Date Temporary Repair was

Temp Repair In Place:
emp Repalr ace Installed:

Comments:

Permanent Repair Information:
TxDOT Inspector:

Bridge Owner Rep:

Date Permanent Recommended Repair(s)
Discussed w/Bridge Owner:

Comments:

Overall Recommendation:

Date Bridge Owner notified of

Critical

Co-Inspection Date w/ Bridge

Owner:

Date T

Finding:

Bridge Owner Rep:

porary F
Discussed w/Bridge Owner:

Co-l

nspection Date w/Bridge Owner:

Date Bridge Division notified of
Temp Repair:

Permanent Repair Target Date:

Co-Inspection Date w/Bridge Owner:

Permanent Repair Construction Date:

+Optional Fields

Concur with findings:

Date Bridge Divisi
Permenant Repair:

02

Location

New Load Rating / Analysis Required?
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FUAID 702076

.02 M S of TollBooth

DO NOT DISCLOSE - INFORMATION CONFIDENTIAL UNDER THE TEXAS HOMELAND SECURITY ACT AND 23 USC SECTION 409, SAFETY SENSITIVE INFORMATION
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Inspector: Hungjoo Kwon Structure Number: 210310C00302002

Inspection Date: Facility Carried:

Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 1 Defect
Description Spall with Exposed Rebar on Backwall at Bay #8, Abutment #1. 16" High x 3-1/2" Deep x 16" Wide
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Initial Finding Information
Location Information
Bridge ID#  210310C00302002

Facility Carried  Veterans Inter(NB)
Ownership/Responsibility

- Area Office
District

System Designation 2 Bridge Owner

Maintenance Information

Inspection Date 11/09/2023 Rec Type Level 3

Bridge Component Deck Repair Category

Other:

Description of Issue and Recommendation

Latitude 25.88745528

Feature Crossed

Bridge Inspection Follow-Up Action

Longitude

Maintenance Section

Previously Recommended? Y

-97.47617057 County 031-CAMERON

Rio Grande River

02 Control - Section  C003 -

Precinct

Critical Finding? N

Repair Spalls (Partial-Depth)

- Spall and cracked area at deck joint, Abutment #1. 2' wide x 1' long x 2" deep. Also, steel header bent 1/4"

Recommendation: Repair the spall, cracked area, and the steel header at the deck joint, Abutment #1

District Bridge Office Comments

Comments By

District Area or Assigned Maintenance Office Comments

Comments By

Follow-up Action Resolution Comments
Work to be Completed
Via:

+District Proposed
Funding Source:

Action Taken:

+Additional
Comments if
Necessary:

Verified By

+Project Status:

+CSJ/ WO/
Project ID:

Date

Date

+District Estimated
Letting Date:

+Optional Fields

Date

CRITICAL FINDING FOLLOW UP INFORMATION (BLANK IF FOLLOW UP ACTION IS NOT A CRITICAL FINDING)

Condition Rating (Affected elements only)

Follow Up Inspection Information:
Automated Email Sent To:

Date Bridge Division notified of Critical Finding:
TxDOT Inspector:

Comments:

Temporary Repair Information:

TxDOT Inspector:

Bridge Owner Rep:

Date Temporary Repair was

Temp Repair In Place:
emp Repalr ace Installed:

Comments:

Permanent Repair Information:
TxDOT Inspector:

Bridge Owner Rep:

Date Permanent Recommended Repair(s)
Discussed w/Bridge Owner:

Comments:

Overall Recommendation:

Date Bridge Owner notified of

Critical Finding:

Co-Inspection Date w/ Bridge

Owner:

02

Location

New Load Rating / Analysis Required?

Concur with findings:

Bridge Owner Rep:

Date T

porary F
Discussed w/Bridge Owner:

Co-Inspection Date w/Bridge Owner:

Date Bridge Division notified of
Temp Repair:

Permanent Repair Target Date:

Co-Inspection Date w/Bridge Owner:

Permanent Repair Construction Date:

Date Bridge Divisi
Permenant Repair:
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FUA ID 702071

.02 M S of TollBooth

DO NOT DISCLOSE - INFORMATION CONFIDENTIAL UNDER THE TEXAS HOMELAND SECURITY ACT AND 23 USC SECTION 409, SAFETY SENSITIVE INFORMATION
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Inspector: Hungjoo Kwon Structure Number: 210310C00302002

Inspection Date: Facility Carried:

Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 1 Defect

Description Spall and Cracked Area at Deck Joint, Abutment #1 Looking East. 2' Wide x 1' Long x 2" Deep
Note: Steel Header Bent 1/4" toward South

Page 25 of 25



j BRIDGE INSPECTION REPORT
Lo, 210310C00302001
LOS TOMATES INTER.
over

RIO GRANDE RIVER

Inspection Date: 11/09/2023
Inspector: Bitla,Naveen
Inspection Type(s): Routine

Texas

Department
of Transporiation

YWY
E C’F TE W
’-_- fo 4:-15,\
f *..." ”
FR.F

» '
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’...: .......................... 5
f,r %, 150274 Q, Z
" Q\ *s fchNsﬁg \,}QK :I
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N
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=

1/12/2024

DO NOT DISCLOSE. THIS INFORMATION IS CONFIDENTIAL UNDER THE TEXAS HOMELAND
SECURITY ACT & 23 U.5.C SECTION 409, SAFETY SENSITIVE INFORMATION.
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Location Map



Inspector: Bitla,Naveen
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210310C00302001
LOS TOMATES INTER.

Structure Number:
Facility Carried:

—
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Latitude: 25.88745388
Longitude: -97.47642484

DO NOT DISCLOSE. THIS INFORMATION IS CONFIDENTIAL UNDER THE TEXAS HOMELAND SECURITY

ACT & 23 U.S.C SECTION 409, SAFETY SENSITIVE INFORMATION.
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* BRIDGE INSPECTION RECORD
= Structure Number 210310C00302001 Inspector Bitla,Naveen
Ie;:ﬁm_ Facility Carried LOS TOMATES INTER. Inspection Date 11/09/2023
of Transportalion Feature Intersected RIO GRANDE RIVER Maint. Section
Condition .
Raling Description S
N...eere. Not Applicable
B e ety Excellent Condition
B.. ... Very Good Condition - no problems noted
- ... Good Condition - some minar problems
B ... Satisfactory Cond lion - minor deterioration of structural elements (limited)
5. .. Fair Condition - mincr deterioration of structural elements (extensive)
4. ... Poor Condition - deterioration sign ficantly affects structural capacily
o ... Serious Condition - deterioration seriously affects structural capacity, local
failures possible
2 ... Critical Condilion - advance deterioration of pnmary elements, bridge
should be closed until repaired
1.ieesieeeenne. Failing Condition - bridge closed but repairable
O oorerereenserenenns Failed Condition - bridge closed and bayond repair Sigatimo & Dato:
“These descriptions are for tems 56, 59, 60 and 65. Code ltems 61 and 62 according to the -
TxDOT Coding Guide. Frime Firm Name & Number:
Bridge Description: Sub Firm Nama & Numbar:

43 Prestrassed Concrete |-Beam Spans on Multi-column Bents

General Commenls:

Los Tomates International bridge connects U.S. and Mexico, is stationed from north to south (U.S, ==>
Mexico), and consists of 43 spans with the total length of 4024". The substructure units are labeled from north
to south beginning Abutment #1 (U.S. side) ending Abutment #44 (Mexico side). The beams are numbered
from east to west. The U.S./Mexico border is at Span #18 between Bents #18 and #19. The weather during the
inspection was between 79 and 86 degrees I, and cloudy.

This inspection was performed by walking the top and underside of the bridge. The inspection covers only the
portion of the structure on the U.S. side. According to administration directives, the Mexico side will be left to
be inspected by Mexican authorities. The equipment used during the inspection were folding ruler, chipping
hammer, tape measure, and camera.

Traffic control was not necessary to gain access to the bridge. The bridge remained open to traffic during the
inspection. Coordination with Cameron County International Bridge System was required to inspect the bridge.

The inspection was performed by Naveen Bitla, P.E. (Team Leader), Hungjoo Kwon, P.E., Cody Lewis,
operator (TxDOT BRG Division).

DECK Structure 1D: 210310C00302001 Inspecticn Date: 11/08/2023
(lTEM 58] DO NOT DISCLOSE. THIS INFORMATION IS CONFIDENTIAL UNDER THE TEXAS HOMELAND
SECURITY ACT & 23 U.S.C SECTION 409, SAFETY SENSITIVE INFORMATION.
Component Description Min,  Rating Comment
|Deck - Component Rating 1 [ [ - Sealed cracks cn the top of the deck throughout the bridge. Most of these
sealed cracks run perpendicular to the deck joints (Photo 24)

- Transverse hairline cracks up 1o full width on the tap of the deck (Phote 25)
- Random transverse haifine cracks at the bottom of the deck at Bay #3, Span
#5 (Phcte 26)
- 8pall at the battom of tha deck, Bay #4, Span #6, 8" wide x 3" long x 1" deep
(Photo 27)
- Hairline cracks with efflcrescence at the bottom of deck, Bay #6 near Bent #10
(Photo 28)
- Delaminatad area in west deck overhang at Bent #12. 1'long x up to 6' wide
(Photo 29)

Wearing Surface & N

Surfacing Thickness: inches

Fill Height: inches
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Joints, Expansion, Open 6
Joints, Expansion, Seated 6 7 - Deteriorated sealants were identified at southbound Deck Joint Bent #5 and
#8, and northbound Deck Joint Bent #8
Joints, Other Construction 6 7 - Sealed cracks perpendicular to the joints (Photo 24)
Drainage System Slope 6 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Curbs, Sidewalk & Parapets 6 7 - Random hairline cracks on parapet (Photo 30)
- Delamination at the top of the parapet near Bent #7. 4’ long x 3" high
- Spall and missing bolts at Bent #17 {Photo 31)
Median Barrier 6 7 - Impact damage and spall on temporary concrete median barrier near Bent #8,
southbound (Photo 32)
Railings 6 7 - Disconnected railing near Bent #16 northbound (Photo 33)
Railing Type:
Railing Protective Coating N
Delineation 7 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Other Light Standards - 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies
SUPERSTRUCTURE Structure ID: 210310C00302001 Inspection Date: 11/09/2023
(TEm 59 B et s SAvE e MEBATER "™
Component Description Min.  Rating Comment
Main Members - Steel 0 N
Main Members - Concrete 0 8 - Minor edge spall on the bottom flange chamfer near mid-span of Beam #3,
Span #6 (Photo 34)
- Patched area on the bottom flange near mid-span of Beam #11, Span #12
(Photo 35)
Main Members - Timber 0 N
Main Members - Connsctions 0 N
Floor System Members 1 N
Floor System Connections 1 N
Secondary Members 5 N
Secondary Mem. Connections 5 N
Expansion Bearings 6 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Fixed Bearings 6 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Steel Protective Coating 6 N
Other Filler between girders - 7 - Loose fillers between deck and top flange of beams at random locations (Photo
and decks 36)
|overall Component Rating 7 |
SUBSTRUCTURE Structure ID: 210310C00302001 Inspection Date: 11/09/2023
(TEm o0 P o
Component Description Min.  Rating Comment
Abutment Caps 0 8 - Moderate accumulation of debris on bridge seats at Abutment #1 (Photo 37)
Above Ground 0 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Below Ground or Foundation 0 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Backwalls & Wingwalls 0 7 - Horizontal hairline cracks on the backwall at Abutment #1 (Photo 37)
Intermediate Supports:
Caps - Concrete - 7 - Hairline cracks at the west end of Bent Cap #11, #12, #13, and #16 (Photo 38)
Caps - Steel - N
Caps - Timber - N
Above Ground - Concrete - 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Above Ground - Steel - N
Above Ground - Timber - N
Above Ground - Masonry - N
Below Ground or Foundation - 7 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Collision Protection System 5 N
Steel Protective Coating 6 N
|overall Component Rating 7 |
CHANNEL Structure ID: 210310C00302001 Inspection Date: 11/09/2023
(TEM 1) B v s AR et EGAATER "™
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Component Description Min.  Rating

Channel Banks

Page 173 of 209

Comment

- Erosion at Bent #16 between Bent Column #2 and #3. 30 long x 4' wide x 2'

deep (Photo 39)
- Minor erosion at Bent #16 between Bent Cotumn #3 and #4. 10° long x 8" wide x

6" deep

Channel Bed 0 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Rip Rap, Toe Walls & Apron 5 8 - Random cracks at west side apron near Abutment #1
Dikes 5 N
Jetties 5 N
Other - N
| Overall Component Rating 6 |- No noteworthy deficiencies
CULVERTS Structure ID: 210310C00302001 Inspection Date: 11/09/2023
(TEm 52) B e e o AL e eSO "
Component Description Min.  Rating Comment
Top Slabs 0 N
Bottom Slab or Footing 0 N
Abutments, Intermed. Supports 0 N
Headwalls & WingWalls 5 N
Other - N
[Overall Component Rating N
APPROACHES Structure ID: 210310C00302001 Inspection Date: 11/09/2023
(TEM 65) B e oy SArer e eSO e "
Component Description Min,  Rating Comment
Embankments 0 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Embankment Retaining Walls 4 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Slope Protection 5 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Roadway 5 6 - Pothole in north approachsound bound. 1' diameter x 2" deep (Photo 40)
- Typical seated moderate cracks at the north approach concrete slab
Retief Joints 6 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Drainage 6 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Guardfence 6 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Delineation 7 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Sight Distance 7 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Other - N
|0verall Component Rating U
Structure [D: 210310C00302001 Inspection Date: 11/09/2023
MISCELLANEOUS DO NOT DISCLOSE. THIS INFORMATION IS CONFIDENTIAL UNDER THE TEXAS HOMELAND
SECURITY ACT & 23 U.S.C SECTION 409, SAFETY SENSITIVE INFORMATION.
Component Description Min.  Rating Comment
Signs N 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies
litlumination N 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Waming Devices N N
Utitity Lines 7 8 - No noteworthy deficiencies
Other N N
Structure ID: 210310C00302001 Inspection Date: 11/09/2023
APPRAISAL RATINGS DO NOT DISCLOSE. THIS INFORMATION IS CONFIDENTIAL UNDER THE TEXAS HOMELAND

SECURITY ACT & 23 U.S.C SECTION 409, SAFETY SENSITIVE INFORMATION.

TRAFFIC SAFETY FEATURES (ITEM 36)

0 - Does not meet current standards
1 - Meets current standards
N - Not applicabte

WATERWAY ADEQUACY (ITEM 71)

Rating

Bridge Rails: 1

Transitions: 0

Appr. Rails: 0

Appr. Rail Ends: 0
8

Comment
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APPROACH ROADWAY ALIGNMENT (ITEM 72) 5
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Pictures
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Inspectar: Naveen Billa * Structure Number: 210310C00302001
Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 lc.;’:... Facility Carried: LOS TOMATES INTER.
Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 1 Elevation View

Description West Elevation of Bridge Looking Southeast

PHOTO 2 Elevation View

Descripticn East Elevation of Bridge Looking Southwest
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Inspector: Naveen Bitla __:*- Structure Number: 210310C00302001

Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 le.-":- Facility Carried: LOS TOMATES INTER.
Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO3  Roadway View

Description Bridge from North Approach Southbound Looking South

Aem—

PHOTO4  Other
Description Global Grab System at North Approach Looking East
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Inspector: Naveen Bitla * Structure Number; 210310C00302001
Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 ol Facility Carried: LOS TOMATES INTER.

Bridge Inspection Report
Pictures

PHOTO 5 Roadway View
Description Norih Approach Soundbound from Bridge Looking North

PHOTO 6 Reoadway View
Description North Appreach Northbound from Bridge Looking North
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Inspector: Naveen Billa * Structure Number: 210310C00302001
Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 la::—- Facility Carried: LOS TOMATES INTER.

Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 7 Other
Description Dack Jaint at Abutment #1 Laoking East
T.-‘, “Z : T __‘___\ .

PHOTO 8 Other
Description Top of Deck Shown at Span #2 Looking Southeast
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Inspector: Naveen Billa * v Structure Number: 210310C00302001

Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 l_""_. Facility Carried: LOS TOMATES INTER.
Bridge Inspeclion Report

Pictures

PHOTO & Roadway View

Description

PHOTO 10 Other

Description U.S./Mexico Border Line Looking East
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210310C00302001

Structure Number:

Naveen Bitla

Inspectar:

LOS TOMATES INTER.

Facility Carried:

11/09/2023

Inspection Date:

Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

Other

PHOTO 11

West Sidewalk Looking South

Description

PHOTO 12 Ofther

East Sidewalk Looking Nortn

Description
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Inspectar: Naveen Bitla * Structure Number: 210310CD0302001

Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 l».‘.".“ Facility Carried: LOS TOMATES INTER.
Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 14 Daownstream View

Description Downstream Looking East
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Inspector: Naveen Billa * . Structure Number: 210310C00302001
Inspection Date; 11/09/2023 l:.‘:'..ﬂ Facility Carried: LOS TOMATES INTER.

Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

",

PHOTO 15  Other
Description Abutment #1 Looking Northeast

A7 ?.73‘-'.'1"' T

PHOTO 16 ;
Description North Apron (Riprap) Looking East
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Inspector: Naveen Bitla * Structure Number: 210310C00302001
Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 ln...""w Facility Carried: LOS TOMATES INTER.

Bridge Inspection Repart

Pictures

PHOTO 17 Superstructure View
Description Typical Bearing at Abutment #1 Shown Beam #3

PHOTO 18  Other
Description Typical Bridge Seat and Backwall at Bay #10, Abutment #1
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Inspector: Naveen Bitla *- Structure Number: 210310C00302001

Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 la...':.".... Facility Carried: LOS TOMATES INTER.
Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

i

L
PHOTO 18  Other
Description Typical Underside of Deck Shown at Bay #8, Span #1 Loaoking South

y

11/9/2023

PHOTO 20  Superstructure View
Description Underside of Span #9 Looking South
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Inspectaor: Naveen Bitla * Structure Number: 210310C00302001
Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 ln..‘::ﬂ Facility Carried: LOS TOMATES INTER.

e

Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 21  Other
Description Morth Elevation of Bent #2 Looking South

PHOTO 22 Other

Description Narth Elevation of Bent #15 Locking Southwest
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Inspector: Naveen Bitla * " Structure Number: 210310C00302001
Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 F-= Facility Carried: LOS TOMATES INTER.

B

Bridge Inspeclion Report

Pictures

PHOTO 23 Other
Descriptian North Elevation of Bent #18 Looking South

ASSETIIN |

PHOTOQ 24  Other, Defect

Description Deck Joint at Bent #6 in Southbound Looking East,
MNaote 1: Sealed Crack
Note 2: Similar Condition at Bents #7, #8, #10, #12, #13, #15, and #16
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Inspector: Naveen Bitla - . Structure Number: 210310C00302001
Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 I&.--—- Facility Carried: LOS TOMATES INTER.

e

Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 25  Defect
Dascription Transverse Hairline Cracks Up to Full Width, Shawn Southbound Lane, Span #11 Looking East

PHOTQ 26  Defect
Description Random Transverse Hairline Cracks in Deck Shown Span #5. Bay #3 near Mid Span
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Inspector: Naveen Bitla * Structure Number: 210310C00302001
Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 l«:“_ Facility Carried: LOS TOMATES INTER.
Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 27 Defect
Description  Spall in Deck at Mid Bay #4, Span #6. 8" Wide x 3" Long x 1" Deep

= SRR B Ry

1/9/2023

PHOTO 28 Defect
DCescription Cracks with Efflorescence at Bottom Deck, Bay #6 near Bent #10 Looking North
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Inspector: Naveen Bitla * Structure Number: 210310C00302001
Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 ln:.:.. Facility Carried: LOS TOMATES INTER.

Pictures

PHOTO 28 Defecl
Description Delaminated Area in West Deck Overhang at Bent #12. 1' Long x Up to 6" Wide

PHOTO 30 Defect

Description Typical Horizontal and Vertical Hairlina Crack at West Parapet Looking West
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Inspeclor; Naveen Bitla * Structure Number: 210310C00302001
Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 y -3 Facility Carried: LOS TOMATES INTER.

Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTC 31  Defect
Description Spall and Missing Bolts at Parapet near Bent #17 Looking North

PHOTO 32  Defect

Description Impact Damage and Spall on Concrete Temperary Median near Bent #8 at Southbound Lane
Looking East
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Inspector: Naveen Billa * . Structure Number: 210310C00302001
Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 ln.‘-"'_. Facility Carried: LOS TOMATES INTER.
Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 33  Defecl
Description Disconnected Railing at Northbound near Bent #16 Looking East

PHOTO 34 Defect
Description Minor Edge Spall in Bottorn Flange Chamfer at Beam #3, Span #6 near Mid Span
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Inspectar: Naveen Bitla * Structure Number: 210310C00302001
Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 _n..""' Facility Carried: LOS TOMATES INTER.

Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 35 Defect
Description Patched Area in Bottom Flange of Beam #11, Span #12 near Mid-Span

PHOTO 36 Defect

Description Loose Filler at Span #11, Bay #4 near Bent #12 between Beam #4 and Deck,
Note: Similar Condition in Bay #10, Bent #12, Baam #11
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Inspector: Naveen Bitla * Struclure Number: 210310C00302001
Inspection Date: 11/09/2023 y L Facility Carried: LOS TOMATES INTER.
Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 37  Other, Defect

Description Backwall at Bay #2, Abutment #1 Looking North,
Note: Typical Horizontal Hairline Cracks and Debris on Bridge Seat
] v 3

A

PHOTO 38 Defact

Descriplion Hairline Cracks at Bent Cap #11 West End Looking East.
Note: Similar Condilion at Bent Cap #12 and #13
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Inspector: Naveen Bitla o Structure Number: 210310C00302001

Inspection Date:  11/09/2023 = Facility Carried: LOS TOMATES INTER.
Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 39 Defect

Description Erosion at Bent #16 between Column #2 and #3. 30' Long x 4' Wide x 2' Daap.
Note: Minor Erasion betwaan Column #3 and #4, 10" Long x 8" Deep x 6" Wide

PHOTO 40 Defect
Description Pothole at Nerth Approach Southbound Loaking West. 1' Diameter x 2" Deep
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Bridge Inspection Follow-Up Action



Bridge Inspection Follow-Up Action

Initial Finding Information
Locatlon Information

Bridge ID¥  210310C00302001 Latitudo  25. Longituds  -97.47642484 County 031-CAMERON Location
Facility Carrlod  LOS TOMATES INTER. Foature Crossed  RIO GRANDE RIVER

Ownership/Responsibility

District Arca Offico Maintenanco Soctlon Control - Section €003 . 02
Systoem Designation 2 Bridge Owner Proclnct

Maintenance Information

tnspection Date 11/08/2023 Roc Typo Lovel 3 Proviously Rocommended? N Critical Finding? N

Bridgo Componont  Channel Ropalr Catogory  Repair Bank Erosion Ce

Other:

Description of Issue and Recommendation

- Erosion at Bent #16 betwesn column #2 and #3. 30° long x 4' wido x 2' deep

- Minor erosion at Bent #16 betwaen column #3 and #4. 10" long x 8 wide x 6° deop

Recommendation: Repair the erosions

District Bridge Office Comments

Comments By Dato

District Area or Assigned Mat Office C

Comments By Date

Foll p Action Resolution C

Work to be Complatod tatus: +District Estimated

Via: +Projoct § Lotting Dato:

+District Proposed +CSJ/WO/

Funding Source: Projoct ID: Optionst Fleids
Action Taken: Verified By Date

+Additional

Comments if

Nocossary:

CRITICAL FINDING FOLLOW UP INFORMATION (BLANK IF FOLLOW UP ACTION IS NOT A CRITICAL FINDING)

Condition Rating {Affected otemonts only)

Follow Up Inspection Information:
Automated Email Sent To:

Date Bridge Divislon notified of Critica) Finding:
TxDOT tnspector:

Comments:

T

P y Repair

TxDOT Inspector:

Bridgo Owner Rep:

Dato Temporary Repalr was
lled:

Temp Repair In Place: tnstatied:

Comments:

Permanent Repair Information:
TxDOT Inspector:

Bridgo Owner Rep:

Date R
Discussed wiBridge Owner:

Comments:

Overall Recommendation:

Dato Bridgo Owner notifled of
Critical Finding:

Co-inspaction Dato w/ Bridgo
Ownor:

Now Load Rating f Analysis Roquired?

Concur with findings:

Bridgo Ownar Rop:

Dato y R
Discussed w/Bridgo Ownar:

Co-tnspection Date w/Bridge Owner:

Dato Bridge Division notifiod of
Tamp Ropalr:

Permanent Rapalr Target Dato:
Co-Inspoction Dato wiBeidge Owner:

Dato Bridgo Division notified of

lon Dato:
Permenant Repalr:

; Ropalr

FUA D 701693

.02 MI S OF TOLLBOOTH
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DO NOT DISCLOSE - INFORMATION CONFIDENTIAL UNBER THE TEXAS HOMELAND SECURITY ACT AND 23 USC SECTION 409, SAFETY SENSITIVE INFORMATION

Page 30 of 39



Page 198 of 209

Inspector: Hungjoo Kwon Structure Number: 210310C00302001

Inspection Date: Facility Carried:
Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 1 Defect

Description Erosion at Bent #16 between Column #2 and #3. 30' Long x 4' Wide x 2' Daap.
Note: Minor Erosion between Column #3 and #4. 10° Long x 8" Deep x 8" Wide
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Initiat Finding Information
Locatlon Information

Bridge (D#  210310C00302001 Latitude  25. Long 97.47642484
Facllity Carriod  LOS TOMATES INTER. Feature Crossod  RIO GRANDE RIVER
Ownarship/Responsibility

District Arga Office Maintenanco Section
System Dasignation 2 Bridgo Owner

Malntenance Information

Inspection Dato 11/09/2023

Brldgo Component  Deck

Other:

Description of Issue and Recommendation
- Spall and missing bolis in parapel al Bent #17

Recommendation: Repair the spall and reinstalt the bolts

District Bridge Office Comments

Comments By

District Area or Assigned Mail Office C.

Roc Typo Level3

Repalr Category

Bridge Inspection Follow-Up Action

Proviously Recommondod? N

Comments By

Foll p Action Resolution C
Work to ba Complotod
Via:

+DBlstrict Proposod
Funding Sourca:

Actlon Taken:

+Additlonal
Comments if
Nocossary:

Repair Bridge Rall
Date
Date
+Project Status:
+CSJ/ WO/
Project ID:
Verified By

County 031-CAMERON

Location

Control - Sectlon €003 - 02

Precinet

Critlca) Finding? N

+District Estimated
Lotting Oato:

+Optional Fislds

CRITICAL FINDING FOLLOW UP INFORMATION (BLANK IF FOLLOW UP ACTION IS NOT A CRITICAL FINDING)

Condition Ratlng (Affected clements only)

Follow Up Inspection Information:
Automatoed Emall Sent To:

Overzll Recommandation:

New Load Rating / Analysis Roquired?

FUAID 701690

.02 M1 S OF TOLLBOOTH
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vl Iflod of Critice! Finding: Dato Bridge Owner notified of Concur with findings:
Date Bridge Division notifled of C | Findlng: Critical Fi " gSs:
TxDOT Inspector: Coinspoction Dato w! Bridge Bridgo Ownar Rep:
Ownor:
Comments:
Temporary Repalr Information:
Dato R ded
Tx0OT tnspactor: Discussed wiBridge Ownor:
Bridge Ownar Rep: Co-{nspection Dato w/Bridgo Owner:
. Date Temporary Ropair was Date Bridgo Division notified of
Temp Ropalr In Place: tnstaited: Temp Ropair:
Comments:
P t Repair Infor
TxDOT Inspoctor: Permanent Repalr Target Dato:
Bridge Owner Rep: Co-nspection Date wiBridge Ownor:
Date R . fied of
Discussed wiBridge Owner: F Ropair Dato: me :::kaz’" notified of
Commonts:
I DO NOT DISCLOSE - INFORMATION CONFIDENTIAL UNDER THE TEXAS HOMELAND SECURITY ACT AND 23 USC SECTION 409, SAFETY SENSITIVE INFORMATION J
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Inspector: Hungjoo Kwon Structure Number: 210310C00302001

Inspection Date: Facility Carried:
Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 1 Defect
Description Spall and Missing Bolts at Parapet near Bent i1/ Looking Morth
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Bridge Inspection Follow-Up Action

Initial Finding Information FUAID 701689
Locatlon Information

Bridge (D#  210310C00302001 Latitude 25.88745388 Longitude  -97.47642484 County 031-CAMERON Location .02 M!S OF TOLLBOOTH
Facilty Carried  LOS TOMATES INTER. Foaturo Crossed  RIO GRANDE RIVER

Ownership/Responsibllity

Dlstrict Aroa Offica Malntenanco Section Control - Sectlon €003 - 02

System Deslignatlon 2 Bridge Owner Procinet

Maintenance Information

Inspaction Dato 11/09/2023 Rec Typo Lovel3 Proviously Rocommended? N Critleal Finding? N

Bridge Componcnt Deck Ropalr Category Rapair 8ridge Rail

Other:

Description of Issue and Recommendation
- Disconnected raing near Bent #16 north bound

R jon: Repair the rad

District Bridge Office Comments

Comments By Dato
District Aroa or Assigned Mal Office C

9!

Commants By Dato

Foll p Actlon Resolution C t:

Work to bo Comploted . +District Estimated
Via: +Project Status Lotting Dato:

+District Proposed +CSJIWO/ Optional
Funding Source: Projoct (D: Flatds

Actlon Taken: Verified By Date

+Additional
Commonts if
Necessary:

CRITICAL FINDING FOLLOW UP INFORMATION (BLANK [F FOLLOW UP ACTION IS NOT A CRITICAL FINDING)
Conditlon Rating (; onty) Ovorzll Rocommendation: Now Load Rating / Analysis Requlred?

Follow Up Inspection Information:
Automated Ematl Sont To:

Page 201 of 209

[ vl Ificd of inding: Dato Bridgo Owner notifiod of Concur with findings:
ato Bridge Diviston notified of Critical Finding: Critical Finding: on Q
TxDOT Inspoctor: c"":";:!""“" Dato w/ Bridgo Bridgo Owner Rep:
Comments:
Temp y Repalr Inf i
TxDOT Inspoctor: Dato P Y
x s Discussed wiBridge Owner:
Bridge Ownor Rop: Co-inspection Date wiBridge Owner:
T . Date Temporary Repair was Date Bridge Division notified of
‘'omp Repair In Place: Instatied: Temp Repalr:
Comments:
F t Repair Inf i
TxDOT tnspoctor: Pormanont Repalr Targot Date:
Bridge Owner Rop: Co-Inspoction Date wiBridge Owner:
Dato R pelr(s) 1 .
Discussod wiBridgo Owner: Ropalr Dato: 3::”5::&";&::” notified ot
Comments:
I DO NOT DISCLOSE - INFORMATION CONFIDENTIAL UNDER THE TEXAS HOMELAND SECURITY ACT AND 23 USC SECTION 409, SAFETY SENSITIVE INFORMATION I
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Inspector: Hungjoa Kwon Structure Number: 2103710C00302001

Inspection Date: Facility Carried:
Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 1 Defect

Descripticn Disconnected Railing at Northbound near Bent #16 Looking East

Page 35 of 39



Initia! Finding Information

Locatlon Information
Bridgo(D#  210310C00302001

Factiity Carriod

Ownership/Responsibility
District
Systom Designation 2

Matntenance Information

tnspection Dato 1170872023

Bridgo Componont
Other:

Deck

LOS TOMATES INTER.

Latitude  25.88745388

Arca Offico

Bridgo Owner

Rec Type Lovel3

Repalr Category

Description of Issue and Recommendation

-D at west deck

g al Bent #12. 1' long x up to 6' wide

Repair the

District Bridge Office Comments

Comments By

District Area or Assigned Mal

Offico C t

Commonts By

I p Action Resolution C

Work to bo Comploted
Via:

+District Proposed
Funding Source:

Action Taken:

+Additional
Commonts if
Noceasary:

+Project Status:

Foature Crossod

Bridge Inspection Follow-Up Action

Longitude  -97.47642484

RIO GRANDE RIVER

Malntenance Soctlon

Proviously Rocommended? N

Patch Spalls in Deck Soffit

Date

+CSIIWO/
Project ID:

Varified By

County 031-CAMERON

Location

Control - Section €003 - 02

Procinct

Critical Finding? N

+District Estimated
Letting Date:

+Optional Fiekis

Date

CRITICAL FINDING FOLLOW UP INFORMATION (BLANK [F FOLLOW UP ACTION IS NOT A CRITICAL FINDING)

C Rating (AFf

only}

Follow Up Inspection Information:

Automated Emall Sont To:

Ovorall Recommondation:

Now Load Rating / Anslysis Rogulred?

: Dato Bridgo Ownor notified of ith findings:
Date Bridgo Diviston notified of Critical Finding Critical Finding: Concur wi ndings:
TxDOT Inspoctor: Co-inspoction Dato w/ Bridgo Bridgo Owner Rep:
Owner:
Comments:
Temporary Repalr
Dato R dod
TxDOT Inspector: Discusscd w/Bridgo Owner:
Bridgo Ownor Rop: Co-Inspoction Date wiBridgo Owner:
: Dato Temporary Ropalr was Dato Bridgo Division notified of
Tomp Repalr In Placo: Instatied: Tomp Repair:
Comments:
P t Repair tnfi i
TxDOT tnspoctor: Permanent Repair Targot Dato:
Bridgo Ownor Rep: Co-inspection Date wiBridgo Ownor:
Date 1 ra)
¥ ¥ ta; Dato Bridgo Division notifled of
Discussod wiBridge Owner: Ropalr Dato: Pormenant Ropsir:
Commonts:

FuA D 701688

.02 Mi S OF TOLLBOOTH
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DO NOT DISCLOSE - INFORMATION CONFIDENTIAL UNDER THE TEXAS HOMELAND SECURITY ACT AND 23 USC SECTION 409, SAFETY SENSITIVE INFORMATION
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Inspactor: Hungjoo Kwan Structure Number: 210310C00302001

Inspection Date: Facility Carried:
Bridge Inspection Reporl

Pictures

PHOTO 1 Defect
Description Delaminated Area in West Deck Qverhang at Bent #12. 1' Leng x Up lo 6" Wide
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Bridge Inspection Follow-Up Action

Initial Finding Information
Location Information

Bridge 1D  210310C00302001 Latitude 2588745388 Longitude -97.47642484
Facility Carried  LOS TOMATES INTER. Foaturo Crossed  RIO GRANDE RIVER
Ownership/Responsibility

District Arca Offico Malntenanco Scction
System Designation 2 Bridgo Owner

Maintenance Information

11/09/2023 Previously Rocommendad? Y

Inspaction Date Roc Type Leveld

Bridge Componont  Deck Repalr Category  Clean and Seat Joints
Other:
Daescription of Issue and Recommendation

- Detesh d sealants in south Dock Joint Bent #5 and #8, and northbound Deck Joint Bent #8

Recommendation: repair the seal

District Bridge Office Commients

Comments By Dato

District Area or Assigned Mail Office C

Comments By Dato

p Actlon R

sl‘:fk 10 bo Comptoted +Project Status:

+CSJ/WO/

+District Proposod
Projoct ID:

Funding Source:

Actlon Taken: Voriflod By

+Additionz]
Comments if
Necessary:

County 031-CAMERON

Location

Control - Section  C003 - 02

Precinct

Critical Finding? N

+Dlstrict Estimated
Lotting Dato:

+Oplional Flekds

Date

CRITICAL FINDING FOLLOW UP INFORMATION (BLANK [F FOLLOW UP ACTION IS NOT A CRITICAL FINDING)

Overall Recommandation:

[ Rating (. only}

Follow Up Inspection (nformation:
Automatod Emall Sont To:

Now Load Rating / Analysis Roquired?

Dato Bridgo Divi Ified of Critlcal Finding: Dato Bridga Owner notified of Concur with findings:
ato Bridge slon notifle cal Finding Critical Finding: nding:
TxDOT Inspoctor: Co-nspaction Dato w/ Bridgo Bridge Owner Rep:
ner:

Comments:
Temy y Repalr Infa th
TxDOT Inspector: Dato R dod

x " Discussed w/Bridge Owner:
Bridgo Ownor Rap: Co-inspection Date wiBridgo Owner:
T tr : Date Tomporary Ropalr was Dato Bridge Division notified of

‘emp Repair n Place: tastalied: Temp Repair:
Commonts:
P Repair Infe i
TxDOT Inspector: Pormanent Repalr Targot Dato:
Bridge Owner Rep: Codnspaction Date wiBridge Owner:
Date

y P : Dato: Date Bridge Division notified of

Discussed w/Bridge Owner: Ropalr Permonant Ropsir:
Commonts:

FUAID

.02 MI S OF TOLLBOOTH

701683

Page 205 of 209

DO NOT DISCLOSE - INFORMATION CONFIDENTIAL UNDER THE TEXAS HOMELAND SECURITY ACT AND 23 USC SECTION 409, SAFETY SENSTIVE INFORMATION

Page 38 of 39



Page 206 of 209

Inspector: Hungjoo Kwon Structure Number: 210310C00302001

Inspection Date: Facility Carried:
Bridge Inspection Report

Pictures

PHOTO 1 Defect
Description Deteriorated Sealant at Bent #2, Southbound Looking East
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Z

Loss Run Summa °
Data valued as of: 08/19/2025 Y ZURICH
0096583
Pol Year Status Claim Count Paid Incurred

2016 (no claims this period)
2017 (no claims this period)
2018 (no claims this period)
2019 Closed 1

2020 (no claims this period)
2021 (no claims this period)
2022 (no claims this period)
2023 (no claims this period)
2024 (no claims this period)
2025 (no claims this period)

Overall Totals: 1

*Note this data contains all years for requested policy
number. Paid Indemnity included for Property claims. Page 1/1 Run Date: 8/20/25
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Data valued as of: 08/19/2025 . . .
Zurich North America Customer Loss Runs Loss Detail

Z

ZURICH
CAMERON COUNTY BRIDGES
Policy Year *: 2019
PROPERTY
Policy Number: |M -0096583
Paid Paid
Date of Loss Reported Closed Indemnity Indemnity Ind Exp Incurred
Claim # Claimant Loss Type Loss State Status Date Date Bl/Med PDILT Reserve Exp Paid Res Total Paid Total
5730068075 Cameron INLAND MARINE 03/21/2020 TX Closed 04/21/2020  06/18/2020 $0.00 $0.00
County
Bridg,es
Acc Misc: Unknown/unclassified origin
Description
Coverage Totals: 1
Policy Year Totals: 1
Overall Totals: 1
Page 1/1 Run Date: 8/20/25

*Paid Indemnity included for Property claims
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Glossary of Terms
Claim Number: A unique ten-digit number used to identify an accident, event, or occurrence.

Claimant: Entity that files a claim against a policy.

Loss Type: Claim Level Coverage further breaks down the Coverages. Example: Workers Compensation (WC) is a Coverage and the Claim Level Coverages
for WC are Lost Time and Medical. Also known as Sub Coverage.

Coverage Type: Line of Business.
Date of Loss: Actual date the loss occurred for a claim.
Date valued as of: The date that the data within the report is valued.

Acc Description: Description of Loss.

Financials:
Total Paid Paid indemnity and expense.
Reserve: Reserve indemnity and expense.

Indemnity Paid Bl/Med and PD/LT - No Expenses.

Expenses Paid All Expenses for both Bi/Med and PD/LT

Indemnity Reserve Bl/Med plus PD/LT - No Expenses

Total Incurred Paid + Reserves + Claim Recoveries.

Policy Symbol: The two or three position character field used to identify the policy type or line of business.
Policy Number:  The seven-digit number assigned to identify the policy.

Policy Year: The year a policy was effective.

Status: This field indicates whether the claim is open or closed.

Customer Name: Name of the Insured.

Date Closed: Date the loss was closed.

Date Reported: Date the loss was reported to Zurich or a cooperative partner.
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